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CHAPTER 1 – MAYOR’S FOREWORD AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

COMPONENT A: MAYOR’S FOREWORD 

It is that time in the planning and reporting cycle of the municipality that the council accounts to 
the public on the implementation of the IDP and Budget and SDBIP that were respectively 
approved on the May and June 2017. 

The 2017/2018 financial year was tumultuous and as the leadership in council, had to steer the 
ship in the murky and turbulent environment. We had witnessed the 54th ANC National 
Conference that brought about the new ANC leadership under President Cyril Ramaphosa and 
the end of President Jacob Zuma’s era as the ANC President and President of the country.  We 
also bore witness to the turmoil that engulfed the province which ended with the Premier SOR 
Mahumapelo taking a bow earlier than anticipated. 

There were various marches by the youth of the district and they raised amongst others genuine 
demands and others unsavoury demands that were just aimed at bringing councillors and 
leaders names into disrepute. These genuine demands involves the triple challenges faced by 
youth of this district and country at large of unemployment, poverty and inequality, which are at 
the apex of our priorities this council must strive to achieve during its term. 

I must hasten to mention that the VBS investments of R150 million has caused much stir and 
uncertainty that the district might lose the investment which is a cause for concern. The public is 
informed that this was done through the approved council Investment Policy, albeit it later 
transpired that it was not in line with the MFMA Municipal Investments Regulations of 2005.  

However, there have been engagements with the Curator of South African Reserve Bank and 
National Treasury on the matter. The Minister of Cooperative Governance held meetings with 
affected municipalities and it was agreed in the meetings with a ministerial directive that this 
municipality must table a recovery plan with an adjustment budget to take cognisance of the 
investment by indicating the grants and the projects affected and consequence management 
processes to be taken against all those involved in investing with VBS. The Council tabled this 
matter and at its first meeting resolved that the Risk Management Unit and MPAC conduct and 
investigation and report to council. As at 30th June 2018 the process to deal with this matter was 
unfolding and the public will be informed of the status quo through various reports in the 
2018/2019 financial year.  

Key Service Delivery Improvements 

In the past financial year the district has been able to improve on the provision of water and 
sanitation to household that haven’t have the services before. This improved the living conditions 
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of the communities in that of the 125000 households in the district, 50% of these are above RDP 
standard and about 30% are below and 20% are targeted for improvement. 

The district has been able to reach out the youth through the EPWP programme, this has 
touched youth lives to ensure that they meet their basic needs. Through these programmes, 
about 1857 jobs have been created, and about 2077 jobs were created through implementation 
of capital projects. 

There have been delays and work stoppages by aggrieved community members in the 
implementation of projects since January 2018 in the Greater-Taung area under the traditional 
leadership of Batlhaping Ba Ga Phuduhucwana. This is as result of misunderstanding of roles 
and responsibilities between the Tribal Authority, community, Department of Water Affairs and 
this municipality created misinformation and the expectation of community members to be 
provided with employment and local economic development opportunities. However, continuous 
engagements are held with the Tribal Authority to resolve the impasse, but the resultant 
stoppages unfortunately contribute to huge cost incurred to date by appointed service provider to 
complete the works. 

Public Participation 

After Council tabled the 2016/2017 Annual Report in January 2018, the MPAC started its 
public hearings on the report. These engagements on the Annual Report were robust and 
allowed the communities to directly analysis the report by raising their dissatisfactions on the 
performance of the municipality and also provided suggestions and solutions on how the 
municipality could be improved. In some areas the report was not accepted and some areas 
the public participation meetings were disrupted and abandoned. However, the municipality can 
attest and demonstrate to the other stakeholders to that fact that indeed the processes were 
planned and conducted as required by the MFMA. 

During the financial year the district embarked on various community participation processes 
with regard to the preparation for the 2018/2019 IDP & MTREF Budget. About two IDP 
Representatives Forum meetings were held. However, the Mayoral IDP/Budget Roadshows 
were not as successful as one would have anticipated.  Local municipalities did lament to the 
fact that they were not properly consulted on the envisaged consultations, something that we 
have agreed at the IGR Forum held in June 2018 with the MEC needs to be improved in the 
2018/2019 financial year. Already a document with a clear programme has been tabled before 
council and submitted to the MEC for Local Government on how the engagements with 
stakeholders will unfold in preparations for the 2019/2020 budget cycle. 

Agreements / Partnerships 

In this financial year we continued with our efforts to ensure that we collaborate with other key 
service delivery stakeholders by reviewing our approaches towards agreements and building 
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COMPONENT B: EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1.   MUNICIPAL MANAGER’S OVERVIEW 

Before the start of the 2017/2018 financial year, the Council adopted in May 2017 the 2017/2018 
IDP and MTREF Budget that set out how it intended to implement the key developmental 
objectives, strategies, targets, priorities and projects as identified by communities during the 
engagements that took place in between April and May 2017. 

Towards the end of June 2017 the Executive Mayor approved the Top-layer SDBIP which 
served as an operational plan year for the financial year. During its implementation, there 
have been numerous challenges encountered such as the change in top management 
echelon whereby the Municipal Manager’s contract terminated in July 2018  and those of the 
top three Senior Managers employment contracts expired in December 2017 i.e. Corporate 
Services, EDTA & Engineering & Technical Services. The council did appoint on three months 
contract an acting Municipal Manager from August -November 2018 and later acting Senior 
Managers on in the vacant post from January 2018 to past June 2018. 

Those wholesome changes in the institutional arrangement had a detrimental effect with regard to 
planning and implementation of the SDBIP. That transition period between August 2017 to June 
2018; wasn’t a smooth one as the new substantive Accounting Officer came into office on 1st 
December 2018, which was at the end of the first half of the financial year.  

The municipality had to comply with transacting on mSCOA from 1st July 2017, however it is 
evident that the readiness towards the implementation date was not done accordingly, because 
post the implementation date there were serious compliance challenges with implementation of 
the systems and this has affected the in-year reporting significantly and even working towards the 
output of compliant AFS at the end of the financial year.  

However, the service provider was engaged and most of the challenges were resolved towards 
the end of June 2018 such as the recapturing of data from old systems to new one, the cashbook 
was updated, completed the  bank reconciliations, month end procedures were done. The critical 
challenges that were still work in progress and were attended to were the integration between VIP 
People and SAGE Evolution, the mapping accounts and the finalisation of the Trial Balance or a 
detailed General Ledger.  

After the Midyear Budget & Performance Assessment in January 2018, the municipality’s service 
delivery priorities have been reviewed through the adjustment budget, as part of 2018/2019 
planning and budget preparation process. The results of this review were incorporated into the 
municipality’s adjustment budget. 
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The municipality is grant dependent and has embarked on implementing a range of revenue 
collection strategies to optimize the outstanding Sedibeng account and repayment of the DBSA 
loan. Furthermore, the municipality has undertaken steps to ensure that council adopts cost 
containment measures as per the NT circulars. For the 2017/2018 the employee related costs 
were at 32% of the total operating budget.  After the review of the organisational structure, there 
were new posts created, especially in the political offices and were budgeted for accordingly.  

During the adjustment budget process there were challenges identified which needed to be 
considered during the compilation of the 2018/2019 MTREF Budget and amongst other can be 
summarised as follows: 

• The municipality is still having challenge in budgeting adequately for non-cash items. e.g.
depreciation 

• Repairs and maintenance is also one of the items that is not adequately budgeted for
• The municipality has a challenge of implementing capital year plans, currently the

municipality is sitting at very low expenditure on capital assets and projects this does not
include MIG projects

• Lack of procurement plans from service delivery departments and therefore no aligned
with the approved budget

• The municipality is experiencing delays with procurement due to the Supply Chain
Management procurement processes

• Non- reconciliation of reports between the finance department and technical departments
• Uncertainty of the investments made with VBS which could result in catastrophic results

for the municipality, the bulk of the money meant for service delivery might be lost and this
doesn’t augur well for all in the district.

These challenges are not insurmountable, however they just need proper strategic planning, 
budgeting forecasting and anticipating how best to manoeuvre under constraints of limited funding 
and grant dependency.  

Our service delivery performance during for the 2017/2018 has been satisfactory, though there 
are areas that still need some improvement. During the financial year, a revised MIG 
implementation plan was submitted to COGTA for the 2017/2018 and 2018/2019 financial years, 
and through robust engagements the revised plan was accepted. It is pleasing to report that 
COGTA allocated an additional amount of R 72 million for the 2017/2018 financial year 
earmarked to be spend in the MTREF cycle. 

However, there have been critical challenges with regard to service delivery during the financial 
year, and that one would like to highlight because these contributed towards be unable to 
implement and/or complete some of the infrastructure projects due to:  

– Shortfall amounts (projects not fully funded).
– Stoppages of projects by community and SMMEs demanding to be considered as service

providers and jobs.
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– Lack of MOU between DRSM, LMs and Tribal Authorities.
– Delay in approving budget to be spent on projects by Department of Water & Sanitation.
– Poor performance by consultant to determine the exact funding the project will require.
– Some projects completed but no electricity connection.

The management has since put in place contingency plan to remedy the situation by continuous 
engaging key funding departments such as COGTA and DWS by: 

• Requesting and follow-up with the DWS on the approvals of shortfalls.
• Sourcing additional / external funds for some of the projects and implement in the next

financial year.
• Engaging COGTA regarding application made to DWS to approve the shortfall amount of

uncompleted projects.
• Continuously engaging with tribal Authorities and ensure implementation of resolutions.
• Resolve issues regarding appointment of SMMEs and community members.
• Terminate the consultant’s contract that was not performing accordingly.

It is important to inform the public that during the 2017/18 financial year, this municipality invested 
R60 million in July 2017 with VBS Mutual Bank which matured in October 2017. Followed by 
R150 million in March 2018, which was to mature in August/September 2018. All these 
investments were made as per council policy, quotations were received from the market and 
the highest interest rate, being VBS, was utilised for the deposits.  This matter was purely 
administrative and done for commercial reasons.  The council does not approve or authorize 
individual investments, as that is operational.  However, the regular quarterly investment reports 
and monthly MFMA Section 71 reports with details of investments were submitted to Council, 
MPAC, Provincial and National Treasury. 

In March 2018, the Municipality received a communication from the Curator of the Reserve Bank 
that the bank has been placed under administration. The Minister of Cooperative Governance and 
Traditional Affairs also held meetings with affected municipality and informed them that after 
consulting the Curator to the bank, that they may not get their investments, since there was a lot 
of fraud in the VBS and the municipalities have fallen victim to this fraud. 

It must however be noted that the Reserve Bank and the National Treasury have instituted a 
forensic on the bank’s dealings to get to the bottom of the criminal activities and bring the 
executives of the bank to book and recover funds that are recoverable.  

The Minister further stated that municipalities must prepare a special adjustment budget in July 
2018 that will reduce the 2018/19 budget by the amount of the investment into VBS Mutual Bank. 
This meant that some infrastructure projects would have to be pushed in the outer years.  The 
municipality will also calculate savings that have been reached by awarding bids that were much 
lower than the estimated budgets by the consultants.  The exact projects were to be highlighted in 
the special adjustment budget. 
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1.2. MUNICIPAL FUNCTIONS, POPULATION AND ENVIRONMENTAL 
OVERVIEW 

INTRODUCTION TO BACKGROUND DATA 
Geographic Profile 

Dr. Ruth S Mompati District Municipality (DC39) is the largest region within the North West 
Province with a surface area of 47 478 km² in extent (40.82% of the total area of North West 
Province). It lies 1 200 m above sea level and is dry, sunny and very hot in summer. It consists 
of five local municipalities (i.e. Naledi LM covering 7 264 km² (NW392), Greater Taung LM 
covering 5 640 km² (NW394), Lekwa-Teemane LM covering 3 681 km² (NW396), Mamusa LM 
covering 3 615 km² (NW393) and Kagisano-Molopo LM covering 27 278 km² (NW397). 

Water 

There is an estimated 148 243 households, based on 2014/15 Water Services Development 
Plan, of which about 81% of the households have access to acceptable levels of water services. 
Most of the 33% of the households use piped water inside the dwelling. 11% of the households 
use water inside the yard. About 37% households use communal piped water: less than 200 m 
from the dwelling at RDP- level. 12% households use communal piped water: more than 200 m 
from dwelling below RDP. An estimated 7% households have no access to water supply.  

Sanitation 

Dr Ruth S Mompati District Municipal Area has an estimated 148 243 households, based on 
2014/15 Water Services Development Plan, of which 70% of the households have access to 
acceptable levels of sanitation services. About 30% of the households are in need of acceptable 
levels of sanitation services. About 30% households use flush toilet, whilst 9% households do 
not have a toilet. At least 24% households use a pit latrine with ventilation (VIP) and 22% 
households use a pit latrine without ventilation. Lastly, 9% of the households are not provided 
with any type of sanitation. 

Electricity 

ESKOM is the main service provider of electricity, however there are local municipalities that 
have been providing electricity locally such as Naledi, Mamusa and Lekwa-Teemane 
(Christiana and Bloemhof towns) Local Municipalities. 
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Refuse 

The Local Municipalities (LM) is solely responsible for waste collection, waste disposal and 
street cleaning. The District Municipality (DM) is playing a supporting role to the Local 
Municipalities by improving infrastructure and equipment within the boundaries of its budget by 
way of purchasing vehicles, equipment, establishing new landfill sites, new solid waste transfer 
stations and rehabilitate and close old landfill sites. The District Municipality promotes recycling 
in its area by assisting up and coming business people with advice.        

POPULATION PER LOCAL MUNICIPALITY 

Year Greater 
Taung 

Kagisano-
Molopo 

Naledi Mamusa Lekwa-
Teemane 

TOTAL % Growth 

1996 184 364 97 770 54 116 42 736 36 869 415 855 - 

2001 182 164 100 469 56 263 48 366 42 967 430 229 3.5 

2011 177 642 105 789 66 781 60 355 53 248 463 815 7.8 
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COMMENT ON HOUSEHOLDS 
Census 2011 reports that Dr. Ruth S Mompati District Municipality has a total 125 250 
households. Of these a total of 18 572 (14.82%) are in Naledi LM, about 14 628 (11.67) are in 
Mamusa LM. A total 48 613 (38.81%) households are in Greater-Taung, 14 930 (11.92%) and 
lastly 28 531 (22.77%) are situated in Kagisano-Molopo and Lekwa-Teemane respectively. 

Socio Economic Status 
 Estimated number of unemployed people and percentage 

Population group 
Male Female 

Number % Number % Total 

African 15 199 29.2 14 244 38.5 29 443 
White 93 2.6 126 5.7 219 

Coloured 856 40.7 803 44.7 1,658 

Indian/Asian 11 3.2 20 10.5 31 

Total 16 159 27.8 15 193 36.9 31 352 

T1.2.4 
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Natural Resources 
Major Natural Resource Relevance to Community 

Land • Access to land
• Security of Tenure
• High Agriculture Potential
• Food Production

Water • Access to water
• Food Production

Mineral Resources 
• Gold
• Diamonds
• Platinum

Job Creation 
Remittances 
Economic Development 
Environmental Sustainability 
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COMMENT ON BACKGROUND DATA: 

The latest Census Statistics shows that the total population of our district stands at about 
463 815 people, which has steadily grown with about 7.8% between the period 1996 and 
2011. The largest portion of the total population of the district is shared by Greater Taung 
Local Municipality (LM) which has a total 177 642 people followed by Kagisano LM with 
about 105 789 people. Both municipalities are rural in nature and were established in 2000 
during the introduction of the new local government dispensation with dire socio-economic 
conditions that need to be attended to. This means when we plan we need to do so wisely 
for the 125 270 households in our district, to ensure that more infrastructural and social 
resources are directed to these areas as they have more poverty pockets and absence of 
basic services than the more urbanised municipalities such as Naledi, Mamusa and Lekwa-
Teemane, which of course also have some rural areas that have the same need.  

These latest statistics also show that about 58.39% (270 822) people of this district are 
between the ages of 15-64, which means much effort must be directed towards improving 
the lives of this group. The unemployment rate stands at 35.81% which is steadily rising and 
much higher comparatively to the neighbouring districts of Ngaka Modiri Molema District 
Municipality (DM) which is 32.72% and Dr Kenneth Kaunda DM which much lower at 
26.65%. This steady rise could be attributed to the slow economic growth and the decline in 
the absorption capacity of our economic sector as result of the declining world economy.  

One critical element of the statistics is the high rate of young people that are unemployed. 
About 45.96% of the youth of this district are unemployed as compared to other districts 
such as Bojanala DM which stands at 39.08% which is the lowest in the province, followed 
by Dr Kaunda DM at 39.16% and Ngaka Modiri Molema DM at 44.06% which is closer to 
this district given the same living condition as ours. We need to embark on an aggressive 
drive to ensure that our recruitment and infrastructural development projects are geared 
towards absorbing more young people, whether on temporary or permanent basis. This 
means YOUTH employment should be our hymn at all levels.  
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1.3. SERVICE DELIVERY OVERVIEW 

SERVICE DELIVERY INTRODUCTION 

The Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati District Municipality is the appointed Water Service Authority 
(WSA) in its area of jurisdiction and is responsible for all bulk services (both Water and 
Sanitation). The WSA has appointed the following Water Service Providers under a signed 
Service Level agreement to provide water services to the communities: 

Sedibeng Water Board for: 

• Greater Taung Local Municipality Area - Bulk and retail water services.

• Lekwa Teemane LM area - Bulk water and sanitation services (Operation and
Maintenance of all Water Treatment Works and Waste Water Treatment Works)

• Kagisano Molopo LM Area – Bulk and retail water and sanitation services

Naledi Local Municipality for: 

• Naledi LM area – Retail water and sanitation services

Lekwa Teemane Local Municipality for: 

• Lekwa Teemane LM area – Retail water and sanitation services

Mamusa Local Municipality for: 

• Mamusa LM area – Bulk and retail water and sanitation services

• Greater Taung Local Municipality Area - Bulk and retail water in Reivilo and bulk and
retail sanitation services in the whole Greater Taung LM area.
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The District Municipality is currently providing bulk water and sanitation infrastructure through 
the Regional Bulk Infrastructure Grant (RBIG) funding from the Department of Water and 
Sanitation in Greater Taung, Naledi, Lekwa Teemane local municipalities. The plans to 
implement RBIG projects in Mamusa and Kagisano Molopo local municipalities have been 
finalised and require budget that is already over-committed. The Rural Water Supply 
Programme seeks to provide basic services water reticulation to villages in the entire District 
Municipality. 

Provision of Double Ventilated Pit toilets in villages of Greater Taung, Kagisano Molopo and 
Naledi local municipalities has been a success and communities’ dignity is being restored. 
However, operation and maintenance of water and sanitation infrastructure is a major challenge 
due to lack of funds to do early refurbishment and replacement of parts. 
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1.4. FINANCIAL HEALTH OVERVIEW 

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW 
During the 2017/2018 financial year, the municipality continued to ensure compliance with laws 
and regulations in managing their financial affairs despite the raising challenge of limited 
financial resources that threatened the financial viability of the Municipality.  The Municipality 
managed to implement the budget for the 2017/2018 as prescribed by legislation.  Stricter 
controls on the budget contributed highly to curbing the unauthorised, irregular, fruitless and 
wasteful expenditure during the financial year.   

Even though the municipality’s budget concluded at a deficit, a lot of the objectives could be 
implemented because this deficit was addressed by the non-cash items that were included in 
the budget. The financial situation has been tougher and the financial obligations of the 
municipalities have also continued to grow.  These financial pressures and financial challenges 
are mainly due to high dependence on conditional grant funding by the municipality as it has 
been very difficult for the municipality to come up with any revenue raising sources.  The limited 
own revenue that is reported in the financial performance is from the sale of bid documents and 
from the limited interest that the municipality raises from investing the conditional grants that are 
not immediately implementable.   

COMMENT ON FINANCIAL OVERVIEW: 

Refer to Audited financial statements for detailed financial data (Volume II) 
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COMMENT ON OPERATING RATIOS: 

The norms set by the National Treasury on the Employee Related Costs is between the range 
between 30- 40% of the total operating budget, while Repairs and maintenance costs are 
standardised at 10%. Finance Costs and Impairment are also limited to not more that 10% of 
the Operating Costs. The personnel costs for 2017-2018 was at 32% of the total operating 
budget. 

The District Municipality has been struggling to budget sufficiently for repairs and maintenance 
due to limited financial resources.. These provisions for the repairs and maintenance are 
still very minimal for the municipality bearing in mind that the District Municipality is a 
water services authority and given the state of the water infrastructure of the municipality.   

Finance costs as reported are mainly from bank charges, the municipality is currently servicing 
the DBSA loans but no interest is charged for the loan.  An impairment of R150m has been 
proposed during the year under review. This is due to the Investment that was made with VBS 
Mutual Bank. 
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1.5. ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT OVERVIEW 

ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT PERFORMANCE 

Effectiveness in Municipal Transformation 

In order to transform the municipality to be on track of performing at the highest level, the 
Council embarked on rigorous exercise of reviewing all the policies. The process concluded with 
the approval of these policies on the 8th July 2018.   

The Council also approved the Workplace Skills Plan which was submitted to LGSETA within 
the required time. 

Performance Management 

The Performance Management System has been implemented and sustained to ensure 
Councillors and officials are able to monitor, review and report on performance. 

The following key PMS elements were implemented: 

  - The Executive Mayor approved the SDBIP by the 19th June 2017. 
  - The Municipal Manager and Section 56 Manager signed their Performance Agreements 

by the 31st July 2017. 
  - The PMS Framework was adopted by Council. 
 - Planning Budgeting and Performance Programme was adopted by Council. 
  - The 2016/2017 Annual Reports and Oversight Report were tabled during the financial 

year and submitted to all the stakeholders i.e. Auditor-General, Provincial and National 
Treasuries. 

  - The Annual Performance Evaluation of the Municipal Manager and Section 57 for the 
year under review were not done. 
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AUDITOR GENERAL REPORT 

AUDITOR GENERAL REPORT: YEAR 2017/2018 (CURRENT YEAR) 

The District Municipality has been working hard during the financial year to turnaround the state 
of affairs and to sustain the prior audit opinion as received from the AG.  The 2017/2018 Audit 
Opinion received from the AG was a collective effort of the political and administrative arms of 
the municipality which enabled the  District Municipality to receive a Qualified Audit Opinion. 

(Refer to Annexure B - Audit report 2017-2018 for detailed information) 
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STATUTORY ANNUAL REPORT PROCESS 

No Activity Timeframe 

1 

Consideration of next financial year’s Budget and IDP process plan. 
Except for the legislative content, the process plan should confirm in-year 
reporting formats to ensure that reporting and monitoring feeds 
seamlessly into the Annual Report process at the end of the Budget/IDP 
implementation period 

July2 Implementation and monitoring of approved Budget and IDP commences 
(In-year financial reporting). 

3 Finalize the 4th quarter Report for previous financial year 

4 Submit draft year 2016/2017 Annual Report to Internal Audit and Auditor-
General 

5 Municipal entities submit draft annual reports to MM 

6 Audit/Performance committee considers draft Annual Report of 
municipality and entities (where relevant) 

August 
8 Mayor tables the unaudited Annual Report 

9 
Municipality submits draft Annual Report including consolidated annual 
financial statements and performance report to Auditor General 

10 Annual Performance Report as submitted to Auditor General to be 
provided  as input to the IDP Analysis Phase 

11 
Auditor General audits Annual Report including consolidated Annual 
Financial Statements and Performance data 

September - 
October 

12 Municipalities receive and start to address the Auditor General’s 
comments 

November 13 Mayor tables Annual Report and audited Financial Statements to Council 
complete with the Auditor- General’s Report  

14 Audited Annual Report is made public and representation is invited 
15 Oversight Committee assesses Annual Report 
16 Council adopts Oversight report 

December 17 Oversight report is made public 

18 Oversight report is submitted to relevant provincial councils 

19 Commencement of draft Budget/ IDP finalisation for next financial year. 
Annual Report and Oversight Reports to be used as input January 
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COMMENT ON THE ANNUAL REPORT PROCESS: 

It is necessary that the District Municipality derive maximum benefit from its efforts in submitting 
reports. Such benefits are typically obtained in the form of being able to compare and 
benchmark against other municipalities and to learn from the feedback mechanisms.  

The Annual Report process flow provides a framework for the municipality to follow in 
completing various reports within each financial year cycle. It is recommended that Municipal 
Manager monitor this process flow and ensure that reports are submitted timeously. If the 
process flow is followed, the District Municipality should be able to provide an unaudited Annual 
Report in August of each year, which is consistent with the MFMA.  

One of the advantages of compiling an unaudited Annual Report in August is that it can be used 
to influence the strategic objectives indicated in the IDP for the next financial year as well as the 
budgetary requirements related to each vote. 

An unaudited Annual Report is submitted in August will further provide the municipality with an 
opportunity to review the functional areas that received attention during the current financial 
year and take the necessary corrective actions to align the IDP and budget to other priority 
areas needing attention.  

The Annual Report of a municipality and every municipal entity must be tabled in the Municipal 
Council on or before 31 January each year (MFMA S127). In order to enhance oversight 
functions of the Council, this must be interpreted as an outer deadline; hence the municipality 
must submit the Annual Report as soon as possible after year end, namely, August. The entire 
process is concluded in the first or second week of December for all municipalities, the same 
year in which the financial year ends and not a year later, as is currently the case. It is expected 
that effective management of performance will also result from this change.  

The Annual Report must be aligned with the planning documents and municipal budget for the 
year reported on. This means that the IDP, budget, SDBIP, in-year reports, annual performance 
report and Annual Report should have similar and consistent information to facilitate 
understanding and to enable the linkage between plans and actual performance.  

The above can only occur if the municipality set appropriate key performance indicators and 
performance targets with regards to the development of priorities and objectives in its IDP and 
outcomes (MSA S41). This requires an approved budget together with a resolution of approving 
measurable performance objectives for revenue from each source and each vote in the budget 
(MFMA, S24).  
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CHAPTER 2 – GOVERNANCE 

INTRODUCTION TO GOVERNANCE 

The Dr. Ruth Segomotsi District Municipality is committed to transparent and accountable 
governance.  The broad range of public participation programmes and processes, especially 
related to its IDP; Budget and Annual Report bears testimony to the district municipality’s 
commitment to involve its communities in its planning and decision-making processes.  All 
the above programs are administratively supported by the Municipal Manager and senior 
management 

COMPONENT A:  POLITICAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE GOVERNANCE 

INTRODUCTION TO POLITICAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE GOVERNANCE 

The Council of the Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati District Municipality is the highest decision-
making authority in the institution.  It guides and instructs the administrative component, 
which implements the decisions taken by the political component. 

POLITICAL GOVERNANCE 

INTRODUCTION TO POLITICAL GOVERNANCE 

Council has 33 seats (12 proportional representatives (PR Councillors); 17 Councillors from 
Local Municipalities seconded to the District Municipality and 4 Traditional Leaders.  The 
Executive Mayor, Cllr B. Mahlangu is the Political Head of the Municipality whilst the 
Speaker, Cllr L. Maogwe is the Chairperson of Council.   

The District Municipality is an executive type of a Municipality and is governed in terms of an 
Executive Mayoral Committee System.  The Executive Mayor governs together with a team 
of six (6) Chairpersons of Portfolio Committees. 

The following are Portfolio Committees that exist in the District Municipality:  Planning and 
Development Committee; Corporate Services & Special Project Committee; Finance 
Committee; Community Services Committee; Engineering and Infrastructure Committee; 
Economic Development, Tourism and Agriculture Committee.   
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The district has established Municipal Public Accounts Committee (MPAC) which serves as 
an Oversight Committee and is comprised by non-executive councillors and their 
responsibility is to provide Council with recommendations on the Annual Report and other 
Reports that may be referred to it by Council. The District Municipality has established an 
Audit and Performance Committee which is a shared service with Local Municipalities within 
its jurisdiction. 
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POLITICAL STRUCTURE FUNCTIONS 
Executive Mayor 
Cllr. B. Mahlangu 

Provide political guidance over the fiscal and financial affairs 
of the municipality 
To oversee the preparation of the annual budget 
Submit quarterly reports to Council on the implementation of 
the budget and the financial status of the municipality 
Coordinate the annual review of the IDP 
To ensure that the Mayoral Committee is perform its 
functions properly 
Promotion of intergovernmental relations 
Convene public hearings and meetings 
Identifies the needs of the community in terms of the IDP 
processes. 
Reviews those needs in order of priority 
Recommend to the municipal council strategies, 
programmes and services to address priority needs through 
the IDP, estimates revenues and expenditure, taking into 
account any applicable National and Provincial Plans 
Recommend and determine the best way, including 
partnership and other approaches, to deliver those 
strategies, programmes and services to the maximum 
benefit of the community.  

Speaker  
Cllr. L. Maogwe 

The Speaker presides over the council meetings and 
maintains order during council meetings. 
Ensure that the council meets at least quarterly. 
Ensure that the rules of order are complied with during the 
proceedings of council meetings. 
Execute any other duties as delegated to the speaker in 
terms of the council delegation systems. 
Maintains order during Council meetings 
Ensure that Councilors adhere to the Code of Conduct 
Support to Councilors 
Facilitate public participation coordinate the establishment 
and functionality of ward committees 
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The district council consists of 32 councillors elected in accordance with Schedule 2, Part 1, 
of the Municipal Structures Act, No 117 of 1998. Twelve (12) of whom are proportional 
representatives and seventeen (20) have been designated by local municipalities within the 
district to represent them at the district council.  

The Executive Mayor, Speaker and Six Members of the Mayoral Committee are appointed 
fulltime. 

Cllr. BL Mahlangu Directly Elected 
Cllr. LV Maogwe Directly Elected 
Cllr. B Setlhabetsi   Directly Elected 
Cllr. G Kgabo  Directly Elected 
Cllr. KD Tshite  Directly Elected 
Cllr. P    Maleke  Directly Elected 
Cllr. MM Mkandawira Directly Elected 
Cllr. DJ Molapo  Directly Elected 
Cllr. OR Moirwagale Directly elected  
(resigned 31st /08/2017 and replaced by Cllr.KG Sereko) 
Cllr. MM Mokomele-Mothibi Directly Elected 
(Passed on 28/09/2017 and replaced by Cllr. CE Tladinyane) 

Directly Elected 
Directly Elected    
Naledi Local Municipality  
Naledi Local Municipality 
Naledi Local Municipality 
Mamusa Local Municipality 
Mamusa Local Municipality 
Mamusa Local Municipality 
Kagisano Local Municipality 
Kagisano Local Municipality 
Kagisano Local Municipality 
 Kagisano Local Municipality 
Lekwa Teemane Local Municipality 
Lekwa Teemane Local Municipality 
Greater Taung Local Municipality 
Greater Taung Local Municipality 
Greater Taung Local Municipality 
Greater Taung Local Municipality 
Greater Taung Local Municipality 

Cllr. ETL Mocumi 
Cllr. ME Keetile  
Cllr. OR Modise 
Cllr. JA Adonis  
Cllr. AN Bareng  
Cllr. SDJ Strydom   
Cllr. CP Herbst  
Cllr. LV Molefe 
Cllr. MM Diphikwe   
Cllr. TM Lenkopane   
Cllr. TC Loabile  
Cllr. BR Bareng 
Cllr. MW Moseswa   
Cllr. E van Biljon  
Cllr. K Mamapula 
Cllr. OJ Balebanye  
Cllr. MV Mosinkiemang 
Cllr. TP Sebe   
Cllr. T Tlhaganyane   
Cllr. MKI Olifant 
Cllr. DA Itumeleng   
Cllr. SDJ Mothibedi   

Greater Taung LocalMunicipality 
Greater Taung Local Municipality 
Greater Taung Local Municipality 
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POLITICAL DECISION-TAKING 
All council meetings are run according to the approved Standing Rules of Orders. These set 
out how the council meeting should be run, how you can propose motions or pass resolutions 
and how decisions will be made. The speaker or chairperson of the council decides whether 
anyone is breaking the Standing Orders and is responsible for keeping order. 

The political decision-making is done in the following manner: 
1. The Corporate Services Department is responsible and ensures that the agendas is

prepared  before meetings and any committee reports, petitions or motions have to 
appear on an agenda before they can be discussed and must be received by all 
Council at least seven (7) days before. 

2. When an issue comes up for discussion at a council meeting it is often referred to a
committee or to the Mayoral Committee for further discussion and a deadline is given
for when a report should be made.

3. If the matter is referred to a committee the committee will report to Mayoral
Committee. The Mayoral Committee will consider the issue and either support their 
recommendations or put opposing   recommendations forward to the council meeting. 

4. The council will then resolve on the matter. Most council decisions are taken after a
committee or Mayoral Committee held its meeting and recommend to council. When 
council agrees by a majority resolution, the recommendation becomes a resolution of 
council. 

Councillors at any stage put forward motions to call for or propose something emanating from 
any decision taken by the administration or council itself. It is a useful tool to use especially if 
the administration is not co-operating with council, since council motions cannot be ignored. 
Any Councillor may propose a motion in council and in some cases the motion may be 
passed without being referred for further discussion. Once passed the motion becomes a 
resolution of Council. 
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POLITICAL DECISION-TAKING 
IMPLEMENTATION OF COUNCIL RESOLUTIONS BY DEPARTMENTS 

For 2017/2018 Council has resolved on 282 resolutions to be implemented however some of 
the above resolutions were referred back.   

DEPARTMENTS NO. OF 
RESOLUTION

S 

FOR 
2017/2018 

NO. OF 
RESOLUTIONS 

IMPLEMENTE
D 2017/2018 

NO. OF 
RESOLUTIONS 

WORK IN 
PROGRESS 
2017/2018 

NO. OF RESOLUTIONS 

NOT IMPLEMENTED 
2017/2018 & WHY? 

1. CORPORATE
SERVICES

68 66 2 0 

2. EXECUTIVE
SUPPORT Not 

Submitted 
Not 
Submitted 

Not Submitted Not Submitted 

3. ENGINEERING
SERVICES 61 Not 

Submitted 
Not Submitted Not Submitted 

4. COMMUNITY
SERVICES 29 26 0 3 

5. ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT,
TOURISM &
AGRICULTURE

22 20 1 1 

6. BUDGET &
TREASURY
OFFICE

Not 
Submitted 

Not 
Submitted 

Not Submitted Not Submitted 

7. INTERNAL
AUDIT 8 8 0 0 

8. PLANNING &
DEVELOPMENT 7 7 0 0 

31



 ADMINISTRATIVE GOVERNANCE 

INTRODUCTION TO ADMINISTRATIVE GOVERNANCE 

In terms of Part 7 Section 82 of the Municipal Structures Act 117 of 1998 as amended the 
municipality must appoint the Municipal Manager who is the head of administration and 
therefore the Accounting Officer. In terms of Section 55 of the Municipal Systems Act, 32 of 
2000 (as amended) the Municipal Manager as head of administration is subject to policy 
directives of the municipal council responsible for the formation and development of an 
efficient, economical, effective and accountable administration and must manage the 
municipality in accordance with all legislation and policies pertaining to Local Government. 

In terms of section 50 of the Municipal Systems Act 32 of 2000 as amended, the Council in 
consultation with the Municipal Manager must appoint managers who are directly responsible 
to the Municipal Manager who must have relevant and requisite skills and expertise to 
perform the duties associated with the posts they each occupy. 

The Municipal Manager, Mr. Jerry Mononela is the Accounting Officer of the District 
Municipality and is supported by seven (7) Senior Managers and their appointments are for a 
fixed term. The Municipal Manager is also accountable for all the income and expenditure 
and all assets as well as the discharge of liabilities of the municipality including proper and 
diligent compliance with the Municipal Finance Management Act, 53 of 2003. Each Senior 
Manager who reports directly to the Municipal Manager are delegated the functions which the 
Municipal Manager may delegate to them and are responsible for all those matters delegated 
to them including financial management as well as discipline and capacitating of officials 
within their areas of responsibility and compliance to all legislation governing Local 
Government, its policies and By-laws. 

The Senior Managers forms the Senior Management Team and they are all accountable to 
the Municipal Manager in terms of strategic management and oversight of their departments. 
All budget expenditures in each department are managed by the Senior Manager in order to 
ensure that service delivery matters are handled promptly. 
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Municipal 
Manager 

Mr. J. Mononela 

Forming and developing an economic, efficient and 
accountable administration; 
Implementing and managing the District 
Municipality's performance management system; 
Coordinating and implementing the District 
Municipality's IDP; 
Managing the Municipality's administration in 
accordance with the Constitution, the Local 
Government Structures Act, the Municipal Systems 
Act, the Municipal Finance; Management Act and 
all other national and provincial legislation 
applicable to the District Municipality; 
Managing provision of services to the local 
community in a sustainable and equitable Manner; 
Facilitating participation of the local community in 
the affairs of the District Municipality; 
Developing and maintaining a system to access 
community satisfaction with Municipal Services; 
Appointing, managing, effectively utilizing and 
training staff and maintaining staff discipline; 
Promoting sound labour relations and compliance 
by the District Municipality with applicable labour 
legislation; 
Advising political structures and political office 
bearers of the District Municipality, managing 
communications between them,  administering, 
implementing council resolutions and carrying out 
their decisions; 
Administering and implementing the District 
Municipality's by-laws and other legislation; 
Being responsible for all income and expenditure of 
the District Municipality, all assets, the discharge of 
all liabilities of the District Municipality and proper 
and diligent compliance with applicable Municipal 
Finance Management legislation.  

Implementing strategic goals of the District 
Municipality through co-operation and innovative 
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Chief Financial 
Officer 

Ms. S Phatudi’ s 
contract came to 
its conclusion on 
the 31st 
December 2017 
and Ms. Dipuo 
Motshelabola 
was appointed 
Acting CFO with 
effect from 
January 2018 

Reporting directly to the Municipal Manager on key 
departmental activities. 
Overall management of the Budget & Treasury 
Office/Department. Implement the Integrated 
Development Plan (IDP) as well as strategic goals 
of the Budget & Treasury Office/Department.  
Implement departmental Service Delivery Budget 
Implementation Plan (SDBIP).  
Develop and implement key strategic / business 
plans including Supply Chain Management, 
Revenue Management, Expenditure Management 
and Budget & Reporting.  
Prepare and implement municipal budget.  
Prepare Annual Financial Statements and other 
mandatory financial management reports.  
Manage Departmental budget, human resources & 
other resources in accordance with local 
government legislation;  
Establish, operate and maintain support structures, 
processes and systems; 
Direct and control key deliverables and outcomes 
for the department; Liaise with internal and external 
stakeholders;  
Facilitate stakeholder participation and 
involvement;  
Ensure legislative, regulatory, policy, practices and 
operating standards compliance;  
Management and monitoring of all income, 
expenditure, assets and Liabilities; Cash-flow 
management;  
Ensure implementation of GAMAP & GRAP 
Standards;  
Ensure the development of appropriate Strategies, 
Policies and plans for all relevant areas in the 
Department linked to the IDP and that will also 
have a measurable positive impact on the financial 
performance;   
Develop and implement Supply Chain Management 
Policy, specific procedures, systems and controls;  
Ensure timely preparation of Budget and Financial 
Statements; Implement all financial policies and 
ensure they comply with applicable legislation and 
National Treasury Regulations. 
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Engineering & 
Technical 
Service  

Mr. W Jood’  
contract came to 
its conclusion on 
the 31st 
December 2017 
and Mr. Fred 
Cawood was 
appointed 
Acting Senior 
Manager: 
Engineering and 
Technical 
Services with 
effect from 
January 2018 

To manage the Engineering, PMU and Town 
Planning Department of the municipality. 
Assist the CFO to compile annual projects budgets 
To assist the Council to draw up and implement 
annual strategic plans 
To ensure compliance by all Water Service 
Providers 
Ensure water and sewer effluent quality compliance 
to adhere to the Department of Water Affairs 
(DWA) Blue Drop and Green Drop requirements 
respectively. 
Ensure implementation of the council Free Basic 
Services (FBS) Policy. 
Ensures that all required licensing and permitting of 
all raw water abstraction and sewer effluent will be 
done and upheld.   
Ensure that Water Service development Plan 
(WSDP), By-Laws and tariffs are regularly updated.  
Approve technical reports of water, sanitation and 
roads projects in alignment with respective 
Municipal IDP’s and Regional provincial Growth 
and Development Plan.   
Ensure that all projects are implemented using the 
EPWP principles.   
Ensures compliance to all legal aspects and 
conditions, required from different spheres of 
Government.     
Manage all contract administration of all projects 
implemented by council.  
Manage and control the approved budget of 
engineering department.   
Be prepared to serve on the Bid Adjudication 
Committee or Bid Evaluation Committee as and 
when required by the Municipal Manager.   
Maintain Project Performance data on a National 
Database.   

Snr Manager: 
Executive 
Support 

Mrs.  M Moncho 
and she was 
appointed 
Acting Municipal 
Manager with 
effect from 
September till 
end November 

Responsible for monitoring the day to day activities 
in the office of the Executive Mayor.   
Liaison with other departments in the organization 
and monitoring of programmes related to service 
delivery.  
Oversee the development, implementation and 
review of the communication strategy for the 
municipality. 
Ensure consistent communication between the 
office of the Executive Mayor and internal and 
external stakeholders regarding programmes 
pursued by the municipality.  
Develop, implement and review policies with regard 
to special programmes such as youth development, 
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2017 older persons, disability rights, children’s rights, 
women empowerment and gender equality, HIV 
and AIDS, STI and T.B. Programme, sports 
development and moral regeneration. Ensure 
advocacy for and monitoring of the mainstreaming 
of the designated programmes developmental 
targets into municipal sectorial plans as well as 
performance contracts of section 56 Managers. 
Prepare and report on the SDBIP and manage 
personnel in the office of the Executive Mayor. 

Snr Manager: 
Corporate 
Service 

Mrs. D 
Dambuza’ 
contract came to 
its conclusion on 
the 31st 
December 2017 
and Ms. Edith 
Mogwera was 
appointed 
Acting Senior 
Manager: 
Corporate 
Services with 
effect from 
January 2018 till 
June 2018. 

Managing and controlling various line functions 
within the Directorate which include general 
administration, Human Resources, Council 
Support, Corporate strategy, Information 
Technology and Communications, and Security 
Services;  
Leading, directing and managing staff within the 
Department so that they are able to meet their 
objectives;  
Staff control and discipline;  
Rendering Support by advising and overseeing all 
matters of procedures relating to minutes and 
resolutions of the Council Committees;  
Planning, organising, coordinating and controlling 
the activities of management and administration 
section;  
Providing administrative support to political Office-
bearers;  
Managing and controlling the compilation and 
execution of the departmental capital and operating 
budget;  
Executing any function delegated by the municipal 
Manager in terms of powers and delegations in the 
relevant legislation and related to the functions of 
this post; 
Administering records/archives registry, skills 
development, legal matters and employment 
Equity;  
Overseeing the execution of the IDP Programmes 
attached to the Department and monitoring 
individual performance management;  
Developing, implementing Collective Agreements 
and managing strategic goals, policies, procedures 
and plans; aligned with strategic goals of the district 
municipality through cooperation and innovation 
teamwork;  
Ensuring proper administration of Council 
delegation System;  
Providing secretarial services to Council and its 
Committees 
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Chief Audit 
Executive  

Mr.  F. Buys  

 

 

Establish policies and procedures for the District 
Internal Audit Shared Services, manage audits and 
administrative functions in the District Municipality 
and its Locals;  
Ensure that all Local Municipalities within the 
district comply with the relevant legislation;  
Manage the compilation of the strategic and annual 
plans in relation to the IDP, 
Perform continuous risk assessment for the entire 
district;  
Conduct special investigations at the request of 
management and municipal councils of respective 
municipalities;  
Report to the Municipal Managers and Shared 
Service Audit Committee;  
Audit projects and performance of the district 
municipality and its locals;  
Assist municipalities in the implementation and 
upgrading of internal controls for quality assurance,  
Liaison at executive level with relevant 
stakeholders;  
Manage the directorate budget planning, 
implementation and budget review to support 
priorities and the deliverables. 

 

Ms. Masego 
Makhonofane 
her contract 
came to its 
conclusion on 
the 31st 
December 2017 
and Ms. Agnes 
Moheta was 
appointed 
Acting Senior 
Manager: EDTA 
with effect from 
January 2018 to 
June 2018 

 

 

 

 

 

Promotion of Local Economic Development and 
Agricultural organizations, 
Promote and market tourism attraction centers 
Tourism establishments as well as communities in 
the district to implement and manage development 
oriented, achievement driven community projects in 
an affordable, sustainable and accountable 
manner.  
Manage departmental personnel;  
Develop and manage LED, Agricultural and 
Tourism strategies in line with DGDS, PGDS, 
NSGS, ASSGISA and JIPSA.  Prepare and submit 
reports on EDTA department‘s Service Delivery 
and Budget Implementation Plan (SDBIP). 
Implement adequate community participation 
strategies,  
Source advisory services from economic advisory 
bodies and link them with SMMEs and community 
organizations.  
Maintain and improve current service delivery 
mechanism.  
Source funding for economic development projects 
through donors and investors. 
Facilitate partnerships between investors, donors 
and business community in the district.  
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Snr Manager: 
Community 
Service 

Mr. V. 
Tlhabanelo 

To provide strategic management and leadership to 
the Department that includes, Municipal Health 
Services, Disaster Management and Fire Fighting 
services to the entire district;  
Ensure co-ordination, integration and uninterrupted 
provision of Community Services;  
Integrate service delivery in the context of Council’s 
IDP and oversee implementation;  
Participate in the IDP, SDBIP and Budget 
processes of the district municipality; 
Establishing a partnership with Governmental and 
non-Governmental stakeholders/role players 
dealing with environmental health, fire and public 
disasters; 
Manage the directorate budget planning, 
implementation and budget review to support 
priorities and the deliverables; update Council’s by-
laws and relevant policies. 
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COMPONENT B: INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS 

INTRODUCTION TO CO-OPERATIVE GOVERNANCE AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
RELATIONS 

  Section 40-41 of the Constitution states that the government of the Republic of South Africa 
is constituted as national, provincial and local spheres of government which are distinctive, 
interdependent and interrelated. These spheres of government must observe and adhere to 
the principles of cooperative government and intergovernmental relations, by ensuring the 
well-being of the people of the Republic, provide effective, transparent, accountable and 
coherent government, co-operate with one another in mutual trust and good faith by:- 

Section 41(1) (h), require the spheres of government to co-operative with one another in 
mutual interest and good faith by:- 
- Fostering friendly relations 
- Assisting and supporting one another 
- Informing one another of, and consulting one another on matters of common interest 
- Coordinating their actions and legislation with one another 
- Adherer to the agreed procedures and  
- Avoiding legal proceedings against one another. 

The Intergovernmental Relations Framework Act 13 of 2005 (IGR) established an institutional 
framework to facilitate intergovernmental relations across the three spheres of government, 
which includes Presidential Coordinating Council at National; Premiers Coordinating Council 
at Provincial and Mayoral IGR Forum at Municipal level as a platform to engage on matters of 
mutual interest to provide sustainable service delivery to communities.  

The expected sustainable service delivery to be delivered are informed by legislated 
developmental plans of government across the three spheres namely:- national development 
plan(vision 2030); provincial development plan and integrated development. National and 
Provincial Governments are by legislation and other measures required to support and 
strengthen the capacity of municipalities to enable them to perform their functions. 
Intergovernmental Relations in this instance, is the right platform created by law makers 
(National Assembly) to involve all stakeholders in pursuit of realising the objectives of the 
national development plan as informed by provincial and local needs. 
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 INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS 

NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS 

Since 1994, a number of intergovernmental relations instruments were established out of 
which most of them stood the test of time, despite challenges they have experienced over a 
period of time. It is imperative that in South Africa as a unitary and democratic state, 
intergovernmental relations instruments that are put in place are observed and made use of 
by all spheres of government to unleash available resources according to different 
competencies, to improve the life of communities. 

Knowing this golden opportunity provided for by legislation, Dr. Ruth Segomotsi Mompati 
District Municipality is fully participating at national IGR Forum structures and made their 
voice heard. To mention but few, emanating from division of powers and functions to the 
three spheres of government, the district is in constant engagement and consultation at IGR 
level with Department of Cooperative Government and Traditional Affairs; MINMEC 
meetings; national treasury; public works (EPWP); water and sanitation and rural 
development and land reform both politically and administratively. 
The discussion of the above-mentioned IGR platforms and others, find expression at 
extended cabinet IGR which advices cabinet when it finalizes the fiscal framework and 
division of revenue, on which the Medium-Term Expenditure Framework (MTEF) budgets are 
based and Presidential Coordinating Council among other IGR instruments that are in place.   
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PROVINCIAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS 

As require by chapter three of the Constitution; IGR Framework Act and other pieces of 
legislation the provincial government of the North West have managed to establish IGR 
structures in the form of North West Premier’s Coordinating Council and the Broader Extech 
where the Dr. Ruth Segomotsi Mompati District Municipality is fully participating politically and 
administratively. In addition to the above, line departments of the province and those of the 
district like provincial treasury and budget and treasury does have their 
meetings/engagements to discuss matters of mutual interest for coherent planning and 
provision of services to communities.  

The Constitution of the country allows local authorities to organize forms of municipal 
association which gave birth to a national organization, the South African Local Government 
Association (SALGA) with its nine provincial associations. The main aim and objective is to 
have effective representation of local government in the legislative processes and service 
delivery issues at all spheres of government. The District through its IGR unit participates in 
SALGANW IGR Practitioners Committee. 

RELATIONSHIPS WITH MUNICIPAL ENTITITIES 

No municipal entities in the Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati District Municipality. 
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DISTRICT INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS 
 
DISTRICT INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS 
 
Since the establishment of the IGR unit in 2009 by the District Municipality, IGR structures 
were put in place and stakeholders are involved and engaged on matters of mutual interest 
for the benefit of the community. The interaction of the district at all IGR platforms across the 
spheres of government despite challenges has made it possible for the municipality to 
implement most of its Constitutional obligations with limited resources it has. The below table 
is an indication of the efforts made during the year under review that indeed IGR in this 
district is attempting its best to find its  footing with a view to have coherent planning and 
development in the district. 
 
For purpose of strengthening IGR in the district, the Executive Mayor took a decisive decision 
to localize Mayoral IGR Forum Meeting wherein members of the Mayoral Committee and 
Management of both local and District are involved to address specific issues with specific 
local municipality and traditional leaders in that locality 

DATES OF MEETINGS 
2017/2018 

TYPE OF A MEETING 

 

MATTERS DISCUSSED 

01 February 2018 Municipal Managers IGR 
Forum Meeting 

The Executive Mayor 
presented to stakeholders her 
decision and importance of 
Localizing Mayoral IGR Forum 
Meetings with a view to 
strengthen participation at 
local level by stakeholders and 
charting her expectation during 
the 2018/2019 budget and IDP 
roadshow from sectors. 

Localizing Mayoral IGR Forum 
Meetings with a view to 
strengthen participation at 
local level by stakeholders and 
charting her expectation during 
the 2018/2019 budget and IDP 
roadshow from sectors. 

 

20 March 2018 Municipal Managers IGR 
Forum Meeting 

STK Consulting Engineers 
appointed by the District 
Municipality presented an 
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update on Rural Roads Asset 
Management System 
(RRAMS). 

30 November 2017 
Municipal Managers IGR 
Forum Meeting To make use 
of the platform to rope in 
traditional leadership for their 
views and interests to be taken 
into consideration. 

Mayors and Municipal 
Managers of all municipalities 

16 November 2017 Mayoral IGR Forum Meeting 
with Traditional Leadership in 
Taung  

To discuss the importance of 
Intergovernmental Relations 
(IGR) and the involvement of 
Magosi. 

Sharing of information on 
developmental plans and 
progress made, especially the 
2017/2018 budget allocation to 
their local municipality. 

24 October 2017(14H00) Mayoral Localized IGR Forum 
Meeting for Naledi Local 
Municipality. 

The purpose was to establish 
localized IGR Forum Meeting 
at local level to:- 

• Strengthen IGR 
relations and broaden
participation by 
involving Members of
the Mayoral and
management of both
local and district
municipality.

To have ample time for the 
local municipality to engage 
directly with the district on 
service delivery challenges 
facing the local municipality. 

24 October 2017(9H00) Mayoral IGR Forum Meeting 
with Traditional Leadership in 

To discuss the importance of 
Intergovernmental Relations 
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Ganyesa. (IGR) and the involvement of 
Magosi. 

Sharing of information on 
developmental plans and 
progress made, especially the 
2017/2018 budget allocation to 
their local municipality. 

21 September 2017 Municipal Managers IGR 
Forum Meeting 

In the main this was an 
introductory meeting to 
Acting/Municipal Managers 
after the end of term of most 
Municipal Managers in the 
district as a result of the 
August 2016 local government 
elections. Secondly, the 
following national departments 
were invited to make 
presentations on issues of 
service delivery to the 
community of the district as 
required by section 154 of the 
Constitution:- 

• National Department of
Public works-(EPWP)

• National Department of
Cooperative
Government and 
Traditional Affairs( 
Indigent Registers)

• Rural Development and
Land Reform (pledging
support to
municipalities on 
programs that will
stimulate economic
development)

Presidency (Relocations of 
Pomfret community to 
Kagisano Molopo and Naledi 
Local Municipalities in the 
district). 

44



15 August 2017(14H00) 
Mayoral Localized IGR Forum 
Meeting for Lekwa-Teemane 
Local Municipality  

The purpose was to establish 
localized IGR Forum Meeting 
at local level to:- 

Strengthen IGR relations and 
broaden participation by 
involving Members of the 
Mayoral Committee and 
management of both local and 
district municipality. 

To have ample time for the 
local municipality to engage 
directly with the district on 
service delivery challenges 
facing the local municipality. 

15 August 2017 (09H00) Mayoral Localized IGR Forum 
Meeting for Mamusa Local 
Municipality 

The purpose was to establish 
localized IGR Forum Meeting at 
local level to:- 

Strengthen IGR relations and 
broaden participation by involving 
Members of the Mayoral and 
management of both local and 
district municipality. 

To have ample time for the local 
municipality to engage directly 
with the district on service 
delivery challenges facing the 
local municipality. 
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CHALLENGES  
 
Having demonstrated above on efforts made by the District Municipality to ensure that 
cooperative government and intergovernmental relations are observed, it can be argued that 
IGR system have a number of challenges that has a negative impact on the intended ultimate 
goal of coherent planning and development.  
 
Chief among the challenges is that there is a perception that IGR is the responsibility of 
municipalities only and that there is no clear binding roles and decisions for national and 
provincial departments that operate in the district. This results in some sectors delegating 
low-ranking officials to IGR Form Meetings.  
 
Presently, IGR Forum Meetings do not make binding decisions wherein there is no 
consequence management against any sector that does not comply with the agreed program, 
or that has failed to present its developmental plan at the meeting as requested. 
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COMPONENT C: PUBLIC ACCOUNTABILITY AND PARTICIPATION 

OVERVIEW OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTABILITY AND PARTICIPATION 

Community participation in local government affairs gives expression to the democratic 
principles and values of our Constitution and the political rights of the individual as 
entrenched in section 19 of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996. 

The Municipal Council encourages participation of the community and community 
organisations in local government matters and adheres to the democratic values and 
principles as enshrined in the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 which 
governs the public administration.  

Public participation is a principle that is accepted by all spheres of government in South 
Africa. Participation is important to make sure that government addresses the real needs of 
communities in the most appropriate way.  

Public participation also helps to build an informed and responsible citizenry with a sense of 
ownership of government developments and projects. It allows municipalities to get buy-in 
and to develop partnerships with stakeholders. 

The Municipal Council encourages participation of the community and community 
organisations in the local government matters and to adhere to the democratic values and 
principles as enshrined in the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 which 
governs the public administration through: 
  -  The preparation, implementation and review of the IDP  
  -  Establishment, implementation and review of performance management system  
  - Monitoring and review of the performance, including the outcomes and impact of such 
performance and preparation of the municipal budget. 
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2.4 PUBLIC MEETINGS 

COMMUNICATION, PARTICIPATION AND FORUMS 

It's nearly impossible to go through a day without the use of communication. The process of 
communication cannot be regarded as a phenomenon which simply 'happens', but should be 
seen as a process which involves participants negotiating their role in this process, whether 
consciously or unconsciously. Communication is a two-way process in which there is an 
exchange of thoughts, opinions, or information by speech, writing, or symbols towards a 
mutually accepted goal or outcome. "Purpose of effective communication is sustaining the on-
going work with maximum efficiency” Communication will help build good relationships with 
team members, sponsors, and other key stakeholders, to increase the likelihood of project or 
any activity success. 

The Council also responds to the people‘s needs and encourage the public to participate in 
policy-making through IDP Representative Forums and other intergovernmental Forums 
established by different departments within Dr Ruth S Mompati District Municipality. The Council 
fosters transparency by providing the public with timely, accessible and accurate information by 
publishing information in the local newspapers, using three predominant official languages of 
Setswana, Afrikaans and English. From time to time the municipality makes use of radio 
broadcast to spread service delivery-oriented messages to communities. The Municipal Council 
also engages the community through consultation in matters such as the IDP, budget, 
performance management, provision of services etc. A key part of the municipality’s annual 
plans should be how to communicate all this to the people and how to involve them in decisions 
or as partners. The municipality has developed draft public participation and draft 
communication strategies. 

Both strategies take into consideration the approved IDP, MTREF Budget and the SDBIP and 
set out where and how communication and public participation should play a role to ensure that 
information is disseminated effectively to the public. The communication strategy is used to 
ensure that the Council provides regular report back and accounts to the communities about 
Council’s decisions, plans and budgets. It ensures that the public is informed about new 
services, developments and policies and as such provides a platform for the communities to be 
partners for the delivery of government services. 

There are also Executive Mayoral outreach programmes where the Executive Mayor in her 
capacity visits communities to listen to their needs and challenges they are encountering in their 
different villages. We have also hosted the District Budget Speech Address where all 
stakeholders attended and made inputs to the budget speech. The benefit of these processes is 
to provide Executive Mayor, Councillors and administrative arm with an opportunity to interact 
with communities so as make informed decisions. 
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The council also respond to the people‘s needs and encourage the public to participate in policy-
making through IDP Representative Forums. The Council fosters transparency by providing the 
public with timely, accessible and accurate information by publishing information in the local 
newspapers using three predominant officials’ languages of Setswana, Afrikaans and English. 
From time to time the municipality make use of radio broadcast to spread service delivery-
oriented messages to the community.  

The District Municipality also interacts with members of the communities during Setsokotsane 
Programme. The District Municipality, through its Communication Unit share Municipal Projects 
with communities. Members of communities also use this platform to register their Service 
Delivery Challenges, where they are noted and referred to the relevant departments for 
interventions. All complaints that are register during community participation and Setsokotsane 
events are presented to the Council and Provincial Department of Local Government and 
Human Settlement.  

The forums aimed to provide a platform for municipal communicators to deliberate on progress 
and challenges confronting provincial and local government. It further aimed to enable and 
support municipal communicators in their important role to inform and educate citizens, and to 
provide a platform for sharing of municipal innovations and good practices in relations to 
communications that will lead to improvements in the sectors. There are two “District 
Newsletters” issued on annual basis and utilization of social media for public participation. 
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WARD COMMITTEES 

 
Ward Committees are managed by respective Local Municipalities and the District 
Municipality assist in coordinating trainings to the Ward Committees. A Ward Committee is 
established in each ward in order to assist and advise Ward Councillor with regard to service 
delivery matters and further improve public participation. Ward Committees are mainly 
advisory committees which can make recommendations on any matter affecting the ward 
within a municipality. The Municipal Council makes the rules that guide Ward Committee 
Members, how often should meetings be held and the circumstances under which a member 
of a Ward Committee can be removed. 
 
The purpose of a Ward Committee is to: 
 
     - Get public participation from the community in order to inform council decision making,  
     - Make sure that there is more effective communication between the council and the 
community,  
     - Assist the ward councillor with consultation and report-back to the community and 
     - Advise the ward councillor on service delivery and developmental projects in the 
community.  
 
Structure of Ward Committee: 
 
A Ward Committee consists of a Ward Councillor as elected in the local government elections 
and a maximum of 10 people from the Ward who are elected by the community they serve. 
The Councillor is the Chairperson of the Ward Committee. Members of the Ward Committee 
must participate as volunteers and are only getting stipends.  
 
Roles and Responsibility of the District Municipality  
 
The District Municipality has to play its legislative role in supporting and monitoring the Ward 
Committees through the Office of the District Speaker. 
 

 
The total number of Ward Committee’s in our District Municipality is 65 and they have been 
launched and consists of 650 members in total.   
 

Municipality Number of Wards  
Greater Taung  24 
Mamusa 9 
Naledi 10 
Lekwa-Teemane 8 
Kagisano/Molopo 15 
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Public Meetings 

Nature and purpose 
of meeting 

Date of 
events 

Number of 
Participating 

Municipal 
Councillors 

Number of 
Participating 

Municipal 
Administrators 

Number of 
Community 
members 
attending 

Issue 
addressed 
(Yes/No) 

Dates and 
manner of 
feedback 
given to 

community 
IDP Working Session None  None None  None None None 
IDP District Wide 
Representative Forum, 
to give feedback to 
communities through 
ward committees 

10/11/2017 63 15 112 Yes IDP Rep 
Forum 

One IDP Mayoral 
Road-Show was held 
in Naledi Local 
Municipality, to enable 
the executive mayor to 
allow communities to 
give inputs to the 
IDP/Budget  

19/04/2018 10 18 214 Yes Feedback is 
given through 
ward meetings 
and IDP Rep 
Forum 
Meetings. 

Approval of the final 
2016/17 IDP in 
DRRSM District 
Council Chamber to 
allow communities 
to witness the 
approval of the IDP 

30/05/2018 30 27 115 Yes State of the 
District 
Address 

MPAC: Public 
Consultative Meeting 
on the 2016/17 Annual 
Report at Kagisano/ 
Molopo LM  

20 February 
2018 

10 23 171 Yes Feedback is 
given through 
public 
participation 
meetings 

MPAC: Public 
Consultative Meeting 
on the 2016/17 Annual 
Report at Naledi LM 

28 February 
2018 

5 9  98 Yes 
Feedback is 
given through 
public 
participation 
meetings 

Public Consultative on 
the 2016/17 Annual 
Report Meeting at 
Mamusa LM;  

22 February 
2018 

9 12 234 Yes 
Feedback is 
given through 
public 
participation 
meetings 

MPAC: Public 
Consultative Meeting 
on the 2016/17 Annual 
Report at Lekwa-
Teemane LM 

27 February 
2018 

6 15 220 Yes 
Feedback is 
given through 
public 
participation 
meetings 

MPAC: Public 
Consultative Meeting 
on the 2016/17 Annual 
Report at Greater 
Taung LM was 

21 February 
2018 

0 0 0 0 
Feedback is 
given through 
public 
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Public Meetings 

Nature and purpose 
of meeting 

Date of 
events 

Number of 
Participating 

Municipal 
Councillors 

Number of 
Participating 

Municipal 
Administrators 

Number of 
Community 
members 
attending 

Issue 
addressed 
(Yes/No) 

Dates and 
manner of 
feedback 
given to 

community 
disrupted by members 
of the community. 

participation 
meetings 

COMMENT ON THE EFFECTIVENESS OF THE PUBLIC MEETINGS HELD: 

Participation is one of the cornerstones of our democracy and has equal benefits for 
politicians, officials and civil society:  

1. Consultation will help council make more appropriate decisions based on the real
needs of people. 

2. The more informed people are, the better they will understand what government is
trying to do and what the budget and resource limitations are. 

3. Councillors can only claim to be accountable if they have regular interactions with the
people they represent and if they consult and report back on key council decisions. 

4. Government cannot address all the development needs on its own and partnerships
are needed with communities, civil society and business to improve service delivery and 
development. 
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2.5 IDP PARTICIPATION AND ALIGNMENT 

IDP Participation and Alignment Criteria* Yes/No 

Does the municipality have impact, outcome, input, output indicators?  Yes 

Does the IDP have priorities, objectives, KPIs, development strategies?  Yes 
Does the IDP have multi-year targets?  Yes 
Are the above aligned and can they calculate into a score?  Yes 
Does the budget align directly to the KPIs in the strategic plan?  Yes 
Do the IDP KPIs align to the Section 56 Managers  Yes 
Do the IDP KPIs lead to functional area KPIs as per the SDBIP?  Yes 
Do the IDP KPIs align with the provincial KPIs on the 12 Outcomes  Yes 

Were the indicators communicated to the public?  Yes 
Were the four quarter aligned reports submitted within stipulated time frames?  Yes 
* Section 26 Municipal Systems Act 2000
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COMPONENT D: CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

OVERVIEW OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

Cooperative governance is the set of processes, practices, policies, laws and stakeholder 
affecting the way an institution is directed, administered or controlled. Corporate Governance 
also includes the relationship among the many stakeholders involved and the goals for the 
institution is governed and is also governed by King III & IV Code of Practice applicable 
to local government sphere. 
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2.6 RISK MANAGEMENT 

RISK MANAGEMENT 
Risk Governance 

The Dr. Ruth S. Mompati District Municipality has adopted the Risk Management Manual 
2017/2018 on 30 January 2018 Council Resolution number 152/2017/18 which consists of 
the Risk Management Framework, Policy, Strategy and Committee Charter. This forms the 
uniformed standard to be used in all Municipalities within the District.  The Dr. Ruth S. 
Mompati District Municipality has adopted the Fraud Prevention Manual 2017/2018 on30 
January 2018 Council Resolution number 153/2017/18 which consists of the Fraud and Anti-
Corruption Policy, Fraud Prevention Plan, Anti-Corruption Strategy, Whistleblowing Policy 
and Ethics Policy and Committee Charter. This forms the uniformed standard to be used in all 
Municipalities within the District.  

The Dr. Ruth Segomotsi Mompati District Municipality’s Risk Management Unit is a Shared 
Services which renders support for Risk Management in terms of Section 88 of the Municipal 
Systems Act, 32 of 2000 to all Municipalities within the District jurisdiction. The Risk 
Management Unit facilitates and co-ordinate with the Management team (Section 56 and Unit 
Managers) to review the risk register annually and update this risk registers quarterly and 
develops a risk management strategy to direct the institution’s risk management priorities. 
The Risk Registers are aligned to each Department’s Key Performance Targets.  

Line/Unit management are responsible for identifying, evaluating and managing both risks 
and opportunities in their responsibility areas, with technical and operational support provided 
by the Risk Management Unit. The Risk Management Unit also maintains the consolidated 
Institutional Risk Register and reports thereon. The District Risk Management, Fraud and 
Anti-Corruption Committee was launched in August 2015 and serves as a District Forum. The 
Risk Management, Fraud and Anti-Corruption Committee provides governance oversight 
over the entire system of risk management and furnishes the Audit and Performance 
Committee, the Accounting Officer and Council with reports of its findings and 
recommendations. The Risk Management, Fraud and Anti-Corruption Committee provides 
independent oversight over the system of risk management.    
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Risk Management Fraud and Anti-Corruption Committee 

Dr. Ruth Segomotsi Mompati District Municipality has established a Risk Management Fraud 
and Anti-Corruption Committee in terms of the Local Government: Municipal Finance 
Management Act 56 of 2003. The Risk Management Fraud and Anti-Corruption Committee is 
guided by the Committee Charter in conjunction with the Public Sector Risk Management 
Framework from the National Treasury Department and the adopted Risk Management 
Manual 2017/2018. The committee operates under terms of reference as per adopted Dr. 
Ruth Segomotsi Mompati District Risk Management Fraud and Anti-Corruption Charter. The 
primary objective of the Risk Management Fraud and Anti-Corruption Committee is to assist 
the Accounting Officer in discharging his accountability for risk management by reviewing the 
effectiveness of the Municipality risk management systems, practices and procedures, and 
providing recommendations for improvement.  

The Risk Management Fraud and Anti-Corruption Committee is a district forum with standing 
members representing each municipality (six) with in the Dr. Ruth S. Mompati District 
Municipal jurisdiction. The Committee is chaired by an appointed external professional expert 
who also represents the Risk Management Fraud and Anti-Corruption Committee at the Audit 
and Performance Committee. The Risk Management Fraud and Anti-Corruption Committee 
meet on a quarterly basis and the members, as a collective, shall possess the blend of skills, 
expertise and knowledge of each Municipality, including familiarity with the concepts, 
principles and practice of risk management, such that they can contribute meaningfully to the 
advancement of risk management within their respective Municipalities 

Risk management process 

During the period under review, Dr. Ruth S. Mompati District Municipality compiled an 
assessment register on the Top Layer SDBIP 2017/2018, before end of May 2017. The Risk 
Assessment based on the Departmental SDBIPs was facilitated and co-ordinated before end 
of June 2017. The first update of Risk Registers aligned to Departmental SDBIPs was 
conducted before end September 2017. The second update of the Risk Registers aligned to 
Departmental SDBIPs was conducted before end of December 2017 and the third updated of 
the Risk Registers aligned to Departmental SDBIPs was conducted before end of March 
2018. 

Both internal and external conditions that may impede the achievement of the goals 
expressed in the strategic plans were identified and evaluated. Based on the registers the 
Risk Management Unit compiled the Risk Management Report containing a strategy to 
manage the factors, which absent a deliberate and conscious strategy to manage them, 
could increase the institution’s risk profile. The Dr. Ruth Segomotsi Mompati District 
Municipality internal audit plan included audits designed to test the adequacy, effectiveness 
and economy of the internal control systems to counteract the effects of the significant risk 
factors.    
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Impact on institutional performance 

During the period under review, Dr. Ruth Segomotsi Mompati District Municipality’s Risk 
Management Fraud and Anti-Corruption Committee and Risk Management unit assessed the 
effectiveness of its system of risk management.  
The areas requiring improvement are receiving the required attention. The Dr. Ruth 
S. Mompati District Municipality risk management efforts are contributing positively to the 
Municipality's performance. On a residual basis, meaning that after mitigating actions were 
taken, Dr. Ruth S. Mompati District Municipality risk profile based on the main categories of 
risk is as follows: 

Area KPI Inherent Status Residual Status 

Top Ten Institutional Strategic Risk 13 21.23 Maximum 17.18 Maximu
 Engineering 30 18.93 High 14.94 Maximu
 Corporate Services 24 16.50 High 11.33 Maximu
 EDTA 22 14.62 Medium 11.67 Maximu
 Budget and Treasury Office 11 12.28 Medium 8.60 High 

Executive Support 20 15.25 High 11.28 Maximu
 Internal Audit 14 12.71 Medium 6.61 Medium 

Community Services 22 14.50 Medium 9.62 High 
Office of the MM 25 

 
12.40 Medium 12.40 Maximu

 
INSTITUTIONAL STRATEGIC RISKS 2017/2018 

Area Inherent Status Residual Status 
Landfill Sites: Compliance Section78 25 Maximum 23 Maximum 
Water Shortage (Higher Demand) 25 Maximum 23 Maximum 
Litigation Costs (Labour related 
matters) 

25 Maximum 20 Maximum 

Contract Management 25 Maximum 20 Maximum 
Inadequate budget to achieve 
objectives 

25 Maximum 20 Maximum 

Poor Information & Communication 
between different stakeholders 

25 Maximum 20 Maximum 

Failure to monitor performance 25 Maximum 20 Maximum 
Shortage of Staff (Low Morale) 25 Maximum 16 Maximum 
Poor Records Management 25 Maximum 16 Maximum 
ICT Risk – Compliance 20 Maximum 16 Maximum 
Third Party Reliance – Implementation 
of mSCOA 

20 Maximum 16 Maximum 

Unplanned Activities not contained in 
SDBIP 

20 Maximum 16 Maximum 
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Key: 

Extreme risk 
High risk 
Moderate risk 
Low risk 
Minimum risk 
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2.7 ANTI-CORRUPTION AND FRAUD 

FRAUD AND ANTI-CORRUPTION STRATEGY 

The provisions of Section 62(1) (a) (i) of the Municipal Finance Management Act stipulates 
that the Accounting Officer is responsible for ensuring that the Municipality has and maintains 
effective, efficient and transparent system of financial and risk management and internal 
control.  

Furthermore, sections 3.2.1 and 27.2.1 of the Treasury Regulations require that risk 
assessment is conducted on regular basis and a risk management strategy, which includes 
a fraud prevention plan  be used to direct internal audit effort. 

2.8 SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT 

OVERVIEW SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT 
The SCM Unit is established in terms of Chapter 11 of the MFMA and is operating from a 
centralized point.  Capacitation of the unit is an ongoing process with the main goal being to 
ensure that all the procurement processes support service delivery.  Timeous turnaround 
times are a priority number one for the SCM Unit, while ensuring adherence to laws and 
regulations.  The SCM unit guides and implements the SCM Policy of council which caters for 
three (3) bid committees.  These bid committees namely, Bid Specifications Committee 
(BSC), Bid Evaluation Committee (BEC) and Bid Adjudication Committees (BAC) are in place 
and operated effectively during the year under review. Training of SCM staff and SCM   
committees was done on a continuous basis.  Shortages of staff in the unit makes it 
impossible to implement the unit effectively meaning that other SCM components are still not 
fully functional. 
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2.9 BY-LAWS 

Community Consultations done for By-Laws were introduced by Community Services 

Portfolio Committee in the 2017/2018 financial year. 

By-laws Introduced during 2017/2018 
Newly 

Developed 
Revised Public Participation 

Conducted Prior to 
Adoption of By-
Laws (Yes/No) 

Dates of 
Public 

Participation 

By-Laws 
Gazetted* 
(Yes/No) 

Date of 
Publication 

YES YES YES Available None None 
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2.10 WEBSITES 

Municipal Website: Content and Currency of Material 
Documents published on the Municipality's / Entity's Website Yes / 

No 
Publishing 

Date 
Current annual and adjustments budgets and all budget-related 
documents 

Yes 

All current budget-related policies Yes 
The previous annual report (2016-2017) Yes January 2018 
The annual report (2017-2018)published/to be published No To be 

published 
All current performance agreements required in terms of section 
57(1)(b) of the Municipal Systems Act (2017-2018)and resulting 
scorecards 

Yes 

All service delivery agreements (2017-2018) Yes 
All long-term borrowing contracts ((2017-2018)) Yes 
All supply chain management contracts above a prescribed value 
(give value) for (2017-2018) 

Yes 

An information statement containing a list of assets over a 
prescribed value that have been disposed of in terms of section 14 
(2) or (4) during Year 1 

Yes 

Contracts agreed in (2017-2018)  to which subsection (1) of section 
33 apply, subject to subsection (3) of that section 

Yes 

Public-private partnership agreements referred to in section 120 
made in (2017-2018) 

No  No 
Agreements 

All quarterly reports tabled in the council in terms of section 52 (d) 
of MFMA 56 0F 2003 during ((2017-2018)Financial Year) 

Yes 

COMMENT MUNICIPAL WEBSITE CONTENT AND ACCESS: 

A municipal website should be an integral part of a municipality’s communication 
infrastracture and strategy. It serves as a tool for community participation, improves 
stakeholder involvelvement and facilitate stakeholders monitoring and evaluation of municipal 
peformance. Section 75 of the MFMA that the municipality place key documents and 
information on their website, including the IDP, the annual budget, adjustments budget and 
budget related documents and policies.  
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2.11 PUBLIC SATISFACTION ON MUNICIPAL SERVICES 
PUBLIC SATISFACTION LEVELS 

Not Conducted 

Satisfaction Surveys Undertaken during: 2016-2017 and 2017-2018 
Subject matter of survey Survey 

method 
Survey date No. of people 

included in 
survey 

Survey results 
indicating 
satisfaction or 
better (%)* 

Overall satisfaction with:  Not 
conducted 

 Not 
conducted 

 Not conducted  Not conducted 

(a) Municipality 
(b) Municipal Service 
Delivery 
(c) Mayor 
Satisfaction with:  Not 

conducted 
Not 
conducted 

Not conducted Not conducted 

(a) Refuse Collection 
(b) Road Maintenance 
(c) Electricity Supply 
(d) Water Supply 
(e) Information supplied by 
municipality to the public 
(f) Opportunities for 
consultation on municipal 
affairs 
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CHAPTER 3 – SERVICE DELIVERY PERFORMANCE (PERFORMANCE 
REPORT PART I) 

INTRODUCTION 
The Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati District Municipality is fulfilling its mandate as a Water 
Service Authority by ensuring that basic water and sanitation services are delivered to its 
communities in the entire district. Most of service delivery needs by communities are 
captured through regular IDP and budget roadshows which form part of the Water Services 
Delivery Plan.  In these public participation engagements, more challenges with regard to 
inadequate bulk and internal water were identified. The ever-increasing demand to cater for 
the new housing development and extension of villages is a reality and the district is bracing 
itself to conquer this battle.  

Ensuring that the district is not overwhelmed by service delivery needs, more work was 
done in sourcing funding from the Department of Water and Sanitation by submitting 
business plans on new water and sanitation reticulations, upgrading (increasing capacity) and 
refurbishment of existing infrastructure. The district has been in successful in receiving 
funding approvals for the submitted business plans, mostly from the Municipal Infrastructure 
Grant (MIG) and Water Services Infrastructure Grant (WSIG). In recognition by Department 
of Corporate Governance (DCoG) for excellent expenditure on MIG funding, an additional 
allocation of R 96million was granted to District Municipality towards the end of the financial 
year and this was the highlight of the good service delivery performance.  

In addressing provision for bulk water, more strides have been made by the District 
Municipality by implementing the Raw Water Abstraction project in Christiana to the tune of R 
84million. The phase 1 part of the bulk water supply project to cater for the new housing 
development in Geluksoord was completed by construction of the new 4ML reservoir and 
final is currently underway. The Taung Bulk Water Supply project is currently at 90% and 
after completion 11ML Water Purification Works, 3 pumpstation and 4 reservoirs will be 
constructed to supply most of villages in Greater Taung Municipality. The construction of 
Vryburg 16ML Waste Water Treatment Works is underway and is envisaged to address the 
housing development in Naledi Local Municipality. Despite recognizable progress achieved in 
delivery of services so far, budget for the operation and maintenance of water and sanitation 
infrastructure is a huge challenge.  
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COMPONENT A: BASIC SERVICES 

INTRODUCTION TO BASIC SERVICES 

The Dr Ruth S Mompati District Municipality is a Water Service Authority responsible for 
water and sanitation provision in the following five Local Municipal Areas: 

- Kagisano Molopo Local Municipality (NW397) 
- Naledi Local Municipality (NW392) 
- Mamusa Local Municipality (NW393) 
- Greater Taung Local Municipality (NW394) 
- Lekwa-Teemane Local Municipality (NW396) 

The provision for both bulk and internal water services in the District Municipality’s five local 
municipalities is making a difference in the lives of communities especially who never had 
services before. However, area such as Eksdale in Kagisano Molopo where yields from 
boreholes are very low and the quality of water is not suitable for human consumption is 
receiving water through tankering.  

The implementation for the long-term solution, though the Regional Bulk Water Scheme 
where supply of water from villages with adequate underground sources is delayed by the 
availability of funds from the Department of Water and Sanitation.  The community of Pomfret 
has been without electricity since 2014 and this has negatively affected supply of water 
whereby diesel engines are now been used in the District’s boreholes. 

The upgrading of existing bulk water and sanitation infrastructure in Lekwa Teemane 
(Christiana, Geluksoord, Boitumelong and Bloemhof), Mamusa (Ipelegeng) and Naledi 
(Vryburg Treatment Works) in response to the current and future housing development is 
progressing well 
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3.1. WATER PROVISION 

INTRODUCTION TO WATER PROVISION 

The District Municipality is continuously facing challenges with the provision of water for 
existing and new infrastructure development due to the fact the equitable share allocated by 
the National Treasury is not adequate execute this function. The drought experienced in 
Mamusa and Kagisano Molopo local municipalities has put more strain on the District where 
water tankering particularly in Mamusa LM was the only option left. In addition to the 
constrained budget, payments for the operation and maintenance of the treatment plants in 
the district are still a concern, especially the long outstanding ones. The District Municipality 
is engaging the local municipalities that are Water Service Providers to enhance their 
revenue collection. The provision of infrastructure to ensure that billing and collection for 
water and sanitation services is enhanced is done through replacement of water meters and 
leaking pipes. 

The ever-increasing demands for water in villages’ expansion, both formally or informally, is 
being addressed through provision of bulk infrastructure funded under the Regional Bulk 
Infrastructure Grant (RBIG) and the provision of internal reticulation budgeted Municipal 
Infrastructure Grant (MIG) and Water Services Infrastructure Grant. However, allocation to 
these grants by National Treasury is inadequate and therefore access to basic services is 
somewhat delayed.  

The performance of the Water Service Providers has been closely monitored and those that 
are not performing will be taken on board. Monthly coordination meetings with the Water 
Service Providers are being held where issues relating to operations improvement and 
feedback from communities are dealt with. More challenges with operation and maintenance 
of water infrastructure in Mamusa were brought forward at these meetings and plans to 
improve the situation are underway. 

In terms of the Blue Drop Certification Programme, the District Municipality need to 
adequately address water safety planning, treatment process management, drinking water 
quality compliance and asset management. The District Municipality, as the Water Service 
Authority, is coordinating compliance by the Water Service Providers to ensure the status of 
the Blue Drop improve with time.  
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Total Use of Water by Sector (cubic meters) 

  Agriculture Forestry Industrial Domestic Unaccountable 
water losses 

2017-2018 1300000 20000 1255680 12556780 250000 

2016-2017 1300000 20000 1255680 12556780 250000 
        T 3.1.2 
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COMMENT ON WATER USE BY SECTOR: 
The implementation of Regional Bulk Infrastructure Grant (RBIG) projects is ongoing in 
Greater Taung and Lekwa Teemane local municipalities. The construction of the new 11ML 
Water Purification Works with associated reservoirs, pump stations and bulk pipeline in 
Greater Taung LM is nearing its completion.  Whilst the District Municipality is still sourcing 
the budget to commence with the Mamusa Bulk Pipeline, the associated works, namely; 
Upgrading of the Raw Water Abstraction is almost complete and the Construction of the 
12ML New Water Purification Works has recently commenced. 
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Proportion of households 
with access to water points*

Proportion of households 
with access to piped water

Proportion of households 
receiving 6 kl free#

2015/2016 98 70 62
2016/2017 95 72 65
2017/2018 93 72 68

T 3.1.5

Access to Water
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Water Service Policy Objectives Taken From IDP 
Service Outline 

Service 
Targets 

2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017 2017/2018 
Target Actual Target Actual Target 

Service 
*Previous
Year 

*Previous
Year *Current Year

*Current
Year 

Current 

(i) (ii) (iii) (iv) (v) (vi) (vii) (viii) (ix) (x) 
Service Objectives 
Provision of 
Water to 
Communities 

Upgrading of 
Raw Water 
Abstraction Point 
in Christiana 
(Phase 1 & 2), 
Cost: R84million. 

Phase 1 stage 
of the project at 
90% progress 

Phase 1 
stage of 
the project 
completed 
at R42 
million. 

Commence 
with Phase 2 
stage of the 
project. 

Phase 2 stage of 
the project at 30% 
progress. 

Phase 2 of 
project at 
20% 
progress due 
to late 
approval of 
funding 
application.

Phase 2 stage 
of the project 
completed in 
April 2017. 
To ta l  p ro j ec t  
expend i t u re -  
R84 million. 

Project 
commencement with 
some delays project 
will be completed 31 
August 2018 

Provision of 
Water to 
Communities 

 Bulk Water 
Services for 
Geluksoord Ext 2 
and 3, (Phase 1 & 
2). 
Cost: 
R102million. 

- - Appoint 
contractor to 
commence 
with  Phase 
1 stage, 4ML 
reservoir 

Phase 1, 
construction 
of reservoir 
at 30% 
progress 

Phase 1, 
construction 
of reservoir at 
30% progress 

Commence with 
Phase 2, bulk 
water pipelines 
and pump 
stations. Phase 1 
was completed in 
April 2017 at 
R24million 

Complete 
Phase 2 
stage of the 
project 

Commencement of 
Phase 2, bulk water, 
pumpstation 
intended to be 
completed in 30 
September 2018 

Provision of 
Water to 
Communities 

Construction of 
new 1ML, 2.5ML 
Concrete 
Pressure Tower, 
New Concrete 
Reservoir, 2.5ML 
and Bulk Pipeline 
Cost: R295million  

Project 
completed in 
September 
2017. 

Services Provider 
appointed in 
Morokweng, 
Pitsong, Graspan, 
Mothanthanyaneng, 
Longaneng

Provision of 
Water to 
Communities 

Implementation 
of Rural Water 
Supply 
Programme 

Commence 
with 200m 
radius 
standpipes 
Water 
reticulation in 4 
villages. 

Reticulation 
commenced 
in Takapori, 
Tosca, 
Cokonyane 
& Choseng 

Water 
Reticulation  
in Takapori, 
Tosca, 
Cokonyane & 
Choseng 
Phase 1 

Commence with 
reticulation in 
Choseng Phase 
2, ,  Roma & 
Donkerhoek , 
Tshetshu   

Choseng, 
Tosca, 
Takapori, 
Cokonyane, 
Roma & 
Donkerhoek 
and 
Tshetshu 
were 

id d 

Appoint service 
providers and 
secure funding. 
Commence work  
in Kameelpits, 
Broerdersput, 
Konke & 
Madipelesa 

Complete 
reticulation in 
Madipelesa, 
Kammelpits, 
Konke & 
Broerdersput 

The appointed 
service provider to 
commence work in 
Madipelesa Phase2, 
Reivilo, Lykso, 
Broerderspruit, 
Schweizer reneke, 
P f t  Pi t Pl i
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Employees:  Water Services 
Job Level 2016/2017 2017/2018 

Employees Posts Employees Vacancies 
(fulltime 
equivalents) 

Vacancies (as a % of total posts) 

No. No. No. No. % 
0 - 3 15 15 13 2 13% 
4 - 6 1 1 1 0 0% 
7 - 9 2 2 2 0 0% 
10 - 12 0 0 0 0 0% 
13 - 15 0 0 0 0 0% 
16 - 18 0 0 0 0 0% 
19 - 20 0 0 0 0 0% 
Total 18 18 16 2 13% 
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Capital Expenditure 2017/2018: 

Engineering & PMU Services 
R' 000 

Capital Projects 

2017/2018 

Budget 
Adjustment Actual 

Expenditure 
Variance 

from original 
budget 

Total 
Project 
Value Budget 

Total All 312 321 449 018 

Greater Taung: Bulk Water Supply 
Upgrading Taung Phase2C: Raw Water 
Pipeline 

0 7 650 0 0% 64 886 

Greater Taung: Bulk Water Supply Upgrading 
Taung Phase 2D: New Treatment Works 

9 259 24 850 239 828 -20% 240 000 

Greater Taung: Bulk Water Supply 
Upgrading Taung Phase 2E: Bulk Water 
Supply 

20 740 31 250 25 866 -32% 150 367 

Greater Taung: Bulk Water Supply 
Upgrading Taung Phase 2E- Bulk 
distribution 

25 000 19 300 36 725 -20% 141 650 

Greater Taung: Bulk water supply to 
Madipelesa 

0 1 384 250 

Greater Taung: Bulk Water Supply to 
Shaleng 

0 0 3 012 +100% 3 012 

Greater Taung: Bulk Water Supply to 
Reivilo: Phase 1 

986 000 10 600.000 

Greater Taung: Bulk Water Supply to 
Reivilo: Phase 2 

0 0 

Greater Taung: Bulk & internal water 
supply to Lykso 

2 100 000 4 833 650 

Greater Taung: Bophirima Rural Water 
Supply Program 2016/19: Picong 

0 0 1 233 -82% 7 000 

Greater Taung: Bophirima Rural Water 
Supply Program 2016/19: Matlhako 1 & 2 

 0 0 10 000 0% 10 000 
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Greater Taung: Bophirima Rural Water 
Supply Program 2016/19: Molelema 

0 0        33 904 +438% 35  000 

Greater Taung: Upgrading of 
Diplankeng oxidation ponds 

           0            1 000 000           9 000 0% 9 000 

Greater Taung: Upgrading of Taung Station 
oxidation ponds 

0 0        10 000 0% 10 000 

Greater Taung: Upgrading of Pudomong 
Oxidation ponds 

0 1 000 000        33 904 +100% 35 000 

Greater Taung: Upgrading of Reivilo 
Oxidation ponds 

0 0 4 216 +100% 4 216 

Greater Taung: Bophirima Rural 
Sanitation Programme 2016/2019 - WSIG 
Funding 

     10 000 000      15 000 000 520 -93% 12 000 

Greater Taung: Bophirima Rural Water 
Supply Program 2016/19: Kameelputs 

432 000 0 1 206 -70% 12 000 

Greater Taung: Bophirima Rural Water 
Supply Program 2016/19: Karelstad 
 

0 0 1 901 -65% 12 000 

Greater Taung: Bophirima Rural 
Water Supply Program 2016/19: 
Modutong 

0 0 0 -100% N/A 

Greater Taung: Bophirima Rural 
Water Supply Program 2016/19: 
Taung Ext's  4 & 5 & 7 

             0 0      2 050 -71% 12 000 

Greater Taung: Bophirima Rural 
Sanitation Programme 
2016/2019 - MIG Funding 

35 000 000       15 000 000 1 036 -81% 21 000 

Kagisano Molopo: Bulk Water 
Implementation (Tlapeng to 
Eksdale Cluster) 

9 000 000 6 000 000 18 631 +17% 84 000 

Lekwa-Teemane: Bulk Water Services for 
Geluksoord Ext 2 and 3 & 4- Phase 1 

2 950 2 950 2 950 0% 24 000 

Lekwa-Teemane: Bulk Water Services for 
Geluksoord Ext 2 and 3 & 4- Phase 2 

14 181 23 481 24 699 +74% 75 000 
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Lekwa Teemane: Upgrading of the Water 
Treatment Works  in Christiana 

6 200 6 200 0 -100% N/A 

Lekwa Teemane: Upgrading of Sewer  
Pumpstation in Boitumelong 

0 1 419 0 0 N/A 

Lekwa Teemane: Upgrading of Sewer  
Pumpstation in Boitumelong 

0 1 291 0 0 N/A 

Lekwa Teemane: Upgrading of Sewer  
Treatment works in Bloemhof -Phase 
2(Vandalized Portion) 

4 000 12 500 3 846 -4% 12 500 

Lekwa Teemane: Boitumelong 
Outfall Sewer and Pumpstation 

0 750 718 +100% 18 537 

Lekwa Teemane: Upgrading of Sewer 
Pumpstation and Main Outfall Sewer: 

 

6 300 2 000 500 -92% 13 700 

Lekwa-Teemane: Bulk Water Supply:   New 
12ML/day Module  at Bloemhof Water 
Treatment Works 

20 000 45 156 33 228 +66% 117 600 

Lekwa-Teemane: Bulk Water Supply:   
Refurbishment of Bloemhof Water 
Treatment Works 

5 290 7 730 0 -100% 23 250 

Lekwa-Teemane: Bulk Water Supply:   New 
Raw Water Abstraction Works in Bloemhof 

14 188 14 188 12 652 -11% 51 500 

Mamusa: Augmentation of Bulk Water 
Supply to Ipelegeng Ext  4 &5 

0       1 500        1 472 +100% 1 472 

Mamusa: Bulk Water Supply to Greater 
Mamusa: Bulk Water Pipeline 

522   5 114   1 706 +227% 210 000 

Mamusa: Construction of Oxidation ponds 
in Glaudina 

4 500 4 500 762 -83% 4 500 

Mamusa: Construction of Oxidation ponds 
in Migdol

0          4 500  3 504 +100% 4 500 

Mamusa: Ipelegeng Sewer Network 
Rehabilitation  : Ext  4 &5 

4 150         2 500   4 109 -1% 4 109 

Mamusa: Upgrading of ground  water 
supply in Schweizer Reneke & Ipelegeng 

7 000 7 150 622 -91% N/A 

Mamusa: Refurbishment of Waste 
Water Treatment Works in 
Schweizer Reneke 

4 000 3 918 3 918 -2% 3 918 

Mamusa: Refurbishment of Water 
Treatment Works in Schweizer Reneke 

4 000 1 974 1 974 -51% 1 974 

Kagisano/Molopo: Rehabilitation of 
Internal Roads 

4 000 0 0 -100% N/A 
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Naledi: Stella Satellite Office 2 000 2 000 2 000 0% 2 000 

Naledi: Upgrading of Pudumong and 
Vryburg Water Purification Works, Phase 
2A 

0 2 463 2 375 +100% 54 976 

Naledi: Upgrading of Pudumong to 
Vryburg Bulk Pipeline, Phase 2B 

4 237 4 236 3 881 -8% 407 045 

Naledi: Vryburg New 16ML Waste Water 
Treatment Works 

45 000 73 050 65 431 +45% 209 000 

Naledi: Construction of New Oxidation 
ponds & outfall sewer in Stella & 

Rekgaratlhile 

5 000 1 000 0 -100% N/A 

Naledi: Water Conservation & Demand 
Management & Sewer Network in 

Vryburg 

5 000 5 209 9 730 +95% 12 500 

Naledi: Bulk Water Supply in 
Broerdersput 

7 229 7 229 712 -90% 7 229 

Naledi: Water Conservation & Demand 
Management & Sewer Network in Stella 

5 000 2 540 2 540 -49% 2 540 

Naledi: Refurbishment of Vryburg Sewer 
Works Sludge Beds, Phase 2 

0 1 572 1 572 +100% 1 572 

Naledi: Upgrading of sewer booster pump 
in Vryburg, Phase 2 

0 2 994 2 994 +100% 2 994 

 
 

COMMENT ON WATER SERVICES PERFORMANCE OVERALL: 
 
The provision of bulk water supply through RBIG funding is progressing well in Taung LM and 
the Mamusa Bulk Water Supply Scheme phases, namely; Upgrading of the Raw Water 
Abstraction Works and Construction of the 12ML/day Module at Bloemhof Water Purification 
Works are under construction 
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3.2 WASTE WATER (SANITATION) PROVISION 

INTRODUCTION TO SANITATION PROVISION 

The District Municipality is responding to basic sanitation needs of its communities by 
implementing the Rural Sanitation Programme funded through Municipal Infrastructure Grant 
(MIG) and Water Services Infrastructure Grant (WSIG).  In the end of 2016/2017 financial 
year, 2601 Double Ventilated Improved Pit toilets were installed in Kagisano Molopo LM 
(938), Greater Taung LM (1502) and Naledi LM (161).  

Over-aged Waste Water Treatment Plants are being refurbished in Mamusa and Lekwa 
Teemane local municipalities with the aim of improving the Green Drop status and also to 
comply with DWS operation standards. Disposal of sewer in Kagisano Molopo and Mamusa 
local municipalities is being addressed through provision of oxidation ponds. 

The ever-increasing demand for housing has necessitated upgrading of existing 
Pumpstations, main outfall sewer pipelines and sewer treatment plants and this has been 
achieved in the District, Lekwa Teemane Local Municipalities in particular. The construction 
of the new 16ML Waste Water Treatment Plant in Vryburg is progressing well. The limited 
conditional grants allocated to the District are hampering the implementation of the District 
planned projects and more efforts in engaging the National Treasury are required. 

Top 3 Priorities 
1. Compliance with the Environmental requirements
2. Waste Water Treatment Plants Compliance to Green Drop Certification
3. Provision of new and upgrading of existing bulk Infrastructure.
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*Households 
Description 2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/17 2017/18 

Outcome Outcome Actual Actual

No. No. No. No. 
Sanitation/sewerage: (above minimum level) 
Flush toilet (connected to sewerage) 29 987 40 319 40 292 41 700 
Flush toilet (with septic tank) 1 250 3 380 8 861 9 220 
Chemical toilet – 1 799 16 343 16 343 
Pit toilet (ventilated) 75 822 29 324 30 593 36 093 
Other toilet provisions (above min. service level) – 33 091 – - 

Minimum Service Level and Above sub-total 107 059 107 913 96 089 103 356 
Minimum Service Level and Above Percentage 95.1% 92.0% 68.1% 69.7% 
Sanitation/sewerage: (below minimum level) 
Bucket toilet 2 691 1 159 51 148 
Other toilet provisions (below min. service level) 2 819 6 046 27 762 30 957 
No toilet provisions – 2 142 17 282 13 782 
Below Minimum Service Level sub-total 5 510 9 347 45 095 44 887 
Below Minimum Service Level Percentage 4.9% 8.0% 31.9% 30.3% 
Total households 112 569 117 260 141 184 148243 
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Waste Water (Sanitation) Service Policy Objectives Taken From IDP 
Service Objectives Outline Service Targets 

 
 
 
 

(ii) 

2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017 2017/2018 

 
Target Actual Target Actual Target 

 

Service Indicators 

(i) 

*Previous Year 
 
 

(iii) 

 
 
 

(iv) 

*Previous 
Year 

(v) 

*Current 
Year 

(vi) 

 
 
 

(vii) 

*Current Year 
 
 

(viii) 

*Current 
Year 
 

(ix) 

*Following 
Year 

 
(x) 

Service Objectives 
Provision of 
Sanitation to 
communities. 

Provision of 10 000 
VIP toilets within 
standard in Kagisano 
Molopo & Greater 
Taung Local 

 

2900 VIP 
Toilets 
completed. 

3378 VIP 
toilets 
completed. 
R45 
million 

 

Install 3000 
VIP toilets 

Install 
2000 VIP 
toilets 

2746 VIP 
toilets 
installed. 

2000 double 
VIP toilets 
completed. 

Install    
3705 VIP 
toilets 

 

Provision of 
Sanitation to 
communities. 

Construction of 
16ML Waste Water 
Treatment Plant in 
Vryburg. 
R236million 

Complete bid 
documents 
including 
designs & 
drawings 

Bid 
documents 
completed 

Commence 
with 
procurement 
process for 
the 
appointment 
of contractor. 

Appoint 
contractor 

Contractor 
appointed on 
5 April 2016 

Complete Phase 
1 stage of the 
project within 
an allocated 
budget of R119 
million 

Commenc
e with 
Phase 2 
stage of 
the 
project 

Complete 
construction 
works 
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COMMENT ON SANITATION SERVICES PERFORMANCE OVERALL: 

The District Municipality is constructing  Vryburg16ML Waste Water Treatment Works that is 
taking almost 50% of MIG funding and is progressing well. Refurbishments of Waste Water 
Treatment Works in  Schweizer Reneke is complete and Bloemhof one is in progress. 

The previous program benefited over 28,000 household and made a significant difference in 
reducing Sanitation backlogs within the  district. 

The current program has benefited nearly 10, 000 households and continues to alleviate 
sanitation backlogs. One of the primary challenges with this project is mushrooming of 
communities which makes it difficult to eradicate Sanitation backlogs. 

INTRODUCTION TO ELECTRICITY 

Electricity is not a power and function of Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati District Municipality. 

COMMENT ON ELECTRICITY SERVICES PERFORMANCE OVERALL: 

Local Municipalities i.e. Naledi, Mamusa, Greater-Taung and Lekwa-Teemane performing the 
power and function. 
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3.4 WASTE MANAGEMENT (THIS SECTION TO INCLUDE: REFUSE 
COLLECTIONS, WASTE DISPOSAL, STREET CLEANING AND RECYCLING) 

INTRODUCTION TO WASTE MANAGEMENT 

The Local Municipalities (LM) is solely responsible for waste collection, waste disposal and 
street cleaning. The District Municipality (DM) is playing a supporting role to the Local 
Municipalities by improving infrastructure and equipment within the boundaries of its budget by 
way of purchasing rear end loader compactor vehicles, establishing new landfill sites, new 
solid waste transfer stations and rehabilitate and close old landfill sites. The District 
Municipality temporarily suspended its landfill projects during the 2013/2014 financial year due 
to MIG funding constraints. 

Solid Waste Service Delivery Levels (graph on excel) 
Solid Waste Service Delivery Levels (graph on excel) 

  
Hou

 Description 2015/2016 2016/17 2017/2018 
Actual   Actual Actual 

 
No.     No. No. 

Solid Waste Removal: (Minimum 
level) 

The figures are 
not available 
because the 

Local 
Municipalities 
did not report 
on the South 
African Waste 
Information 
System as 
required. 

The figures are not 
available because 
the Local 
Municipalities did 
not report on the 
South African Waste 
Information System 
as required 

44% of all households in the District have 
access to waste removal services. 
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 Households - Solid Waste Service Delivery Levels below the minimum 

    
Households 

Description 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 
 

2017/2018 
 Actual Actual Actual Original Budget Adjusted Budget Actual 

 
No. No. No. No. No. No. 

Formal Settlements The figures are 
not available 
because the 

Local 
Municipalities 
did not report 
on the South 

African 
W a s t e  

Information 
System as 
required. 

The figures are 
not available 
because the 

Local 
Municipalities 
did not report 
on the South 

African 
W a s t e  

Information 
System as 
required. 

The figures are 
not available 
because the 

Local 
Municipalities 
did not report 
on the South 

African 
W a s t e  

Information 
System as 
required. 

No budget 
available for the 
Solid Waste Unit 

No budget available for 
the Solid Waste Unit 

Informal Settlements The figures are 
not available 
because the 

Local 
Municipalities 
did not report 
on the South 

African 
W a s t e  

Information 
System as 
required. 

The figures are 
not available 
because the 

Local 
Municipalities 
did not report 
on the South 

African 
W a s t e  

Information 
System as 
required. 

The figures are 
not available 
because the 

Local 
Municipalities 
did not report 
on the South 

African 
W a s t e  

Information 
System as 
required. 

No budget 
available for the 
Solid Waste Unit 

No budget available for 
the Solid Waste Unit 
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Waste Management Service Policy Objectives Taken From IDP 

Service Objectives Outline Service Targets 2016-2017 2017-2018 2017-2018 2017-2018 
Service Indicators Target Actual Target Actual Target 

2016-2017 2017-
2018 

2017-2018 2017/2018 2018/2019 

(i) (ii) (iii) (iv) (v) (vi) (vii) (viii) (ix) (x) 
Service Objective _Solid Waste Management 
Provision of weekly 
collection service per 
household (HH) 

Proportionate reduction  
in    average weekly 

 collection       
failures   year   on   year 
(average number of 
collection failures  each 
week) 

Not 
available 

Not 
available 

Not available Not 
available 

Not 
available 

Not available 55 301 out of the 125 
270 households 
received solid waste 
collection on a weekly 
basis.  

Figures on the 
proposed increase of 
households are not 
available. 

Future  capacity  of 
existing and 
earmarked 
(approved  use  and 
in council 
possession)    waste 
disposal sites 

The amount of spare 
capacity available in 
terms of the number of 
years capacity available 
at the current rate of 
landfill usage 

Not 
available 

Not 
available 

Not available Not 
available 

Not 
available 

Not available Spare capacity figures 
are not available 
because of the 
absence of Waste 
Information Systems 

Spare capacity figures 
should be determined 

Proportion of 
waste that is 
recycled 

Volumes of waste 
recycled as a 
percentage of total 
volume of waste 
disposed of at landfill 
sites. 

Not 
available 

Not 
available 

Not available Not 
available 

Not 
available 

Not available No figures exist on 
volumes of waste 
recycled because of 
the absence of Waste 
Information Systems 

Keeping record of 
waste recycled is 
s o l e l y  the 
responsibility of the 
Local Municipalities, 
who have to start 
implementing their 
respective Waste 
Information   Systems 
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Employees: Solid Waste Management Services 

Job Level 

2016-2017 2017-2018 
Employees Posts Employees Vacancies (fulltime 

equivalents) 
Vacancies (as a % of 
total posts) 

No. No. No. No. % 
0 - 3 2 2 1 1 50% 
4 - 6 % 
7 - 9 % 

10 - 12 % 
13 - 15 % 
16 - 18 % 
19 - 20 % 
Total % 
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3.5 HOUSING 

INTRODUCTION TO HOUSING 
Housing is a provincial function, not performed by the District Municipality. 

COMMENT ON THE PERFORMANCE OF THE HOUSING SERVICE OVERALL: 
Not function of the District Municipality 
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3.6 FREE BASIC SERVICES AND INDIGENT SUPPORT 

INTRODUCTION TO FREE BASIC SERVICES AND INDIGENT SUPPORT 

The District Municipality as a Water Service Authority has entered into Service Level 
Agreements with Sedibeng Water Board and Local Municipalities (Greater Taung LM, 
Kagisano Molopo LM, Lekwa-Teemane) to be Water Services Providers as referred in Section 
81 (2) (a) of the Local Government: Municipal Systems Act: 32 of 2000. 
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Free Basic Household Services

Water (6 kilolitres per household per month)

Sanitation (free minimum level service)

Electricity/other energy (50kwh per household per month)

Refuse (removed at least once a week)

Data sourced from MBRR A10
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Financial Performance Year 2017-2018:  Municipality of Free Basic Services Delivered 

Services Delivered 2016/2017 
2017-2018 

Actual Budget Adjustment 
Budget 

Actual Variance to Budget 

Water 19370 23 210 1818 7.8% 

Waste Water (Sanitation) 91563 131 875 47 780 36.2% 

Electricity 2 195 296 2 524 500 1 997 491 79.12% 
Waste Management (Solid 
Waste) 104 865 140 315 61 945 44.14% 

Total 2 393 661 2 819 900 2 109 034 74.79% 
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Free Basic Service Policy Objectives Taken From IDP 
Service 
Objectives 

Outline Service 
Targets 

(ii) 

2015-2016 2016-2017 
2015-2016 2017-2018 

Service 
Indicators 

Target Actual Target Actual Target 

(i) 

2014/2015 

(iii) 

2015/2016 

(iv) 
2016/2017 

2017-2018 

(vii) 

2017-2018 
(viii) 

2017/2018 

(ix) 

2018/2019 

(x) 

Service Objective  
Provision of 
alternative 

support to low 
income 

households that 
do not receive 
all Free Basic 

Services 

Low income 
households 
(LIHs) w h o   do 
not  receive  all 
the  free  basic 
services but do 
receive 
alternative 
support   (Total 
number of LIHs 
not   in   receipt 
of    free    basic 
services) 

LIHs receiving 
support (out of xxx 

LIHs in total) 
Information not 

quantified 

LIHs 
receiving 

support (out 
of xxx LIHs in 

total) 
Information 

not quantified 

LIHs receiving 
support (out of xxx 

LIHs in total) 
Information not 

quantified 

LIHs 
receiving 

support (out 
of xxx LIHs in 

total) 
Information 

not 
quantified 

LIHs 
receiving 

support (out 
of xxx LIHs in 

total) 
Information 

not 
quantified 

LIHs 
receiving 

support (out of 
xxx LIHs in 

total) 
Information 

not quantified 

LIHs receiving 
support (out of xxx 

LIHs in total) 
Information not 

quantified 

LIHs receiving 
support (out of xxx 

LIHs in total) 
Information not 

quantified 
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COMMENT ON FREE BASIC SERVICES AND INDIGENT SUPPORT: 
The District Municipality is supporting Local Municipalities through equitable share and in 
ensuring that the indigent support is being catered through the provision of free basic 
services. 
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COMPONENT B: ROAD TRANSPORT  

INTRODUCTION TO TRANSPORT 

The Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati District Municipality is not the custodian of roads within its 
area of jurisdiction. In terms Section 36 (1) of the National Land Transport Act, Act 5 of 2009 
all planning authorities must prepare Integrated Transport Plans (ITP’s) for their area of 
jurisdiction. The Municipality is responsible for municipal planning as derived from Schedule 4 
Part B of the Constitution. The Municipality is in the process of developing an Integrated 
Transport Plan with support from the North West Department of Community Safety & 
Transport Management.  

The National Department of Transport, as part of the S’Hambe Sonke Programme, has 
provided grant funding for the implementation of Rural Roads Asset Management Systems 
(RRAMS). The strategic goal of RRAMS grants is to ensure efficient and effective investment 
in rural roads and bridge inventory data condition assessments and traffic information. 
Improved data on roads will guide infrastructure investment and also enhance accessibility 
and mobility of rural communities. The NDOT allocated R 2 444 000 for financial year 
2017/18 for the implementation of the Rural Road Asset Management System and more 
funding will be availed in the next two financial years. 

The Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati District Municipality is a Type 2 Planning authority in terms 
of the National Land Transport Act. The Municipality is in the process of developing an 
Integrated Transport Plan with support from the North West Department of Community Safety 
& Transport Management. 
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3.7 ROADS 

INTRODUCTION TO ROADS 

The District Municipality can no longer fund rehabilitation and construction of roads under its 
equitable share. Alternative funding sources such Department of Transport are under 
consideration to address this challenge especially in the local municipalities. 

Employees: Road Services 

Job Level 

2016-2017 2017-2018 
Employees Posts Employees Vacancies (fulltime 

equivalents) 
Vacancies 
(as a % of 

total posts) 
No. No. No. No. % 

0 - 3 0 2 0 100% 100% 
4 - 6 0% 
7 - 9 % 

10 - 12 % 
13 - 15 % 
16 - 18 % 
19 - 20 % 
Total % 

COMMENT ON THE PERFORMANCE OF ROADS OVERALL: 

The District Municipality is not doing well in roads due to budget limitation. In future, more 
engagement with National Department of Transport for funding will bear fruits with respect to 
upgrading gravel roads to paved standard. 

3.8 TRANSPORT (INCLUDING VEHICLE LICENSING & PUBLIC BUS 
OPERATION)  

INTRODUCTION TO TRANSPORT 
Not District Function 

COMMENT ON THE PERFORMANCE OF TRANSPORT OVERALL: 
Not District Function 
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COMPONENT C: PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 

INTRODUCTION TO PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 

The Planning and Development functions was established in 2001, when the then 
Department of Provincial and Local Government (DPLG) initiated a national support system, 
Planning Implementation Management Supports Systems (PIMSS), to assist municipalities 
with their strategic planning, management support, and development of IDPs and 
implementation of the Performance Management Systems. While the support system was to 
be provided to all municipalities, it was then felt that the main beneficiaries of such a system 
would obviously be less capacitated and smaller, local municipalities. 
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3.10 PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 

INTRODUCTION TO PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 

The role of Planning and Development is to provide strategic management support and if 
needed, assist in the writing of the IDP and implementation of PMS, information gathering 
and generation, training, strategic planning, facilitation, support and improve communication 
between the local and district municipalities and general inter-governmental relations. 

The Planning & Development is responsible to ensure that there is efficient and effective 
compliance with legislative imperatives such as IDP, Public Participation, PMS and other 
applicable laws. In addition they perform strategic planning, facilitation, reporting and provide 
advice and support internally and externally which in most cases is demand-driven. 

The top 3 service delivery priorities and the impact made during the year are outlined 
underneath together with the measures taken to improve performance and the major 
efficiencies achieved by the Department during the year:  

1. Integrated Development Planning

The IDP unit is responsible for ensuring compliance with implementation of Chapter 5 of the 
Systems Act, especially compliance with Section 25 by identifying with the key deliverables 
and immediate goals detailed in the Council’s IDP in respect of the communication, 
investment, tourism and agricultural dimensions of local economic development. 

Performance Management System 

The PMS Unit was responsible for the implementation of PMS in line with the Municipal 
Systems Act (MSA) 2000 which requires municipalities to establish a performance 
management system, the Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA) which requires that 
the IDP to be aligned to the municipal budget and to be monitored for the performance of the 
budget against the IDP via the Service Delivery and the Budget Implementation Plan 
(SDBIP). 

Governance 

The Department is also charged with the responsibility to ensure that there are effective 
governance processes in the municipality. It has been instrumental in ensuring that the 
Council performs its oversight responsibilities and functions by ensuring that the MPAC is 
established in terms of Section 79 of the Structures Act and the MFMA Guideline on 
Establishment of MPACs.  
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The following were achieved during the financial year: 

  - The Executive Mayor approved the SDBIP by the 27th June 2017. 
       -       The Municipal Manager and Section 56 Manager signed their Performance 
Agreements by the 31st July  2017. 

  - All Quarterly Reviews Sessions were held and the Quarterly Reports were done as 
required during  financial year 

  - The PMS Framework was adopted by Council. 
  - Planning Budgeting and Performance Programme was adopted by Council. 
  - The 2016/2017 Annual Reports and Oversight Report were tabled during the financial 

year and  submitted to all the stakeholders i.e. Auditor-General, Provincial and National 
Treasuries. 
       - The Annual Performance Evaluation of the Municipal Manager and Section 57 for the 
year under  review were not done.  
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Planning Policy Objectives Taken From IDP 
Service 
Objectives  

Outline Service Targets 2014-2015 2015-2016 2016-2017 2017-2018 

  Target Actual Target Actual Target 

Service Indicators 
 *Previous 

Year 
  *Previous 

Year 
*Current 

Year 
  *Current 

Year 
*Current Year *Following 

Year 
(i) (ii) (iii) (iv) (v) (vi) (vii) (viii) (ix) (x) 

Service Objective 
Ensure the 
development 
and adoption of 
reliable and 
credible 
integrated 
development 
plans (IDP’s) 
  
  
  
  

Hold IDP/PMS Steering 
Committee meetings 

4 4 4 4 2 4 4 4 

Develop and submit the IDP 
process plan to council by 
end of August 2016 

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 

 Review the IDP and submit 
to council by the end March 
2016 

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 

 Hold District Wide IDP Rep 
Forum meetings 

2 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 

 Hold IDP working sessions 
with Local Municipalities 

2 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 

 Hold IDP/Budget Road 
shows for the 2016/2017 
year 

5 5 5 5 3 5 5 5 

 Promote a 
culture of 
participatory 
and good 
governance 
  
  

 Submit the draft annual 
report to council by end 
January 2017 

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 

 Compile and submit the 
oversight report to council 
by end March 2017 

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 

 Review the PMS framework 
and submit to council by 
end May 2016 

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 

Submit the Mid- Year 
Performance Report in 
terms of sec72 of the MFMA 

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
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to the Mayor by 25 January 
2017 
Submit the top layer SDBIP 
to the Mayor for approval 
within 14 days after the 
approval of the main budget 

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 

Submit the Departmental 
SDBIP to the MM by 30 June 
2017 

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 

Draft the Annual 
Performance Report in 
terms of Sec 46 MSA for 
submission to the AG by 31 
August 2017 

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 

Formally evaluate the 
performance of directors in 
terms of their signed 
agreements 

1 0 1 1 0 0 1 0 

Performance Agreements 
for Municipal Manager and 
all Snr managers signed by 
end July 2017 

8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 

Quarterly prepare the 
performance reports into 
the Top layer SDBIP and 
submit to Council 

4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 
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Employees:  Planning & Development Services 

Job Level 

2016/2017 Year 2017/2018 
Employees Posts Employees Vacancies 

(fulltime 
equivalents) 

Vacancies (as a % of 
total posts) 

No. No. No. No. % 
0 - 3 2 2 2 0 0% 
4 - 6 2 2 2 0 0% 
7 - 9 1 1 1 0 0% 

10 - 12 
13 - 15 
16 - 18 
19 - 20 
Total 

Financial Performance Year 2017/2018: Planning Services 
R'000 

Details 

2017/2018 2017/2018 
Actual  Original 

Budget 
Adjustment 

Budget 
Actual Variance to 

Budget 

Total Operational Revenue 3 476 4 333 4 333 2 870 % 

Expenditure: 3 467 4 150 4 150 3 301 

    Employees 2 746 3 009 3 009 2 719 % 

    Repairs and Maintenance - - - % 

    Other 45 1 141 1 141 582 % 

Total Operational Expenditure 2 791 4 150 4 150 3 301 % 

Net Operational Expenditure (676) (183) (183) 431 % 
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Capital Expenditure Year 2017/2018: Planning Services 
R' 000 

Capital Projects 

2017/2018 
Budget Adjustment 

Budget 
Actual 

Expenditure 
Variance 

from 
original 
budget 

Total Project 
Value 

Total All % 

Implement Employee 
Performance Management 
System 

R300 000.00 - R300 000.00 0% R300 000.00 

Implement an IDP that is 
the expression of state-
wide planning and aligned 
to the National 
Development Plan (NDP) 

R200 000.00 - R200 000.00 0% R200 000.00 

Hold district wide municipal 
consultative meetings 

R100 000.00 - R100 000.00 0% R100 000.00 

Implementation of 
Organizational Performance 
Management System to 
improve service delivery 

R250 000.00 - R250 000.00 0% R250 000.00 

Training of councillors and 
ward committees on the 
implementation of Indigent 
Policies and Communities 
Awareness Campaigns 

R150 000.00 - R150 000.00 0% R150 000.00 

COMMENT ON THE PERFORMANCE OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT OVERALL: 

The priority for the institution is to effectively implement the automated performance 
management system to ensure that it is cascaded to the lower levels. 
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3.11 LOCAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT (INCLUDING TOURISM AND 
MARKET PLACES) 

The current unemployment rate in the district stands at 36%. This unprecedented state 
affects the majority of the Youth. Hence the district will continue to strive towards creating an 
enabling environment that accommodates ongoing youth skills development, small business 
and cooperatives support, product development and promotion as well as other farmer 
support programmes. The district aligns its socio-economic service offerings to the North 
West government’s five concretes which are: 1. (ACT) Agriculture Culture and Tourism, 2. 
VTSD (Villages, Townships and Small Dorpies), 3. RHR (Reconciliation, Healing and 
Renewal) 4. Setsokotsane (Comprehensive & Integrated Service Campaign) 5. Saamtrek- 
Saamwerk (Call for unity of purpose above divisions). In line with the spirit and objectives of 
these concretes, the District Municipality encourages its residents to work together on new 
beginnings to strengthen inter/intra relationships in a quest to realise effective and efficient 
socio-economic transformation.  

The strategic objective of the EDTA department is to facilitate and promote local economic 
development in the District through existing partnerships. Specifically, the district is an 
agricultural hub within the province and as a result, special attention is given to promoting 
agricultural initiatives and ensures value chain benefits from the sector. The AgriParks 
programme therefore, will play a central role in ensuring broader accessibility of the 
previously disadvantaged communities to value chain benefits associated with the 
programme. The District is one of the 44 poorest districts, with an economy that is highly 
dependent on the Agricultural sector. Despite having a thriving Agricultural sector that is 
perceived to be overly dependent on the beef cattle industry, the entire sector is still relatively 
underdeveloped in terms of agro-processing value chain, infrastructure and related activities. 
A larger percentage of agricultural produce originating from the district is usually processed 
outside. Therefore, the establishment of the Agri-Park will afford the district an opportunity to 
promote and implement agro-processing of produce, value addition, and an overall increase 
in agricultural production and diversification. 

In addition to agriculture, the district has, over the past years ensured equitable focus on 
other sectors of the economy. Considerable effort went into the promotion and creation of a 
conducive environment that enhances access to markets for SMMEs and encouraging 
participation in existing and new employment creation opportunities. Thus the promotion of 
SMMEs and Cooperatives as the driving force to job creation needs to be fully harnessed and 
supported. In the previous financial year, a total of 26 SMMEs and Cooperatives collectively 
were successfully funded and others selected to be part of a year- long business 
development programme to ensure their continued sustenance. The two support 
programmes accessed include the Economic Empowerment Fund and the NW Growth 
Accelerator Programme both administered through the Finance, Economy & Enterprise 
Development Department.  

Attraction of major investments to the District remains a challenge because of the poor 
infrastructure conditions, more especially roads, water networks or reticulation, 
communication, electricity and transport networks. The critical importance of commitment to 
transforming the economy of the district therefore remains emphasized. This will ensure that 
job opportunities are increased for the unemployed masses (mainly the youth) of the DR 
RSM District. In an endeavor to highlight such challenges, the district hosted a successful 
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Investment Summit towards the end of June 2017 with the sole aim of reevaluating and 
reprioritization of viable economic development programmes to transform the regional 
economy. Particularly ensuring that existing programmes are implemented quickly and 
successfully with the desired impact of reducing the existing high rate of unemployment.  

The District Municipality acknowledges the fact that effective economic growth and 
stimulation emanates from committed stakeholder strategic partnerships in order to ensure 
rural development and jointly implementing programmes and projects for sustainable 
livelihood. As a result, the department will for the next five years intensify joint economic 
planning and execution of programmes focusing on the prioritized sectors of the district as 
well as guided by the VTSD and ACT principles. Partnerships with the private sector to impart 
the necessary skills to small businesses and cooperatives will be duly enhanced and 
supported. With the minimum resources allocated to the district for service delivery priorities, 
Local Economic Development is usually given the least of the resources usually not 
commensurate with the existing economic challenges and needs. The same applies to the 
local municipalities supported by the district, a matter that will require a decisive political will if 
the prospects of the district economic growth are to be attained.   

The Dr Ruth S Mompati District Municipality affirms that tourism "constitutes a right equally 
open to all of the world’s inhabitants, and obstacles should not be placed in its way". There 
has been a growing awareness of the positive influence that tourism as a sector has on 
different aspects of life. This sector provides a chance for recreation, an opportunity for 
mutual understanding between peoples and cultures, an instrument for economic 
development, a promoter of peace and dialogue, a possibility for education and for personal 
growth, a moment of encounter with nature, and an environment for spiritual growth, just to 
mention few. Therefore, the district will continue to market its five (5) tourism offerings being, 
Agriculture, Culture, Heritage, Water Sport and Hunting. Through these offerings, the district 
hopes to create a unique experience exclusive towards the existing comparative advantages 
within each local municipality.         

Economic Activity by Sector 
R '000 
Sector 2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017 
Agric, forestry and fishing 1,5 2 1,2 
Mining and quarrying 5 6 3 
Manufacturing 58 56 55 
Wholesale and retail trade 51 45 50 
Finance, property, etc. 48 51 50 
Govt, community and social services 25 23 26 
Infrastructure services 38 34 41 
Total 226,5 217 226,2 
Source: Stats SA 
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Economic Employment by Sector 
Jobs 

Sector 
2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017 
No. No. No. 

Agric, forestry and fishing 20,000 25,000 28,000 
Mining and quarrying 400, 000 435,000 340,000 
Manufacturing 320,000 300,000 250,000 
Wholesale and retail trade 190,000 200,000 205,000 
Finance, property, etc. 275,000 255,000 240,000 
Govt, community and social services 300,00 310,000 340,000 
Infrastructure services 400,000 430,000 450,000 
Total 1905000 1955000 1853000 
Source: Stats SA 

Jobs Created during 2017/2018 by LED Initiatives (Excluding EPWP projects) 
Total Jobs created / Top 

3 initiatives 
Jobs created Jobs 

lost/displaced 
by other 

initiatives 

Net total jobs 
created in year 

Method of validating jobs 
created/lost 

No. No. No. 
Total  (all initiatives) 

(EDTA) 2017/2018 4 None 4 
Beneficiary 

list/Resignations/Deaths 

(EDTA) 2017/2018 4 None 4 
Beneficiary 

list/Resignations/Deaths 
Initiative A LED 

2017/2018 123 None 123 Beneficiary list 
Initiative B AGRIC 

2017/2018 - - Beneficiary list 
Initiative CTOURISM 

2017/2018 4 4 Beneficiary list 

Job creation through EPWP* projects 

Details 

EPWP Projects Jobs created through 
EPWP projects  

No. No. 
2015/2016 3 63 
2016/2017 2 20 
2017/2018 5 44 
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Local Economic Development Policy Objectives Taken From IDP 
Service Objectives  Outline Service 

Targets 
2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017 2017/2018 

  Target Actual Target Actual Target 

Service Indicators 
 *Previous Year   *Previous 

Year 
*Current 

Year 
  *Current 

Year 
*Current 

Year 
*Following 

Year 
(i) (ii) (iii) (iv) (v) (vi) (vii) (viii) (ix) (x) 

Service Objective  
Training of people in 
essential skills: x, y, z 

Number of 
people trained 
(including 
retrained 
upskilled) 

Number of people 
trained (including 

retrained 
upskilled) 

Number of 
people 
trained 

(including 
retrained 
upskilled) 

Number of 
people 
trained 

(including 
retrained 
upskilled) 

Number of 
people 
trained 

(including 
retrained 
upskilled) 

Number of 
people 
trained 

(including 
retrained 
upskilled) 

Number of 
people 
trained 

(including 
retrained 
upskilled) 

Number of 
people 
trained 

(including 
retrained 
upskilled) 

Number of 
people 
trained 

(including 
retrained 
upskilled) 

Cooperative SMME 
Training 

450 180 200 285 254 120 116 135 
 

Tourism Capacity 
Building Programme 40 - - 30 40 20 55 26  
Informal Business 
Training (Informal 
Traders) 94 - - - 80 90 145 102  
 Youth in Tourism 
Programme 130    120 130 120 85  
Farmers Day Capacity 
Building Programme - - - - 195 164 250 263  
      Total:689 Total: 524 Total:656 Total611  
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Employees: EDTA Services 

Job Level 

2016/2017 2017/2018 
Employees Posts Employees Vacancies (fulltime 

equivalents) 
Vacancies (as a % of 

total posts) 

No. No. No. No. % 
0 - 3 4 4 4 4 26,66% 
4 - 6 4 4 4 4 26,66% 
7 - 9 6 6 6 6 40% 

10 - 12 1 1 1 1 6,66% 
13 - 15 % 
16 - 18 % 
19 - 20 % 
Total % 

R'000 

Details 
2016/2017 2017/2018 

Actual Original 
Budget 

Adjustment 
Budget 

Actual Variance 
to 

Budget 
Total Operational Revenue 125 100          13 864  99% 
Expenditure: 
    Employees 125 244 250    10 035  98% 
    Repairs and Maintenance 25 244 250  - 0% 
    Other 45 244 250    3 648  93% 
Total Operational Expenditure 195 732 750        13 683  95% 
Net Operational Expenditure 195 607 650               -181  435% 
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Capital Expenditure 2017/2018: EDTA Services 

R' 000 
Capital Projects 2017/2018 

Budget Adjustment 
Budget 

Actual 
Expenditure 

Variance 
from original 

budget 

Total Project 
Value 

Total All N/A % 

Project A: Naledi  Nursery 
Refurbishment 

R300,000 R350 000 350 000 100% 

Project B: Aquaculture 
Fencing 

R360 000 R400 000 R400 000 100% 

COMMENT ON LOCAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PERFORMANCE OVERALL: 

The 2017/2018 financial year was both an exciting and difficult year for both country and 
district area. The adverse effect on the agriculture and water scarcity forced the District 
economic actors to dig deep into how best to use limited resources and address service 
delivery demands. Partnership development culture was on an all-time high with private 
sector and government agencies such as Small Enterprise Development Agency and Social 
Economic Infrastructure Facility as examples- came to party to confront economic 
development and growth gaps. 

The capacity building efforts towards youth and women greatly contributed to the 
empowerment of our rural youth in areas on financial management and project management 
–this has assisted in attaining our planned programmes. The department further intensified its
efforts in leveraging additional funding from external sources. While such efforts culminated 
mostly in soft-skills development ultimately, most Youth entities did receive start-up capital for 
their individual small business ventures.  

The Informal Traders sector were a big winner with informal trader grants across the district 
receiving working capital and equipment in advancing their businesses. The challenge to 
grow the economy of the district remains mainly through limited development of infrastructure 
and creation of an attractive economic environment.  Strategic economic partnerships in 
areas of mining and manufacturing as well as the advancement of beneficiation in agriculture 
in the Agri-park space. High impact economic projects in agriculture in the Taung region and 
the transport complex advantage in the Naledi will have to be explored to bring economic 
benefit for the region as whole going forward.       
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COMPONENT E: ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

INTRODUCTION TO ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

Section 24 of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 state that: 

“Everyone has the right to an environment that is not harmful to his/her health or wellbeing” 

Dr RSMDM provides Environmental/Municipal Health Services which aims to ensure that the 
Communities of Dr Ruth S Mompati District Municipality live in a clean and healthy 
environment that is free from pollution, and by performing the roles and functions as spelt out 
in the Health Act, No. 61 of 2003. 

“Environmental Health addresses all the physical, chemical, and biological factors external to 
a person and all the related factors impacting behaviours. It encompasses the assessment 
and control of those environmental factors that can potentially affect health. It is targeted 
towards preventing disease and creating health- supportive environments. This definition 
excludes behaviour not related to environment, as well behaviour related to the social and 
cultural environment and genetic” (WHO). It also refers to the theory and practice of 
assessing, correcting, controlling and preventing those factors in the environment that can 
potentially affect adversely the health of present and future generation. 

The identification, evaluation, control as well as prevention through education of all those 
factors in the total environment which exercise a detrimental effect on individual physical, 
mental and social well-being and development. It also implies continuous efforts to educate 
and prevent individuals from effecting the environment in such a way that it becomes 
detrimental to their well- being and development. 

Environmental Health Practitioners are health officers appointed in terms of the National 
Health Act, (Act 61 0f 2003 ) and registered as such with the Health Professions Council of 
South Africa in terms of the Health Professions Act (Act 56 of 1974) Environmental Health 
Practitioners are provide with powers to enter any premises, excluding a private dwelling to 
ensure compliance with the Act. Environmental Health Practitioners must enter any premises 
for the purpose of conducting inspections and or environmental health investigations, to 
ensure abatement of any condition that constitute a health hazard or nuisance. EHP’s may 
issue Compliance notice to any person if the provision of the Act is not complied with. 
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Employees: Health Inspection and Etc. 

Job Level 

2016/17 2017/18 
Employees Posts Employees Vacancies (fulltime 

equivalents) 
Vacancies  

No. No. No. No. % 
0 - 3 1 3 1 2 33% 
4 - 6 5 7 5 2 66.7% 
7 - 9 4 16 4 12 31% 

10 - 12 
N/A N/A N/A N/A 

% 

13 - 15 
N/A N/A N/A N/A 

% 

16 - 18 
N/A N/A N/A N/A 

% 

19 - 20 
N/A N/A N/A N/A 

% 

Total 10 25 10 15 % 

Capital Expenditure 2017/18: Health Inspection and Etc. 

R' 000 

Capital Projects 

2017/18 
Budget Adjustment 

Budget 
Actual 
Expenditure 

Variance from 
original budget 

Total 
Project 
Value 

Total All R 700 0 00’00 R 570 000.00 R 564 575.00 1% 
R564 575.00 

Development of Air 
Quality Management 

 
Project A ( project name) R 700 000.00 R 570 000.00 R 564 575.00 1% R564 575.00 

Project B ( project name) N/A % 

Project C ( project name) N/A % 

Project D ( project name) N/A % 
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COMMENT ON THE PERFORMANCE OF HEALTH INSPECTIONs, Etc. OVERALL: 

The WHO ratio of operational EHP/ Population is 1: 10 000. The District Municipality consist of 
9 operational EHPs against a population of 463 815, this renders the performance in some 
areas inefficient, there is insufficient manpower. There is no specific ring- f e nc e d  budget 
for the operations of Municipal Health Services. There are no monitoring tools, e.g. Noise 
Monitoring’s, Oil test Kids, air quality monitoring etc. There are no capital projects nor do 
poverty alleviation projects not to mention funds to embark on out-reach programs.     
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COMPONENT F: HEALTH 

INTRODUCTION TO HEALTH 

Health is a state of complete physical, mental and social well- being and not merely the 
absence of disease or infirmity. Environmental Health – is the branch of Public Health that is 
concerned with all aspects of the Natural and built Environmental that may affect human 
Health.        

3.19  HEALTH INSPECTION; FOOD AND ABBATOIR LICENSING AND 
INSPECTION; ETC 

INTRODUCTION TO HEALTH INSPECTIONS; FOOD AND ABATTOIR LICENCING AND 
INSPECTIONS, ETC 

Section 24 of the SA constitution 1996 states that; everyone has the right- to an environment 
that is not harmful to their health or well-being. The Foodstuffs, Cosmetics and Disinfectant 
Act No. 54 of 1972; provides for the control of sales, manufacture and importation of 
foodstuffs, cosmetics and disinfectants; and to provide for incidental matters. 

The Meat safety Act No. 40 0f 2000; provides for measures to promote meat safety and the 
safety of animal products, to establish and maintain essential standards in respect of 
abattoirs; to regulate the importation and exportation of meat; to establish meat safety 
schemes and to provide for matters connected therewith. The Business Act No. 71 of 1991; 
provides for the repeal or amendment of certain laws regarding the licensing and carrying on 
of businesses and shop hours; to make certain new provision regarding such licensing and 
carrying on of business and to provide for matters connected therewith. Regulations defining 
the scope of profession of Environmental Health as amended, R. 698 of 26 June 2009. The 
Scope of Practice of Environmental Health Practitioners, define Environmental Health 
Services as including the performance of the following acts:   

1. Water Quality Monitoring
2. Food Control
3. Waste Management and General Hygiene Monitoring
4. Health Surveillance of Premises
5. Surveillance and Prevention of Communicable Diseases; excluding immunization
6. Vector Control Monitoring
7. Environmental Pollution Control
8. Disposal of the Dead
9. Chemical Safety
10. Noise Control
11. Radiation (ionising and non-ionising) Monitoring and Control
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DR RSMDM provides E/MH Services in all local Municipalities in its jurisdiction. The services 
are conducted with the following staff distribution pattern; Greater Taung LM = 2 EHPs, 
Lekwa – Teemane LM = 2 EHPs, Mamusa LM = 1 EHP, Naledi LM = 2 EHPs, 
Kagisano/Molopo = 3 EHPs. 

Service Level Agreement/ Memorandum of Understanding was adopted by the Council and 
was distributed to all local Municipalities and only Naledi and Lekwa Teemane signed the 
MOU on Environmental/ Municipal Health Services. The World Health Organization 
recommend for effective service provision that EHP/ Population ratio should be 1: 10 000 and 
as a results DR RSMDM has a population of 463 815(2011 census) with 10 EHPs, which 
renders the District to be at a backlog of approximately 37 EHPs and with minimal budget 
and resources. 
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Health Inspection and Etc. Policy Objectives Taken From IDP 
Service Objectives Outline Service 

Targets 
2016/2017 2017/18 2017-2018 2017-2018         2018-2019 

Service Indicators Target Actual   Target Actual 
 

 Actual    Target 
*Previous

Year 
*Previous

Year 
*Current Year *Current

Year 
*Current

Year 
*Following

Year 

(i) (ii) (iii) (iv) (v) (vi) (vii) (viii) (ix) (x) 
Service Objective 
To provide health and hygiene 

promotion 
& awareness services 

No of awareness 
sessions done 

1260 2007 1600 2086 1600 1600 

To provide radiation 
monitoring, control & 

  

No of clinic visits 
done 

40 58 40 40 60 40 40 

To provide water quality 
services 

No of water 
samples taken 

750 1105 1000 1000 1272 1000 1000 

To conduct waste 
management and general 

hygiene inspection at 
business premises 

No of inspections   1260 2136 340 340 2086 340 340 

To provide chemical safety 
services 

No of inspections 
done 

380 1316 380 380 1261 380 380 

To provide food safety and 
control services 

No of inspections 
done 

1260 1942 1600 1600 2009 1600 1600 

To provide milk safety services No of samples 
taken 

52 65 52 52 63 52 52 

To provide meat inspection 
services 

No of meat 
inspections done 

 

132 95 132 132 143 132 132 

To provide noise control 
services 

No of inspect- 
ions done per 
year 

12 0 12 12 0 12 12 

To provide vector control 
services 

No of inspections 
done 

1260 2033 12 1600 2050 1600 1600 
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Financial Performance Year 2017/2018: Environmental Health 

R'000 
 

Details 
2016/2017 2017/2018 

Actual Original Budget Adjustment Budget 

Total Operational Revenue R 11 701 561 R 12 779 258 R 12 976 310 
 
 
 

COMMENT ON THE PERFORMANCE OF HEALTH INSPECTIONs, Etc OVERALL: 
 
The WHO ratio of operational EHP/ Population is 1: 10 000. The District Municipality consist 
of 10 operational EHPs against a population of 463 815, this renders the performance in 
some areas inefficient. There is no specific ring fenced budget for the operations of Municipal 
Health Services. There are no monitoring tools, e.g. Noise Monitoring’s, Oil test Kids, air 
quality monitoring etc. There are no capital projects nor do poverty alleviation projects not to 
mention funds to embark on out-reach programs. 
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COMPONENT G: SECURITY AND SAFETY 

INTRODUCTION TO SECURITY & SAFETY 

The Structures Act gives District Municipalities the functions and powers to conduct 
firefighting services. (The word “function” is defined as an activity proper to a person or 
institution, a mode, of action or activity by which a thing fulfils its purpose, an official or 
professional duty). This clearly goes beyond a “right” or “power” and the Structures Act 
therefore places on District Municipalities an obligation to provide these services. 
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3.21 FIRE 
 

INTRODUCTION TO FIRE SERVICES 
 

The District Municipality is responsible for provision of firefighting service throughout the 
District in terms of Section 84(1) j of the Local Government Municipal Structures Act, (Act 117 
of 1998). 
“The District Municipality is, inter alia, responsible for provision of firefighting services serving 
the area of the district municipality as a whole, which include: 
• Planning, co-ordination and regulating fire services 
• Specialised firefighting services such as mountain, veld and chemical fire services 
• Co-ordination of the standardisation of infrastructure, vehicles, equipment and 
procedures 
• Training fire officers” 
Fire Fighting Service - Local Municipality Function 
 
The District Municipality is also responsible for provision of firefighting service to local 
municipalities in terms of the adjustment by the of Section 84 (2) of the Local Government 
Municipal Structures Act, (Act 117 of 1998),  The Act further describes the local function as: 
• Preventing the outbreak or spread of a fire 
• Fighting or extinguishing a fire 
• The protection of life or property against a fire or other threatening danger 
• The rescue of life or property from a fire or other danger” Analysis 
The Local Municipality of Naledi is responsible for provision of firefighting services according 
to Section 84(1) j of the Local Government Municipal Structures Act, (Act 117 of 1998), within 
its  respective  area  of  jurisdiction  as  agreed  with  the  Provincial Government. 
 
The District Municipality has entered into service level agreement to get the function being 
temporarily performed by the District Municipality till the statutory capacity assessment is 
conducted by the MDB to enable the MEC to make the necessary adjustments. 
  
Challenges 
• Equitable services delivery lacking 
• Budget constraints, 
• Insufficient accommodation facilities for fire services at existing fire stations 
• Fire stations only available in main towns and non-existent in more remote and 
deserving towns, 
• Insufficient personnel at some stations 
• Request for absorption: Lekwa-Teemane Firefighting Service 
 
Proposed Solutions 
• Recruitment of additional personnel  
• Budget allocation to be increased 
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• Sufficient provision to be made within the next financial year’s budget for
standardization of facilities 
• Satellite stations to be established
• Capacity building to be implemented further
• Absorption of Lekwa-Teemane to be provided for within the 2019/20 financial year.

112



District Fire Service Data 
Details 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 

Actual No. 
Estimate 
No. Actual No. Estimate No. 

1 Total fires attended in the year 300 206 315 300 
2 Total of other incidents attended in the year 200 114 124 110 
3 Average turnout time - urban areas 17 min 20 20 30 
4 Average turnout time - rural areas 2 hrs 2 hrs 2 hrs 2,5 hrs 
5 Fire fighters in post at year end 48 53 69 69 
6 Total fire appliances at year end 17 17 17 18 
7 Average number of appliance off the road 

during the year 0 2 3 0 
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Fire Policy Objectives Taken From IDP 
Service Objectives Outline 

Service 
Targets 

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 
Service Indicators Target Actual Target Actual Target Actual 

*Following
Year 

(i) (ii) (iii) (iv) (v) (vii) (viii) (ix) (x) 
Service Objective 
Provision of Fire 
Prevention Services 

100 x Fire 
prevention 
inspections 
conducted 

Conducted 100 x 
fire prevention 
inspections 

144 Target 
reached 

100 x Fire prevention 
inspections conducted 

129 x Fire 
prevention 
inspections 
conducted 
 

100 x Fire prevention 
inspections 

108 x Fire 
prevention 
inspections 

100 x 
Fire 
preven
tion 

Fire services 
Capacity Building 
Program 

Procurement 
of Fire 
appliances 
(water 
tanker). 

N/A One water 
tanker final 
inspection 
conducted and 
acceptance 
letter signed. 

Two Water Tankers delivered T
w
o
 
W
a
t
e

Procuremen
t of one Fire 
appliances 
(water 
tanker). 

N/A N/A N/A 

Provision of Fire 
Prevention Services 

Conduct one 
awareness 
campaign 
each quarter 
total (4 per 
annum) 

N/A Target 
reached 

Conducted 18 x awareness 
campaigns 

C
o
n
d
u
c

N/A Conduct one 
awareness 
campaigns each 
quarter total (4 per 
annum) 

Conducted 12  
awareness 
campaigns 

Conduct 
one 
awareness 
campaigns 
each 
quarter 
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Employees: Fire Services 

Job Level 2016/2017 2017/18 
Fire Fighters Employees Posts Employees Vacancies 

(fulltime 
equivalents) 

Vacancies (as a % 
of total posts) 

Administrators No. No. No. No. % 
0 - 3 1 1 1 0 4% 
4 - 6 5 6 5 1 1,4% 
7 - 8 35   43 38 1 1,4% 
9 -10 N/A 12 1 11 15,7% 

11 - 12 11 6 4 2 2,8% 
13 - 15 0 0 0 0 0% 
16 - 18 0 0 0 0 0% 
19 - 20 0 0 0 0 0% 
Total 54 69 49 15 22% 

Financial Performance Year 2017/18: Fire Services 
R'000 

Details 
2016/2017 2017/18 

Actual Original 
Budget 

Adjustment 
Budget 

Actual Variance to 
Budget 

Total Operational Revenue 
21897 24 696 23 005 - 7,8% 

Expenditure: 
- 

Fire fighters 
19997 22558 22 558  - - 9,2% 

Other employees 
0 0 0 

- 

Repairs and 
Maintenance 498 670 920 

- 
-37% 

Other 
1442 1468 1 293 

 - 
-11.9% 

Total Operational 
Expenditure 21938 24 686 - 16.5% 
Net Operational Expenditure 

-4034 N/A 4094 
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COMMENT ON THE PERFORMANCE OF FIRE SERVICES OVERALL: 

Successes on the outcomes as derived from the Emergency Services Compliance 
Assessment as well as the implementation of the phase in approach were reported to Council 
for noting. Budgetary provision made according the attached proposed five-year planning is 
insufficient to procure the required fire appliances, fire equipment, communications 
equipment and protective clothing and implement the required minimum standards in terms of 
“Weight & Speed of Response” to meet the requirements in relation to the fire risk identified 
per area.   
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3.22 OTHER (DISASTER MANAGEMENT, CONTROL OF PUBLIC NUISANCES 
AND OTHER) 

INTRODUCTION TO DISASTER MANAGEMENT, ETC 

Disaster Management 

Analysis 
Disaster Management Framework was adopted in 2007 and a detailed plan was adopted in 
2008. This is part of a process that unfolded after the Disaster Management Act 57 of 2002 
was promulgated (hereinafter referred to as the Act). 

 A pro-active approach of planning for and mitigating the effects of occurrences is now a strict 
requirement.  

The fundamental approach to disaster management should therefore focus on reducing risk. 
This requires a significantly improved capacity to track, monitor and disseminate information 
on phenomena and activities that trigger disaster events.  

Challenges and Proposed Solutions 

• Lack of sufficient personnel to establish and maintain institutional arrangements that
will enable the implementation of the Act (which should include recruitment of staff) 
• A general lack of preparedness for disaster on the part of communities to facilitate the

development,  implementation and maintenance of disaster risk reduction strategies 
that will result in resilient areas, communities, households and individuals 

• Over-reliance on the District Municipality by Local Municipalities: Measures to be
implemented to develop progressive risk profiles to inform the IDP processes of 
municipalities for the  purposes of disaster risk reduction and to determine the 
effectiveness of specific disaster risk reduction programmes and projects undertaken 

• Uninformed and unprepared communities: To develop and implement mechanisms for
creating public awareness to inculcate a culture of risk avoidance. 

117



SERVICE STATISTICS FOR DISASTER MANAGEMENT, ETC 

Capacity Building Programs.  

The district municipality enhance programs carried out under the auspices of the LM’s and 
conducted training, which take the form of talks, classes, workshops, awareness programs, 
pamphlet distribution and practical evacuation drills.  

The following is a summary of Capacity Building activities that were undertaken in this year 
under review. 

-Correctional services Christiana -Firefighting and evacuation drill.2018/06/20 
-Contingency Plan for Easter Holiday’s 2018- Dr Ruth S Mompati District 2018/06/20 
-RIMS training Incident Management  
– Vryburg and Schweizer Reneke 12 -13 July 2017  Vryburg and Christiana 13 -14 June 2018
-Simulation Exercises RIMS Schweizer Reneke on the 26 October 2017 
-Kagisano (Kudunkgwane Community Hall) veld Fires and Floods 11 October 2108 
-Dialogue on gangsterism 19 March 2018 Bloemhof, Boitumelong  
-Greater Taung – Fire training Caltex garage personnel  
-Kagisano – Fire inspection and awareness 12, 13, 20 February 2018  
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Disaster Management Policy Objectives Taken From IDP 
Service 
Objectives

Outline Service 
Targets 

(ii)

2015/2016 2016-2017 2017/2018 2018-2019 

Service 
Indicators

Target Actual Target Actual Target 

(i) 

*Previous
Year (iii) 

(iv) 
*Previous
Year (v) 

*Current Year
(vi) (vii) 

*Current Year

(viii) 

*Current Year

(ix) 

*Following Year

(x) 
Service Objective 
To provide 
municipal 
services 
infrastructure 

Improve Fire 
Services capacity 
and infrastructure 
according to the 
outcome of the 
CAPS assessment. 
(Phase two-Two 

  

 Ongoing N/A Ongoing Ongoing N/A Ongoing N/A Ongoing 

To provide 
Disaster 
Management 
Services 

Constitute/attend 
four Disaster 
Management 
Capacity Building 
meetings. 

N/A Target 
reached 

Constitute/ 
attend 
quarterly 
forum 
capacity 
building 
meeting 

Constitute/ 
attend quarterly 
forum capacity 
building 
meeting 

N/A Constitute/ 
attend 
quarterly 
forum capacity 
building 
meeting 

Constitute/ 
attend 
quarterly 
forum capacity 
building 
meeting 

Constitute/ 
attend 
quarterly 
forum capacity 
building 
meeting 
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Employees: Disaster Management, Etc. 

Job Level 

2016/7 2017/18 
Employees Posts Employees Vacancies 

(fulltime eg) 
Vacancies (as a % 

of total 
posts)

No. No. No. No. % 

0 - 3 0 1 1 1 50% 

4 - 6 1 1 0 0 
7 - 9 0 0 0 0 

10-12 0 0 0 0 
16 - 18 
19 - 20 

Total 2 1 1 50% 

Financial Performance Year 2017/18: Disaster Management, Etc. 
R'000 

Details 

2017/2018 2017/18 
Actual Original Budget Adjustment 

Budget 
Actual Variance to 

Budget 

Total Operational Revenue N/A N/A N/A N/A % 
Expenditure: N/A N/A N/A N/A     % 

Employees N/A N/A N/A N/A % 
Repairs and Maintenance N/A N/A N/A N/A % 
Other N/A N/A N/A N/A % 
Total 
Operational N/A N/A N/A N/A % 
Net 
Operational 
Expenditure 

N/A N/A N/A N/A % 
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Capital Expenditure Year 2017/2018: Disaster Management Etc 
R' 000 

Capital Projects 

2017/2018 
Budget Adjustment 

Budget 
Actual 

Expenditure 
Variance 

from original 
budget 

Total Project 
Value 

Total All N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Disaster Capacity Building 
Grant R500,000 R500,000 R498,015.33 0.4% R498,015.33 
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COMMENT ON THE PERFORMANCE OF DISASTER MANAGEMENT, ETC OVERALL: 

This District Disaster Management Plan expounds the start of the longer-term process to 
follow with a comprehensive plan containing a clear understanding of the District 
Municipality’s policy statement, the district municipal framework for Disaster Management 
and the strategy (including methodologies to provide support to local municipalities to 
operationalize disaster management in Dr. Ruth Segomotsi Mompati District Municipality) 
embarked upon. 

The Disaster Management section lack sufficient personnel to establish and maintain 
institutional arrangements that will enable the implementation according to the minimum 
requirements of the applicable legislations. 

Local Municipalities generally lack preparedness to deal with incidents of disasters and to 
facilitate the development, implementation and maintenance of disaster risk reduction 
strategies that will result in resilient areas, communities, households and individuals. Local 
Municipalities over-relies on the Dr Ruth S Mompati District Municipality to implemented and 
develop progressive risk profiles that will inform Local Municipal IDP processes of disaster 
risk reduction. 

There is a need to create public awareness to inculcate a culture of risk avoidance in 
uninformed and unprepared communities. 
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COMPONENT H: SPORT AND RECREATION 

INTRODUCTION TO SPORT AND RECREATION 

Sport and Recreation is responsible for the maintenance, improvement and promotion of all 
activities and assist with support to develop infrastructure of sport facilities in the district. The 
main of sport and recreation is to integrated local sport and recreation activities in the Local 
Municipalities, to transfer sustainable skills to the local sport people through development 
programmes. The ultimate is to ensure that all sporting codes are managed effectively and 
efficiently and running well in the district. 
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3.23 SPORT AND RECREATION 

SERVICE STATISTICS FOR SPORT AND RECREATION 

SOCCER 
Mayoral Cup is an annual event that seeks to touch the rural schools that are sometimes 
forgotten and neglected. Schools are identified with the help of councillors and Department of 
Education.  Learners are transported to a central venue. Before the Mayoral games start 
coaching of soccer and netball take place. Teachers are involved to ensure that lessons 
learnt are not easily forgotten. When the game starts they receive equipment. It is rotating so 
that all municipalities in the District get a chance to host these type of events 

ATHLETICS 
Consist out of in – and out of school runners.  It is an opportunity for everybody to get 
exposed to talent identification. Ten top runners with the best qualification times will then 
represent the district at the Comrades Marathon. Progress is monitored so that better 
results can be delivered. 

HOCKEY 
Is a scarce code in our district but with the help of the federation this code is well established 
in the district.  Big investments have taken place in Ganyesa, Taung and Lekwa-Teemane.  
Some of the players has developed so much that they qualify to play in North West Provincial 
leagues and even participate at the North West Provincial trials. Although there is still a lot to 
be done communities has accepted these codes and need more exposure. 

Meetings have been held with municipalities to develop Sports fields and federations through 
the Sports Council has been motivated to come on board to develop scarce codes. The 
availability of maintain sports fields in our District is a big challenge due to financial 
constraints. Sports specific person in Municipalities must be appointed for better coordination 
of sports activities. Provincial federations must ensure that their codes are develop and 
Sports Councils must play a bigger role in far rural areas .Lists are made  of clubs and 
organization’s to include in new budgets, but it must be noted that the budget of district is 
limited. 
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Sport and Recreation Policy Objectives Taken From IDP 
Service 
Objectives 

Outline 
Service 
Targets 

2015/2016 2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019 

Target Actual Target Actual Target 
Service 

Indicators 
*Previous Year *Previous

Year 
*Current

Year 
*Current

Year 
*Current Year *Following Year

(i) (ii) (iii) (iv) (v) (vi) (vii) (viii) (ix) (x) 
Service Objective : Sport & Recreation 

SOCCER 
 Mayoral 
Cup (Soccer) 

 0  0 0 1  1 1 1 1 

ATHLETICS 
 Fun Run for 
Local 
Athletes 

0  0  0 1 1 1 1 1 

 Athletics 0  0  0 1 1 1 1 1 

HOCKEY 
 Support to 
Hockey 
Clubs 

1  1 1 1 1 1 1 1 

 OTHERS 

 Netball 1  1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
 Tandem 
cycling for 
the blind 

0  0  0 1 1 1 1 1 
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Employees: Sport and Recreation 

Job Level 

2016/2017 2017/2018 
Employees Posts Employees Vacancies (fulltime 

equivalents) 
Vacancies (as a % of total 

posts) 

No. No. No. No. % 
0 - 3 % 
4 - 6 1 1 1 0 0% 
7 - 9 % 

10 - 12 % 
13 - 15 % 
16 - 18 % 
19 - 20 % 
Total % 

Financial Performance 2016/2017: Sport and Recreation 
R'000 

Details 

2016/2017 2017/2018 
Actual Original 

Budget 
Adjustment 

Budget 
Actual Variance to 

Budget 

Total Operational Revenue R500 000 R500 000 R348 000 R348 000 0% 

Expenditure: 

  Employees % 

    Repairs and Maintenance % 

    Other % 

Total Operational Expenditure % 

Net Operational Expenditure % 
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Capital Expenditure 2017/2018: Sport and Recreation 
R' 000 

Capital Projects 
(Sporting codes supported by 

the municipality) 

2017/2018 
Budget Adjustment 

Budget 
Actual 

Expenditure 
Variance 

from original 
budget 

Total Project 
Value 

1.Tandem cycling for the blind R14 627.42 0 % R14 627.42 
2.Fun Run for Local Athletes R56 000.00 0 R56 000.00 

3.Mayoral Cup (Soccer) R85 546.00 0 % R85 546.00 

4.Hockey R49 500.00 0 % R49 500.00 
5.Netball R24 498.00 0 % R24 498.00 
6.Athletics R 3 299.97 0 R33 299.97 

COMMENT ON THE PERFORMANCE OF SPORT AND RECREATION OVERALL: 

The municipality has no capital project budget for Sports and Recreation. The amount is 
allocated from operational budget of the municipality. The municipality only budgeted for 
support of sporting codes in the district. This is as a result of municipal powers and functions. 
Sport is not a core function of the municipality- it is the core function of Department of Sports. 
The district municipality is just providing a supportive role to communities on certain sporting 
codes.       
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COMPONENT I: CORPORATE POLICY OFFICES AND OTHER SERVICES 

INTRODUCTION TO CORPORATE POLICY OFFICES, Etc 

A Municipal Council must, within the municipality’s financial and administrative capacity and 
having regard for practical considerations, 
• exercise the municipality’s executive and legislative authority and use the resources of the
municipality in the best interests of the community; 
• provide, without favour or prejudice, democratic and accountable government;
• encourage the involvement of the community;
• strive to ensure that municipal services are provided to the community in a financially and
environmentally sustainable manner; 
• consult the community about the level, quality, range and impact of municipal services and
the available options for service delivery; 
• give members of the community equitable access to the municipal services to which they
are entitled; 
• promote and undertake development in the municipality;
• promote gender equity in the exercise of the municipality’s executive and legislative
authority; 
• promote a safe and healthy environment in the municipality; and
• contribute, together with other organs of state, to the progressive realisation of the
fundamental rights contained in sections 24, 25, 26, 27 and 29 of the Constitution. 
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3.24 EXECUTIVE AND COUNCIL 

INTRODUCTION TO EXECUTIVE AND COUNCIL 

The top political office consists of the Offices of the Executive Mayor, Speaker and the Chief 
Whip. This political management cluster is led by the Executive Mayor. The Municipal 
Manager is responsible for the administration wing of the municipality. The Executive and 
Council functioned properly during the year because all scheduled statutory meetings of 
council and mayoral committee took place. The Annual Budget was also approved thirty days 
before the end of the Financial Year. 

The main function as the district municipality is to provide basic services such as water, 
sanitation, safe and healthy environment to the communities. Top 3 service delivery priorities 
were good governance, proper financial management and basic services. 
Audit Action Plan on matters raised by the Auditor General during past financial were 
developed and submitted to Council for noting and referral to MPAC for monitoring. The Audit 
Action Plan was coordinated by the Internal Audit and management has been meeting 
weekly to provide feedback on achievement made on addressing issues raised by the AG. 
MPAC also held monthly meetings to perform oversight on behalf of council. 

129



Employees: The Executive and Council 

Job 
Level 

2016/2017 2017/2018 
Employees Posts Employees Vacancies (fulltime 

equivalents) 
Vacancies (as a % 

of total posts) 

No. No. No. No. % 
0 - 3 3 4 3 1 25% 
4 - 6 6 7 6 1 14% 
7 - 9 3 6 6 6 50% 
10 - 12 
13 - 15 
16 - 18 
19 - 20 
Total 12 17 15 8 47% 
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3.25 FINANCIAL SERVICES 

INTRODUCTION FINANCIAL SERVICES 

The financial management of the municipality is coordinated under the Budget and Treasury 
Office as established in terms of S80 of the MFMA.  The responsibilities for the municipal 
coffers including financial management, financial planning, financial accounting and supply 
chain management are placed within the Budget and Treasury.  The staff complement within 
the BTO is twenty people, headed by the Chief Financial Officer.  The vacancy rate of the 
budget and treasury office increased from one vacant position to four during the financial 
year.  Two resignations and one promotion contributed to the increased in the vacancy rate. 

The Budget and Treasury Office is divided into two performance units, namely Income, 
Budgeting and Expenditure Management Unit and the Supply Chain and Reporting Unit. 
These units are further divided into four sections (Income and Budgeting section, Supply 
Chain and Asset Management section, Payroll section and Expenditure Management 
section).  These performance arrangements were agreed upon during a strategic planning 
session which was held by the Budget and Treasury Office during the financial year.  The 
department has gone through the year ensuring that the reporting requirements of the 
National and Provincial Treasury are timeously done, and that general compliance with the 
Municipal Finance Management Act is achieved.   

The supply chain management arrangements have been decentralised, however, the 
municipality is in a process of centralising the supply chain management activities to ensure 
effectiveness and maximum turnaround times.  Capacitation of the supply chain management 
function of the municipality is still lagging behind following an effort to centralise the unit, thus 
affecting the fully effective and fully centralised unit.  The Supply Chain Management 
Committees have been running effectively and the procurement turnaround times have 
improved hugely.  The Budget Steering Committee was also established during the year and 
has been running effectively.   

The Budget and Treasury Office of the Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati District Municipality is 
committed to its mandate to provide a comprehensive financial management service to 
Council and to other departments of the municipality.  The department supports the 
Integrated Development Plan of Council by striving to provide a stable and sustainable 
financial environment from which Council can deliver services to all inhabitants of the 
Municipality. One of the critical focus areas for the year was to ensure that the financial 
records of the municipality are safeguarded and are kept in a manner which is accessible and 
can be easily available for reference and for audit purposes.    
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3.26 CORPORATE SERVICES 

INTRODUCTION TO CORPORATE SERVICES 

The Corporate Services Department has developed the Human Resources Strategy which 
will assist the employees of the District Municipality to perform better by sending them to 
different trainings and short courses as stated in the Workplace Skills Plan. All senior 
managers and some level 2 managers were enrolled with Wits University to acquire CPMD 
(F) which they all completed successfully.    
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Corporate Service Policy Objectives Taken From IDP 
Outline Service 

Targets 
2016/2017 2017/2018 2017/2018 2017/2018 

Target Actual Target Actual Target 
*Previous

Year *Previous Year
*Current

Year 
*Current Year *Current

Year 
*Following

Year 
(ii) (iii) (iv) (v) (vi) (vii) (viii) (ix) (x) 

Service Objective 
To approve and 

implement Workplace 
Skills Plan (WSP) to 

comply with legislation 
(MTAS) 

Addresses output 5.1 
and outcome 12.2.4 

2015/2016 WSP 
approved and 
implemented 

2015/2016 WSP 
approved and 
implemented 

2015/2016 WSP approved 
and implemented 

One WSP 
approved by 

end June 
2018 

Achieved  
(Acknowledgement 
letter dated 08 May 
has been received 

from LGSETA) 

Workplace Skills 
Plan developed 
and submitted 
to LGSETA by 

the end of April 

Workplace 
Skills Plan 
developed 

Workplace 
Skills Plan 
developed 

To develop and 
approve Employment 
Equity Plan to comply 

with legislation  
(MTAS) addresses 

output 12.2.2 

2015/2016 
Employment 
Equity Plan 

-2015/2016 
Employment Equity 

Plan 

Appoint 2 people with 
disability 

- - - - - 

To align  the 
organisational structure 
to the  IDP and budget 

Revise Staff 
Establishment 

linked to the IDP 
and Fill vacant 

funded position 

Organizational 
structure 

developed 
internally and 
approved by 

Council 

Revise Staff Establishment 
linked to the IDP 

One  
organisational 

structure 
reviewed by 

end June 
2018 

- - None None 
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Employees: Corporate Services 

Job Level 

2016/2017 2017/2018 
Employees Posts Employees Vacancies 

(fulltime 
equivalents) 

Vacancies (as a % of total posts) 

No. No. No. No. % 
Sec 56 1 1 1 0 0% 
0 - 3 4 7 5 2 29% 
4 - 6 5 9 4 5 56% 
7 – 9 5 6 5 1 17% 

10 - 12 20 23 22 1 4% 
Interns 1 2 2 0 0% 
Total 36 48 39 9 19% 
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COMMENT ON THE PERFORMANCE OF CORPORATE SERVICES OVERALL: 

The main purpose of the Corporate Services Department is to render support services to key 
line departments with regard to human resources; administration and records management, 
legal & security services, ICT services and training & development. 

A number of councilors and officials attended training interventions and were declared 
competent including eight (8) senior managers who attended and completed CPMD and 
graduated after successful completion of the program.  The department submitted workplace 
skills plan on time and as part of skills development, the district municipality financially 
assisted 50 young people and 22 officials to pursue their studies with institutions of higher 
learning.   

The district municipality has achieved its employment equity target by successfully appointing 
four female employees and four male employees on senior management positions. Twelve 
employees terminated their services with the district municipality and twelve were appointed 
to fill vacant funded positions during the year under review. All sittings of council and mayoral 
committee were successfully coordinated and supported through delivery of council agenda 
and minutes on time.  Council managed to hold its four (4) statutory meetings and seven (7) 
special meetings during the year.  The department of arts and culture approved the reviewed 
File Plan together with the Records Control Schedule of the district municipality.  

The district municipality has established the Security Unit through the assistance of State 
Security Agency (SSA) and one official was appointed in a management position.  It further 
established an Information Technology (IT) Unit with 2 officials appointed already.   

The Legal Services Unit assisted management and council in reviewing 31 policies of which 
21 were approved and adopted by Council in August 2014 and 10 were adopted in 
December 2014.  The legal services unit further reviewed Service Level Agreements and 
Memorandum of Statutes.  

The district municipality values stability in the workplace and through the Local Labour Forum 
(LLF) which is functional as it holds its meetings regularly, all labour related issues are ironed 
out between employer representatives and employee representative. 
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3.27 INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY (ICT) SERVICES 

This component includes: Information and Communication Technology (ICT) services. 

INTRODUCTION TO INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY (ICT) 
SERVICES 

Information and Communication Technology in Dr. Ruth Segomotsi Mompati District 
Municipality (Dr RSMDM) is regarded as a strategic resource. It is viewed as both a critical 
and catalyst function for enabling service delivery at the face of the community. 

Key to the strategic nature of ICT in the municipality is the enabling of the municipal key 
objectives of the municipality in order to meet its constitutional obligations. Municipal ICT 
enable the achievement of these obligations by deploying relevant information technology 
solutions 

Municipal ICT Unit intend to: 

-To provide technical support services by ensuring new installations, configuration 
management and  infrastructure troubleshooting. 
-upgrade municipal network domain controller (DC) to the latest technology in the market. 
-Implement office of the Auditor General recommendation to improve municipal systems. 
-Implement internal controls and access right. 
-Monitor upgraded dedicated Diginet line for internet services of 2Mb. 
-Refresh hardware/software throughout the municipality and undertake an Audit of all the 
software  licences of the municipality. 
-Maintain all new UPS’s, Network Switches and new servers for municipal application 
systems. 
-Monitor deployed latest version of Symantec Anti-Virus System 
-Update and upload latest information that need community knowledge to the website. 
-Manage and monitor municipal network system by updating new firewall installed. 
-Replace old computer system and upgrade Microsoft Offices to the latest version. 
-Assist local municipalities per request on matters regarding IT services 
-Assist local municipalities per request with internet and email access  
-Assist local with electronic records management system (Collaborator) 
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SERVICE STATISTICS FOR ICT SERVICES 

This unit is responsible to implement Municipal Corporate Governance of ICT Policy 
Framework (MCGICTPF) developed by the Department of Public Service and Administration 
in cooperation with Government Information Technology Officer Council (GITOC) as it was 
adopted by cabinet on the 21st November 2012, and is applicable to Local Government.  

Municipality has put internal controls in place and the following policies has been submitted to 
Council for adoption. This is done to implement all issues raised by Office of the Auditor 
General (AG).  
- IT Policy 
- Anti-Virus 
- Backup Policy 
- Change Management 
- Disaster Recovery System 
- Email Acceptable 
- Firewall  
- IT Steering Committee Charter 
- User Account Management  

The following services are provided by the district municipality to assist locals with ICT 
related projects. 
- Electronic Records Management Systems (Collaborator) 
- Internet and email access 
- ICT Support Services 

Challenges  
-No fully-fledged ICT Unit (shortage of full time IT personnel)  
-Financial crisis to assist other Local Municipalities with provision of internet and email 
access. 
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Information Technology Services Policy Objectives Taken From IDP 
Service 
Objectives 

Outline 
Service 
Targets 

2016/2017 2017/2018 2017/2018 2018/2019 

Target Actual Target Actual Target 
Service 

Indicators 
*Previous Year *Previous

Year *Current Year
*Current

Year 
*Current

Year 
*Following

Year 
(i) (ii) (iii) (iv) (v) (vi) (vii) (viii) (ix) (x) 

Service Objective 

 Addressed in 
Corporate 
Services 

Addressed in 
Corporate 
Services 

Addressed in 
Corporate 
Services 

Addressed in 
Corporate 
Services 

Addressed in 
Corporate 
Services 

Addressed 
in 

Corporate 
Services 

Addressed in 
Corporate 
Services 

Addressed 
in 

Corporate 
Services 

138



3.28 LEGAL SERVICES 

INTRODUCTION TO LEGAL SERVICES 

The aim of Legal Services is to provide proper legal services, including legal advice, legal 
opinion and contract management to Council and management of Dr. Ruth S Mompati 
District Municipality. 

Priorities for Legal Services are as follows: 
i. To provide legal advice and legal opinion
ii. To ensure that policies are in place and complied with
iii. Assist in labour related matters including representing the District Municipality at
Bargaining Council 
iv. Management of contract
v. Liaise with outside firm of attorneys
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Legal Services Policy Objectives Taken From IDP 
Service 

Objectives 
Outline 
Service 
Targets 

2016/2017 2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019 
 

Target Actual Target Actual Target 
Service 

Indicators 
*Previous

Year 

 
*Previous

Year *Current Year

 
*Current Year *Current Year *Following

Year 
(i) (ii) (iii) (iv) (v) (vi) (vii) (viii) (ix) (x) 

Service Objective 
Build and 
strengthen the 
administrative, 
institutional 
and financial 
capabilities of 
the district and 
local 
municipalities  

Number of 
reports 

submitted 
to Snr 

Manager: 
Corporate 

Services on 
Legal 

advices 
provided  

Indicated / 
Addressed at 

Corporate 
Services 

Indicated / 
Addressed 

at 
Corporate 
Services 

Indicated / 
Addressed at 

Corporate 
Services 

Indicated / 
Addressed at 

Corporate 
Services 

Indicated / 
Addressed 

at 
Corporate 
Services 

Indicated / 
Addressed at 

Corporate 
Services 
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COMMENT ON THE PERFORMANCE OF LEGAL SERVICES UNIT: 

The priorities for Legal Services are to implement the following: 
i. To provide legal advice and legal opinion
ii. To ensure that policies are in place and complied with
iii. Assist in labour related matters including representing the District Municipality at
Bargaining Council 
iv. Management of contract
v. Liaise with outside firm of attorneys.
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3.28.1 RISK MANAGEMENT 
INTRODUCTION TO RISK MANAGEMENT 

In terms of Sections 62(1) (c) (i) and 95(c) (i) of the MFMA, Accounting officers, and other 
officials within the organisation, should ensure that they have effective, efficient and 
transparent systems of financial and risk management and internal control. In order to assist 
officials in discharging certain of their risk management responsibilities, the Risk 
Management Unit embarked on a process to facilitate the identification and rating of business 
risks. 

The realisation of the Municipalities within the Dr Ruth S. Mompati District, strategic plan 
depends on Management being able to take calculated risks in a way that does not 
jeopardise the direct interest of stakeholders. Sound management of risk(s) will enable 
Management to anticipate and respond to changes in the service delivery environment, as 
well as make informed decisions under conditions of uncertainty. 

The risk management framework addresses key elements to be implemented and maintained 
by the Municipalities, which will allow for the management of risks within defined risk/return 
parameters, risk appetite and tolerances as well as risk management standards.  As such, it 
provides a framework for the effective identification, evaluation, management, measurement 
and reporting of the Municipalities’ risks. 

The achieved primary goals of the Risk Management Unit in 2017/2018 were to support the 
overall mission of the Municipalities by: 
 -Supporting business continuity; 
 -Supporting reputation risk; 
 -Defining risk management roles and responsibilities within the Municipalities and outlining 
procedures to mitigate risks so as to ensure a dynamic and demonstrable process in which 
responsibility rests with line management with overall responsibility vested in the Accounting 
Officers and the Risk Management Unit. 
-Ensuring pro-active, consistent, integrated and acceptable management of risk throughout 
the Municipalities; 
-Defining a reporting framework to ensure regular communication of pre-defined risk 
management  information to the respective Municipalities’ Council, Audit and Executive 
Committees, the  Municipalities’ senior management and officials engaged in risk 
management activities; 
-Remaining flexible to accommodate the changing risk profile and management needs of the 
-Municipalities within the District, while maintaining control of the overall risk position; 
-Document the approved methodology for risk measurement; and 
-Providing a system or process to accommodate the central accumulation of risk data such 
as the  development and maintenance of a risk register, which must form part of operational 
support and  procedures. 
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Risk Management  Objectives Taken From IDP 
Service Objectives Outline Service Targets 

 
2017/2018 2017/2018 2018/2019 

Target Actual Target Actual Target 

Service Indicators 
*Previous

Year 

 
*Previous

Year 
*Current

Year 

 
*Current

Year 
*Current

Year 
*Following

Year 
(i) (ii) (iii) (iv) (v) (vi) (vii) (viii) (ix) (x) 

Approved Risk Management 
Implementation Plan  

1 Approved Risk 
Management 

Implementation Plan 

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 

 Risk Management Framework 
developed, reviewed, approved 
by stakeholders & adopted by 
Council. 

1 Risk Management 
Framework developed, 
reviewed, approved by 

stakeholders & adopted by 
Council. 

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 

Approved Risk Management 
Strategy 

1 Approved Risk 
Management Strategy 

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 

Develop Risk Register per 
Department in Dr RSM DM  and 
facilitate risk assessment per 
department 

Develop 1 Risk Register per 
Department in Dr RSM DM  

and facilitate risk assessment 
per department 

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 

Risk Management Workshops & 
awareness sessions held per 
department   

4 Risk Management 
Workshops & awareness 
sessions held per department  
(28) 

4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 
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Employees:  Risk Management 

Job Level 

2016/2017 2017/2018 
Employees Posts Employees Vacancies (fulltime 

equivalents) 
Vacancies (as a % 

of total posts) 

No. No. No. No. % 
0 - 3 1 1 1 0 100% 
4 - 6 2 2 2 0 100% 
7 - 9 

10 - 12 
13 - 15 
16 - 18 
19--20 
Total 

COMMENT ON THE PERFORMANCE OF RISK MANAGEMENT SERVICES OVERALL: 

There were no specific capital projects for the 2017/2018. However, the operational budget 
used to implement the Risk Management KPIs and targets, the quantification therefore will be 
reflected in the overall expenditure under the operational budget of the Office of the Municipal 
Manager. 
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3.28.2 MINIMUM INFORMATION SECURITY 

INTRODUCTION TO MINIMUM SECURITY STANDARDS 

It is the responsibility of any institution to ensure that its employees, information and 
properties are safely secured or protected. Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati District Municipality 
as a government institution must comply with all legislations governing security issues such 
as MISS. The purpose is to provide a safe and secure working environment. 

SERVICE STATISTICS FOR MINIMUM SECURITY STANDARDS 

1.Access control is a process in which several measures are applied to ensure that any
person entering and leaving the premises has a bona fide reason to enter and does not 
commit any security breaches during the stay period. In order to achive this we have 
strengthen the security by creating one entrance and exit. 

2.Counter espionage information that is sensitive which is in the national interest must be
protected from unlawful disclosure – awareness campaigns were conducted with the 
State Security Agency in order to educate officials with regard to safeguarding of 
information. 

3.Security clearance and Vetting it is the process undertaken in order to dertimine security
competence of an individual- the challenge is that not all officials comply with the act to 
undergo the vetting process. 

Minimum Security Standard Service Data 
Details 2015/2016 2016/2017 2017/2018 

Actual No. Estimate No. Actual No. Estimate No. 

1 
Number of security breach accidents 
during the year 0 2 2 0 

2 
Number of council policy infringements 
attended 0 1 1 1 

3 Number of cases prosecuted per annum 0 1 1 1 
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Minimum Security Standard Services Policy Objectives Taken From IDP 
Service 
Objectives 

Outline Service 
Targets 

2015/2016 2017/2018 2017/2018 2018/2019 

Target Actual Target Actual Target 
Service 

Indicators 
*Previous

Year 
*Previous

Year *Current Year
*Current Year *Current

Year 
*Following

Year 
(i) (ii) (iii) (iv) (v) (vi) (vii) (viii) (ix) (x) 

Service Objective 
 Develop a 
Policy on 
Security 
Management 
and submit to 
Council 

Policy on 
Security 
Management 
and submitted 
to Council 

0  0  0  1 1 1 1 0 
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COMPONENT J: MISCELLANEOUS 

INTRODUCTION TO MISCELLANEOUS 

Component J is not our function 

147



COMPONENT K: ORGANISATIONAL PERFOMANCE SCORECARD 

Ref Directorate National 
Outcome 

National 
KPA 

Pre-
determined 
Objectives 

Strategic 
Objective 

Municipal 
KPA 

KPI Unit of 
Measuremen

t 

KPI Owner Baseline KPI 
Calculation 

Type 

KPI 
Target 
Type 

Annual 
Target 

Actual Variance Reason 

for 

Variance 

Correctiv

e 

Measure 

TL1 
Office of the 

Municipal 
Manager 

A 
responsive 

and 
accountab

le, 
effective 

and 
efficient 

local 
governme
nt system 

Good 
Governanc

e and 
Public 

Participati
on 

Deepen 
Democracy 
through a 

refined 
participatory 
democracy 

To address 
AG’s 

Queries 
and attain 

clean 
audit 

Good 
Governanc

e and 
Public 

Participati
on 

% of AG 
recomm
endatio

ns 
implem
ented 
by 30 
June 
2018 

% of AG 
recommenda

tions 
implemente

d 

Municipal 
Manager 

KPI 
from 

2016/17 

Accu 
% 90%  68% 22% Lack of 

dedicated 
Team for 

Audit Action 
Plan 

To 
establish a 
Technical 
Audit 
Team 
which 
comprises 
of Unit 
Managers 

TL2 
Office of the 

Municipal 
Manager 

A  
responsive 

and 
accountab

le, 
effective 

and 
efficient 

local 
governme
nt system 

Municipal 
and 

Financial 
Viability 

Build and 
Strengthen 

the 
administrativ

e, 
institutional 
and financial 
capabilities 

of the 
district and 

local 
municipalitie

s 

To attain 
and 

maintain 
financial 
viability 

and 
sustainabil

ity by 
executing 
accountin
g services 

in 
accordanc

e with 
National 

Policy and 
Guidelines 

Service 
Delivery 

and 
Infrastruct

ure 
Developm

ent 

% of 
approve

d 
Municip

al 
Budget 
Spent 
by 30 
June 
2018 

% of 
approved 
Municipal 

Budget 
Spent 

Municipal 
Manager 

KPI 
from 

2016/17 

Accu 
% 96%  70%    26% Lack of 

spending on 
Capital 

Projects due 
to the 

blockages by 
Community 
Members 
and Tribal 

Authorities 

Municipali
ties have 

been 
engaging 

with 
different 
stakehold

ers 
through 

meetings 
to get the 

issues 
resolved.  
We are 
still in 

Communic
ation with 
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the tribal 
councils to 

resolve 
the 

matters. 

TL3 
Executive 
Support 

A  
responsive 

and 
accountab

le, 
effective 

and 
efficient 

local 
governme
nt system 

Good 
Governanc

e and 
Public 

Participati
on 

Deepen 
Democracy 
through a 

refined 
participatory 
democracy 

To ensure 
good 

governanc
e practices 

by 
providing 

a 
democrati
c and pro-

active 
accountab

le 
governme

nt and 
ensuring 

communit
y 

participati
on 

through 
existing 

IDP 
Structures 

Good 
Governanc

e and 
Public 

Participati
on 

Review
ed 

Commu
nication 
Policy 
by 30 
June 
2018 

Communicati
on Policy 
reviewed 

and 
submitted to 

Council 

Senior 
Manager: 
Executive 
Support 

KPI 
from 

2016/17 

Carry Over Docume
nt 

Communicati
on Policy 
reviewed 

and 
submitted to 

Council by 
end June 

2018 

Not 
Achieved 

100% Council 
Referred the 
Communicati

on Policy 
back to the 
Department

The 
Reviewed 
Policy will 

be 
submitted 
to Council 

by June 
2019

TL4 
Executive 
Support 

A 
responsive 

and 
accountab

le, 
effective 

and 
efficient 

local 
governme
nt system 

Good 
Governanc

e and 
Public 

Participati
on 

Deepen 
Democracy 
through a 

refined 
participatory 
democracy 

To ensure 
good 

governanc
e practices 

by 
providing 

a 
democrati
c and pro-

active 
accountab

le 
governme

nt and 
ensuring 

communit
y 

participati
on 

through 
existing 

IDP 
Structures 

Good 
Governanc

e and 
Public 

Participati
on 

Review
ed 

Commu
nication 
Strategy 

by 30 
June 
2018 

Communicati
on Strategy 
reviewed 

and 
submitted to 

Council 

Senior 
Manager: 
Executive 
Support 

KPI 
from 

2016/17 

Carry Over Docume
nt 

Communicati
on Strategy 
reviewed 

and 
submitted to 

Council by 
end June 

2018 

Not 
Achieved 

100% Council 
Referred the 
Communicati
on Strategy 
back to the 
Department

The 
Reviewed 
Policy will 

be 
submitted 
to Council 

by June 
2019
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TL5 
Corporate 
Services 

A 
responsive 

and 
accountab

le, 
effective 

and 
efficient 

local 
governme
nt system 

Good 
Governanc

e and 
Public 

Participati
on 

Build and 
Strengthen 

the 
administrativ

e, 
institutional 
and financial 
capabilities 
of district 
and local 

municipalitie
s 

To ensure 
good 

governanc
e practices 

by 
providing 

a 
democrati
c and pro-

active 
accountab

le 
governme

nt and 
ensuring 

communit
y 
participati
on 
through 
existing 
IDP 
Structures 

Good 
Governanc

e and 
Public 

Participati
on 

Number 
of 

Mayoral 
Commit

tee 
Meeting

s held 
quarterl
y by 30 

June 
2018 

Number of 
Mayoral 

Committee 
Meetings 

held 
quarterly by 
30 June 2018 

Snr 
Manager: 
Corporate 
Services 

KPI 
from 

2016/17 

Carry Over Number 
4 7 Mayoral 

Committee 
Meetings 
were held  

3 There were 
urgent 

matters 
which 

needed 
Mayoral 

Committee 
to resolved 

None 

TL6 
Corporate 
Services 

A 
responsive 

and 
accountab

le, 
effective 

and 
efficient 

local 
governme
nt system 

Good 
Governanc

e and 
Public 

Participati
on 

Build and 
Strengthen 

the 
administrativ

e, 
institutional 
and financial 
capabilities 
of district 
and local 

municipalitie
s 

To ensure 
good 

governanc
e practices 

by 
providing 

a 
democrati
c and pro-

active 
accountab

le 
governme

nt and 
ensuring 

communit
y 
participati
on 
through 
existing 
IDP 
Structures 

Good 
Governanc

e and 
Public 

Participati
on 

Number 
of 

Council 
Meeting

s held 
quarterl
y by 30 

June 
2018 

Number of 
Council 

Meetings 
held  

Snr 
Manager: 
Corporate 
Services 

KPI 
from 

2016/17 

Carry Over Number 
7 14 Council   

Meetings 
were held  

7 There were 
urgent 

matters 
which 

needed 
Council to 
resolved 

None 

TL7 
Corporate 
Services 

A 
responsive 

and 
accountab

Good 
Governanc

e and 
Public 

Build and 
Strengthen 

the 
administrativ

To ensure 
good 

governanc
e practices 

Good 
Governanc

e and 
Public 

Number 
of 

Monitor
ing 

Number of  
Monitoring 
Reports on 
contracts 

Snr 
Manager: 
Corporate 

KPI 
from 

Carry Over Number 
4 8 Monitoring 

Reports 
4 There were 

Capital 
Projects 

None 
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le, 
effective 

and 
efficient 

local 
governme
nt system 

Participati
on 

e, 
institutional 
and financial 
capabilities 
of district 
and local 

municipalitie
s 

by 
providing 

a 
democrati
c and pro-

active 
accountab

le 
governme

nt  

Participati
on 

Reports 
on 

contract
s 

betwee
n the 

District 
Municip

ality 
and 

Service 
Provide

rs 
compile

d 
quarterl
y by 30 

June 
2018 

between the 
District 

Municipality 
and Service 
Providers 
submitted  

Services 2016/17 were done 

Achieved 

which 
needed 

monitoring 
by Legal Unit 

TL8 
Corporate 
Services 

A Skilled 
and 

Capable 
Workforce 
to support 
inclusive 
Growth 

Municipal 
Transform
ation and 
Institution

al 
Developm

ent 

Build and 
Strengthen 

the 
administrativ

e, 
institutional 
and financial 
capabilities 
of district 
and local 

municipalitie
s 
 
 
 

Improve 
organizati

onal 
cohesion 

and 
effectiven

ess 

Municipal 
Transform
ation and 
Institution

al 
Developm

ent 

Workpl
ace 

Skills 
Plan 

Develop
ed and 

Submitt
ed to 

LGSETA 
by 30 
June 
2018 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Workplace 
Skills Plan 
Developed 

and 
Submitted to 

LGSETA  

Snr 
Manager: 
Corporate 
Services 

KPI 
from 

2016/17 

Carry Over Docume
nt 

Workplace 
Skills Plan 
Developed 

and 
Submitted to 

LGSETA 

 

Achieved 

 

None 

 

None 

 

None 

TL9 
Corporate 
Services 

A Skilled 
and 

Capable 
Workforce 
to support 

Municipal 
Transform
ation and 
Institution

al 

Build and 
Strengthen 

the 
administrativ

e, 

Improve 
organizati

onal 
cohesion 

and 

Municipal 
Transform
ation and 
Institution

al 

Number 
of 

people 
from 

equity 

Number of 
people from 
equity target 

groups 
employed 

Snr 
Manager: 
Corporate 

KPI 
from 

Accu Number All People 
from equity 

target 
groups 

employed 

Achieved None None None 
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inclusive 
Growth 

Developm
ent 

institutional 
and financial 
capabilities 
of district 
and local 

municipalitie
s 

effectiven
ess 

Developm
ent 

target 
groups 
employ

ed 
(appoin
ted) in 

the 
three 

highest 
levels 

on 
manage
ment in 
complia

nce 
with a 

municip
ality’s 

approve
d equity 
plan by 
30 June 

2018 

(appointed) 
in the three 

highest 
levels on 

management 
in 

compliance 
with a 

municipality’
s approved 
equity plan  

Services 2015/16 (appointed) 
in the three 

highest 
levels on 

management 
in 

compliance 
with a 

municipality’
s approved 
equity plan  

TL10 
Communit
y Services 

Improve 
health and 

life 
expectanc

y 

Basic 
Service 
Delivery 

Improve the 
quality 

municipal 
services to 

the people in 
line with 
clean and 
healthy 

environment 

All citizens 
have a 

right to an 
environme
nt that is 

not 
detriment

al  to 
human 
health, 
and it 

imposes a 
duty on 

the state 
to 

promulgat
e 

legislation 
and to 

implemen
t policies 
aimed at 

Communit
y Services 

and 
Developm

ent 

Number 
of  

inspecti
ons of 
food 

premise
s within 

the 
District 

Conduct
ed 

quarterl
y  by 30 

June 
2018 

Number of 
inspections 

of food 
premises 

within the 
District 

Conducted  

Snr 
Manager: 
Communit
y  Services 

KPI 
from 

2016/17 

Carry Over Number 1600  
2066 466 The 

increased 
performance 
is influenced 
by Monthly 

special 
operations 
conducted 

by a  team of 
law 

enforcers 

None 
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ensuring 
that this 
right is 
upheld 

TL11 
Communit
y Services 

Improve 
health and 

life 
expectanc

y 

Basic 
Service 
Delivery 

Improve the 
quality 

municipal 
services to 

the people in 
line with 
clean and 
healthy 

environment 

All citizens 
have a 

right to an 
environme
nt that is 

not 
detriment

al  to 
human 
health, 
and it 

imposes a 
duty on 

the state 
to 

promulgat
e 

legislation 
and to 

implemen
t policies 
aimed at 
ensuring 
that this 
right is 
upheld 

Communit
y Services 

and 
Developm

ent 

Number 
of 

bacterio
logical, 

chemica
l and 

sewerag
e water 
samples 
collecte

d for 
analysis 
quarterl
y by 30 

June 
2018 

Number of 
bacteriologic
al, chemical 

and 
sewerage 

water 
samples 

collected for 
analysis 

Snr 
Manager: 
Communit
y  Services 

KPI 
from 

2016/17 

Carry Over Number  
 
 
 

1000   

 

1272 

 

272 

Increase is 
due to Re- 

sampling of 
Non-

compliant 
sources 

 

None 

TL12 
Communit
y Services 

Improve 
health and 

life 
expectanc

y 

Basic 
Service 
Delivery 

Improve the 
quality 

municipal 
services to 

the people in 
line with 

safe 
environment 

All citizens 
have a 

right to an 
environme
nt that is 

not 
detriment

al  to 
human 
health, 
and it 

imposes a 
duty on 

the state 
to 

promulgat
e 

legislation 
and to 

implemen
t policies 
aimed at 
ensuring 

Communit
y Services 

and 
Developm

ent 

Number 
of Fire 

Preventi
on 

Inspecti
ons at 
Local 

Busines
s 

Conduct
ed 

quarterl
y by 30 

June 
2018 

Number of 
Fire 

Prevention 
Inspections 

at Local 
Business 

Conducted  

Snr 
Manager: 
Communit
y  Services 

KPI 
from 

2016/17 

Carry Over Number  
 
 

100  

 

Achieved 

 

8 

There was 
a higher 
demand 

for 
inspections 

 

None 

153



that this 
right is 
upheld 

TL13 
Communit
y Services 

Improve 
health and 

life 
expectanc

y 

Basic 
Service 
Delivery 

Improve the 
quality 

municipal 
services to 

the people in 
line with 

safe 
environment 

All citizens 
have a 

right to an 
environme
nt that is 

not 
detriment

al  to 
human 
health, 
and it 

imposes a 
duty on 

the state 
to 

promulgat
e 

legislation 
and to 

implemen
t policies 
aimed at 
ensuring 
that this 
right is 
upheld 

Communit
y Services 

and 
Developm

ent 

Number 
of 

reports 
receive
d from 
Local 

Municip
alities 

on % of 
househ

olds 
with 

accesse
s to 

basic 
level of 

solid 
waste 

removal 
by June 

2018 

% of 
households 
with basic 

level of solid 
waste 

removal   

Snr 
Manager: 
Communit
y  Services 

New KPI  
Accu Number 1 

Not 
Achieved 

100% Local 
Municipalitie

s did not 
submit their 
reports on a 

quarterly 
basis as 

required.

Letters of 
non -

complianc
e were 

forwarded 
to each 

local 
municipali

ty on 16 
April 2018 
but it had 
no impact 

on the 
submissio

n of 
reports.

TL14 
Executive 
Support 

A 
responsive 

and 
accountab

le, 
effective 

and 
efficient 

local 
governme
nt system 

Good 
Governanc

e and 
Public 

Participati
on 

Build and 
Strengthen 

the 
administrativ

e, 
institutional 
and financial 
capabilities 
of district 
and local 

municipalitie
s 

To ensure 
good 

governanc
e practices 

by 
providing 

a 
democrati
c and pro-

active 
accountab

le 
governme

nt and 
ensuring 

communit
y 

participati
on 

through 
existing 

IDP 
Structures 

Good 
Governanc

e and 
Public 

Participati
on 

Number 
of IGR 

meeting
s held 
by the 

Municip
al 

Manage
r bi-

annuall
y by 30 

June 
2018 

Number of 
IGR meetings 
held by the 
Municipal 
Manager  

Snr 
Manager: 
Executive 
Support 

KPI 
from 

2016/17 

Carry Over Number 

4  Not 
Achieved 3 

IGR   
Meetings 
were held 

1 

Due to 
unforeseen 

circumstance
s 3 IGR   

Meetings 
were held  

Municipal 
Managers 

will be 
requested 

to 
prioritize 
IGR in the 

district 
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TL15 
Executive 
Support 

A 
responsive 

and 
accountab

le, 
effective 

and 
efficient 

local 
governme
nt system 

Good 
Governanc

e and 
Public 

Participati
on 

Build and 
Strengthen 

the 
administrativ

e, 
institutional 
and financial 
capabilities 
of district 
and local 

municipalitie
s 

To ensure 
good 

governanc
e practices 

by 
providing 

a 
democrati
c and pro-

active 
accountab

le 
governme

nt and 
ensuring 

communit
y 

participati
on 

through 
existing 

IDP 
Structures 

Good 
Governanc

e and 
Public 

Participati
on 

Number 
of IGR 

meeting
s held 
by the 

Executiv
e Mayor 
quarterl
y by 30 

June 
2018 

Number of 
IGR meetings 
held by the 
Executive 

Mayor  

Snr 
Manager: 
Executive 
Support 

KPI 
from 

2016/17 

Carry Over Number  
 

4 
 

Not 
Achieved 3 

IGR   
Meetings 
were held  

 

1 

Due to 
unforeseen 

circumstance
s 3 IGR   

Meetings 
were held  

Mayors 
will be 

requested 
to 

prioritize 
IGR in the 

district 

TL16 Budget 
and 

Treasury 

A 
responsive 

and 
accountab

le, 
effective 

and 
efficient 

local 
governme
nt system 

Municipal 
Financial 
Viability 

Build and 
strengthen 

the 
administrativ

e, 
institutional 
and financial 
capabilities 

of the 
district and 

local 
municipalitie

s 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Improve 
organisati

onal 
cohesion 

and 
effectiven

ess 

Municipal 
Financial 
Viability 

2018/20
19 Draft 
Budget 
submitt

ed to 
Council 
by 31 
March 
2018 

2018/2019 
Draft Budget 
submitted to 

Council  

CFO 
KPI 

from 
2016/17 

Carry Over Docume
nt 
 
 
 

2018/ 2019 
Draft Budget 
submitted to 

Council  

 

Achieved 

 

 

 

 

 

 

None 

 

None 

 

None 

TL17 
Budget 

and 
Treasury 

A 
responsive 

and 
accountab

le, 
effective 

and 
efficient 

Municipal 
Financial 
Viability 

Build and 
strengthen 

the 
administrativ

e, 
institutional 
and financial 
capabilities 

Improve 
organisati

onal 
cohesion 

and 
effectiven

ess 

Municipal 
Financial 
Viability 

2018/20
19 

budget 
submitt

ed to 
Council 
by 31 
May 

2018/2019 
Budget 

submitted to 
Council  

CFO KPI 
from 

2015/16 

Carry Over Docume
nt 
 
 
 

2018/ 
2019 Budget 
submitted to 

Council  

 

Achieved 

 

None 

 

None 

 

None 
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local 
governme
nt system 

of the 
district and 

local 
municipalitie

s 

2018 

TL18 
Budget 

and 
Treasury 

A 
responsive 

and 
accountab

le, 
effective 

and 
efficient 

local 
governme
nt system 

Municipal 
Financial 
Viability 

Build and 
strengthen 

the 
administrativ

e, 
institutional 
and financial 
capabilities 

of the 
district and 

local 
municipalitie

s 

Improve 
organisati

onal 
cohesion 

and 
effectiven

ess 

Municipal 
Financial 
Viability 

Draft 
Adjustm

ent 
Budget 
submitt
ed for 

approva
l to 

Council 
by  31 
March 
2018 

 

Draft 
Adjustment 
Budget for 
approval to 

Council  

CFO 
KPI 

from 
2016/17 

Carry Over Docume
nt 
 
 
 

Draft 
Adjustment 
Budget for 
approval to 
Council by  
31 March 

2018 

 

Achieved 

 

None 

 

None 

 

None 

TL19 Engineerin
g and 

Technical 
Services 

Decent 
Employme
nt through 
inclusive 
economic 

growth 

Local 
Economic 
Developm

ent 

Enhance 
Municipal 

contribution 
to job 

creation and 
sustainable 
livelihoods 

through 
Local 

Economic 
Developmen

t 

 

 

 

Create an 
environme

nt that 
promotes 

the 
developm
ent of the 

local 
economy 

and 
facilitate 

job 
creation 

Local 
Economic 
Developm

ent 

Number 
of jobs 
created 
through 
capital  

projects 
and 

register
ed with 
EPWP 
by 30 
June 
2018 

Number of 
jobs 

Snr 
Manager: 
Engineerin

g and 
Technical 
Services 

KPI 
from 

2016/17 

New Number 800 Not  

Achie ved 

   

TL20 Engineerin
g & 
Technical 
Services 

An 
effective, 
competitiv
e and 
responsive 
economic 
infrastruct
ure 

Basic 
Service 
Delivery 

Improve the 
quantity and 
quality of 
municipal 
basic 
services to 
the people in 
terms of 

Eradicate 
backlogs 
in order to 
improve 
access to 
services 
and 
ensure 

Service 
delivery 
and 
infrastruct
ure 
developm
ent 

Number 
of VIP 
toilets 
installe
d in 
Kagisan
o-
Molopo 

Number of 
VIP toilets 
installed 

Snr 
Manager: 
Engineerin
g and 
Technical 
Services 

KPI 
from 
2016/17 

Accumulativ
e 

Number 2000 

 

3770 

VIP Toilets 
Installed 

 

1770 Additional 
Funding 
Received 

from COGTA 

None 
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network access to 
water, 
sanitation, 
electricity, 
waste 
management
, roads and 
disaster 
management 

proper 
operations 
and 
maintenan
ce 

& 
Greater 
Taung 
areas 
for 2000 
househ
olds by 
30 June 
2018 

 

TL21 Engineerin
g & 
Technical 
Services 

An 
effective, 
competitiv
e and 
responsive 
economic 
infrastruct
ure 
network 

Basic 
Service 
Delivery 

Improve the 
quantity and 
quality of 
municipal 
basic 
services to 
the people in 
terms of 
access to 
water, 
sanitation, 
electricity, 
waste 
management
, roads and 
disaster 
management 

 

 

 

Eradicate 
backlogs 
in order to 
improve 
access to 
services 
and 
ensure 
proper 
operations 
and 
maintenan
ce 

Service 
delivery 
and 
infrastruct
ure 
developm
ent 

% of 
approve
d 
budget 
spent 
on the 
constru
ction of 
New 
Waste 
Water 
Treatme
nt Plant 
in 
Vryburg
-Phase 1 
for 11 
224 
househ
olds by 
30 June 
2018 

% of 
approved 
budget spent 

Snr 
Manager: 
Engineerin
g and 
Technical 
Services 

KPI 
from 
2016/17 

Accumulativ
e 

% 90% 95% 

Achieved 

5% Additional 
Funding 
Received 

from COGTA 

None 

TL22 Engineerin
g & 

Technical 
Services 

An 
effective, 

competitiv
e and 

responsive 
economic 
infrastruct

ure 

Basic 
Service 
Delivery 

Improve the 
quantity and 

quality of 
municipal 

basic 
services to 

the people in 
terms of 
access to 

Eradicate 
backlogs 

in order to 
improve 
access to 
services 

and 
ensure 
proper 

Service 
delivery 

and 
infrastruct

ure 
developm

ent 

% of 
approve

d 
budget 
spent 
on the 
constru
ction of 
Phase 2 

% of 
approved 

budget spent 

Snr 
Manager: 
Engineerin

g and 
Technical 
Services 

KPI 
from 

2016/17 

Accu 

 

 

% 90% 100% 

Achieved 

10% Additional 
Funding 
Received 

from COGTA 

None 
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network water, 
sanitation, 
electricity, 

waste 
management

, roads and 
disaster 

management 

operations 
and 

maintenan
ce 

of 
Gelukso
ord Ext 
2 and 3 

Bulk 
Water 
Supply 
Project 

for 8234 
househ
olds by 
30 June 

2018 

TL23 

 

 

 

 

Engineerin
g & 

Technical 
Services 

An 
effective, 

competitiv
e and 

responsive 
economic 
infrastruct

ure 
network 

Basic 
Service 
Delivery 

Improve the 
quantity and 

quality of 
municipal 

basic 
services to 

the people in 
terms of 
access to 

water, 
sanitation, 
electricity, 

waste 
management

, roads and 
disaster 

management 

Eradicate 
backlogs 

in order to 
improve 
access to 
services 

and 
ensure 
proper 

operations 
and 

maintenan
ce 

Service 
delivery 

and 
infrastruct

ure 
developm

ent 

Number 
of 

villages 
reticulat

ed 
through 
implem
entatio

n of 
Rural 
Water 
Supply 
Progra

mme by 
30 June 

2018 

Number Snr 
Manager: 
Engineerin

g and 
Technical 
Services 

KPI 
from 

2016/17 

Accumulativ
e 

Number 6 

 

Achieved None None None 

TL24 Engineerin
g & 

Technical 
Services 

An 
effective, 

competitiv
e and 

responsive 
economic 
infrastruct

ure 
network 

Basic 
Service 
Delivery 

Improve the 
quantity and 

quality of 
municipal 

basic 
services to 

the people in 
terms of 
access to 

water, 
sanitation, 
electricity, 

Eradicate 
backlogs 

in order to 
improve 
access to 
services 

and 
ensure 
proper 

operations 
and 

maintenan

Service 
delivery 

and 
infrastruct

ure 
developm

ent 

% of 
approve

d 
budget 
spent 
on the 
constru
ction of 

Bulk 
Water 

Pipeline 
from 

% of 
approved 

budget spent 

Snr 
Manager: 
Engineerin

g and 
Technical 
Services 

KPI 
from 

2016/17 

Accu % 90% Not 
Achieved 

 The project 
has been 

blocked for 
the past 

month due 
to 

Community 
unrest and 

DWS 
Construction 
Unit delayed 

on 

Municipali
ties have 

been 
engaging 

with 
different 
stakehold

ers 
through 

meetings 
to get the 

issues 
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waste 
management

, roads and 
disaster 

management 

ce New 
Water 

Treatme
nt Plant 

to 
South 

Eastern 
Plateau 
villages 

in 
Taung 
by 30 
June 
2018 

production 
and 

expenditure. 

resolved.  
We are 
still in 

Communic
ation with 
the tribal 

councils to 
resolve 

the 
matters. 

TL25 Engineerin
g & 

Technical 
Services 

An 
effective, 

competitiv
e and 

responsive 
economic 
infrastruct

ure 
network 

Basic 
Service 
Delivery 

Improve the 
quantity and 

quality of 
municipal 

basic 
services to 

the people in 
terms of 
access to 

water, 
sanitation, 
electricity, 

waste 
management

, roads and 
disaster 

management 

Eradicate 
backlogs 

in order to 
improve 
access to 
services 

and 
ensure 
proper 

operations 
and 

maintenan
ce 

Service 
delivery 

and 
infrastruct

ure 
developm

ent 

% of 
househ

olds 
with 

accesse
s to 

basic 
level of 
water 

by June 
2018 

% of 
households 
with basic 

level of 
water    

Snr 
Manager: 
Engineerin

g and 
Technical 
Services 

New KPI  
Accu Number 70% 

Not 
Achieved 

   

TL26 Engineerin
g & 

Technical 
Services 

An 
effective, 

competitiv
e and 

responsive 
economic 
infrastruct

ure 

Basic 
Service 
Delivery 

Improve the 
quantity and 

quality of 
municipal 

basic 
services to 

the people in 
terms of 

Eradicate 
backlogs 

in order to 
improve 
access to 
services 

and 
ensure 

Service 
delivery 

and 
infrastruct

ure 
developm

ent 

% of 
househ

olds 
with 

accesse
s to 

basic 
level of 
sanitati
on by 

% of 
households 
with basic 

level of 
sanitation     

Snr 
Manager: 
Engineerin

g and 
Technical 
Services 

New KPI  
Accu Number 60% 

Not 
Achieved 
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network access to 
water, 

sanitation, 
electricity, 

waste 
management

, roads and 
disaster 

management 

 

 

proper 
operations 

and 
maintenan

ce 

June 
2018 

TL27 Engineerin
g & 

Technical 
Services 

An 
effective, 

competitiv
e and 

responsive 
economic 
infrastruct

ure 
network 

Basic 
Service 
Delivery 

Improve the 
quantity and 

quality of 
municipal 

basic 
services to 

the people in 
terms of 
access to 

water, 
sanitation, 
electricity, 

waste 
management

, roads and 
disaster 

management 

Eradicate 
backlogs 

in order to 
improve 
access to 
services 

and 
ensure 
proper 

operations 
and 

maintenan
ce 

Service 
delivery 

and 
infrastruct

ure 
developm

ent 

Number 
of 

reports 
receive
d from 
Local 

Municip
alities 

on % of 
househ

olds 
with 

accesse
s to 

basic 
level of 
electrici

ty by 
June 
2018 

% of 
households 
with basic 

level of 
electricity    

Snr 
Manager: 
Engineerin

g and 
Technical 
Services 

New KPI  
Accu Number 1 

Not 
Achieved 

   

TL28 Economic 
Developm

ent, 
Tourism 
and Agri 

Decent 
employme
nt through 
inclusive 
economic 

growth 

Local 
Economic 
Developm

ent 

Enhance 
municipal 

contribution 
to job 

creation and 
sustainable 
livelihoods 

through local 
economic 

development 

Create an 
environme

nt that 
promotes 

the 
developm
ent of the 

local 
economy 

and 
facilitate 

job 
creation 

Local 
Economic 
Developm

ent 

Number 
of Jobs 
created 
in the 

Agricult
ural 

Sector 
(Agripar

ks) by 
30 June 

Number of 
Jobs created 

in the 
Agricultural 

Sector 
(Agriparks) 

Snr 
Manager: 

EDTA 
KPI 

from 
2016/  

17 

Carry Over Number 
50 Achieved 

56 Jobs were 
created in 

the 
Agricultural 

Sector 

 

6 None None 
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2018 

TL29 Economic 
Developm

ent, 
Tourism 
and Agri 

Decent 
employme
nt through 
inclusive 
economic 

growth 

Local 
Economic 
Developm

ent 

Enhance 
municipal 

contribution 
to job 

creation and 
sustainable 
livelihoods 

through local 
economic 

development 

Create an 
environme

nt that 
promotes 

the 
developm
ent of the 

local 
economy 

and 
facilitate 

job 
creation 

Local 
Economic 
Developm

ent 

Number 
of Jobs 
created 
in the 

Tourism 
Sector 

by June 
2018 

Number of 
Jobs created 

in the 
Tourism 

Sector by 
June 2018 

Snr 
Manager: 

EDTA 

KPI 
from 
2016/  

17 

Carry over Number 50  Achieved None None None

TL30 Economic 
Developm

ent, 
Tourism 

Decent 
employme
nt through 
inclusive 
economic 

Local 
Economic 
Developm

ent 

Enhance 
municipal 

contribution 
to job 

creation and 

Create an 
environme

nt that 
promotes 

the 

Local 
Economic 
Developm

ent 

Number 
of Jobs 
created 
in the 

SMME’s 

100 Jobs 
created in 

the 
SMME’s/Coo

peratives 

Snr 
Manager: 

EDTA 

KPI 
from 
2016/  

17 

Accu Number 100  Achieved None None None

161



and Agri growth sustainable 
livelihoods 

through local 
economic 

development 

developm
ent of the 

local 
economy 

and 
facilitate 

job 
creation 

/Cooper
atives 
sector  
by LED 
Unit by 

end 
June 
2018 

sector  by 
LED Unit by 

end June 
2018 
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CHAPTER 4 – ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT PERFORMANCE 
(PERFORMANCE REPORT PART II) 

INTRODUCTION TO MUNICIPAL WORKFORCE MANAGEMENT 

In the previous financial year the municipality has reviewed 16 administrative policies which 
govern the daily operation of the institution and the entire workforce.  Such policies are 
explained and work shopped with the employees in order to promote the spirit of good 
governance in the workplace.   Prior to the approval of the policies by the municipal council 
the relevant stakeholders are consulted such as Local Labour Forum, employees, 
management and councilors and labour unions. 

COMPONENT A: INTRODUCTION TO THE MUNICIPAL PERSONNEL 

4.1 EMPLOYEE TOTALS, TURNOVER AND VACANCIES 

Vacancy Rate: 2016/2017 
Designations *Total

Approved 
Posts 

*Vacancies
(Total time that 
vacancies exist 
using fulltime 
equivalents) 

*Vacancies
(as a proportion of 
total posts in each 

category) 

No. No. % 
Municipal Manager 1 0 0.00 
CFO 1 0 0 
Other S56 Managers (excluding Finance 
Posts) 

6 1 
16.6 

Other S56 Managers (Finance posts) 1 0 0 
Police officers 0 N/A 
Fire fighters 68 16 8.88 
Senior management: Levels 13-15 (excluding 
Finance Posts) 68 9 14.28 
Senior management: Levels 13-15 (Finance 
posts) 9 3 0 
Highly skilled supervision: levels 9-12 
(excluding Finance posts) 61 26 31.81 
Highly skilled supervision: levels 9-12  
(Finance posts) 6 3 0 
Total 
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COMMENT ON VACANCIES AND TURNOVER: 

The district municipality has lost a few officials due to various reasons of which most of them 
were in connection with greener pastures.  That is why the turn-over rate is so minimal. 
Vacant funded position has been advertised and will be filled during 2018/2019 Financial 
Year. 
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COMPONENT B: MANAGING THE MUNICIPAL WORKFORCE 

INTRODUCTION TO MUNICIPAL WORKFORCE MANAGEMENT 

The Municipality has reviewed 14 policies which are explained to the workforce as and when 
are adopted by Council or reviewed periodically. The workforce through the Local Labour 
Forum, as an important stakeholder, in the development of such policies are properly 
consulted on all matters of mutual interest. The departments, units and the organization in 
general holding continuous staff meeting in order to create a platform for the staff to air their 
views in matters of mutual interest. 
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4.2 POLICIES 

HR Policies and Plans 

 No. 

Name of Policy Completed 
Reviewed 

Date adopted by 
council or 

comment on 
failure to adopt % % 

1 Allowances Policy 100 100 28 February 
2018 

2 Assets management policy 100 100 
28 February 
2018 

3 Banking and investment 100 100 
28 February 
2018 

4 catering Policy 100 100 
28 February 
2018 

5 Credit control Policy 100 100 
28 February 
2018 

6 Leave and overtime  Policy 100 100 
28 February 
2018 

7 Recruitment and Selection Policy 100 100 
28 February 
2018 

8 Expenditure management  Policy 100 100 
28 February 
2018 

9 Funeral policy 100 100 
28 February 
2018 

10 Insurance management policy 100 100 
28 February 
2018 

11 Notebook and mobile computing policy 100 100 
28 February 
2018 
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12 Petty cash policy 100 100 
28 February 
2018 

13 Recruitment and selection policy 100 100 
28 February 
2018 

14 S&T policy 100 100 
28 February 
2018 

15 SCM policy 100 100 
28 February 
2018 

16 Vehicle allowance policy 100 100 31 July 2018 
Use name of local policies if different from above and at any other HR policies not 
listed. 

COMMENT ON WORKFORCE POLICY DEVELOPMENT: 

The district municipality has completed the review of Policies that were adopted by Council at its 
meeting held on the 28 February 2018.  The review took longer than expected due to most of the 
stakeholders not being available.  It was resolved that the services of the external Service Provider be 
procured for assistance.  All stakeholders were involved in the process (i.e. Councillors; Management 
and Trade Unions) 
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4.3 INJURIES, SICKNESS AND SUSPENSIONS 
Number of days and Cost of Sick Leave (excluding injuries on duty) 

Salary band 

Total sick 
leave 

Proportion 
of sick 
leave 

without 
medical 

certification 

Employees 
using sick 

leave 

Total 
employees 

in post* 

*Average
sick leave 

per 
Employees 

Estimated 
cost 

Days % No. No. Days R' 000 
Lower skilled (Levels 0-2)/0 
to 3 

0 0 0 17 0 

Skilled (Levels 3-5)/ 4 to 6 237 10 25 14 16.92 
Highly skilled production 
(levels 6-8)/ 7 to 12 

348 6 35 56 6.21 

Highly skilled supervision 
(levels 9-12) 

736 28 33 74 9.94 

Senior management (Levels 
0-2) 

180 13 21 42 4.28 

MM and S57 133 4 6 8 16.6 
Total 

0.15

0.26

0.88

0.04

1.48

0.42

0.00

0.20

0.40

0.60

0.80

1.00

1.20

1.40

1.60

Lower skilled (Levels 1-
2)

Skilled (Levels 3-5) Highly skilled 
production (levels 6-8)

Highly skilled 
supervision (levels 9-12)

Senior management 
(Levels 13-15)

MM and S57

Average Number of Days Sick Leave (excluding IOD)
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COMMENT ON INJURY AND SICK LEAVE: 

An employee is given 80 days in a three-year cycle on full pay. And employee is required to 
submit a medical certificate from a registered doctor if more than two consecutive days are 
taken. If an employee is absent on two occasions during an eight-week period and failed to 
produce a sick note irrespective of the number of days taken the employer is not obliged to 
pay. 
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Number and Period of Suspensions 
 Position Nature of Alleged 

Misconduct 
Date of 

Suspension 
Details of Disciplinary Action 
taken or Status of Case and 
Reasons why not Finalised 

Date Finalised 

None None None None None 

None None None None None 

Disciplinary Action Taken on Cases of Financial Misconduct 
 Position Nature of Alleged Misconduct 

and Rand value of any loss to the 
municipality 

Disciplinary action taken Date 
Finalised 

None None None None 
None None None None 

COMMENT ON SUSPENSIONS AND CASES OF FINANCIAL MISCONDUCT: 

The Municipal Council has appointed a Disciplinary Board in terms of council resolution 
64/2017/18 to deal with all matters of financial misconduct in accordance with Local 
Government:  Municipal Finance Management Act, Act 56 of 2003 henceforth 

4.4 PERFORMANCE REWARDS 

COMMENT ON PERFORMANCE REWARDS: 

Performance Management System is currently applicable only for section 56 managers. It 
has not been cascaded down to employees below section 56 managers. No performance 
evaluations were done for section 56 managers in 2017/2018. 
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COMPONENT C: CAPACITATING THE MUNICIPAL WORKFORCE 

INTRODUCTION TO WORKFORCE CAPACITY DEVELOPMENT 

The District Municipality has a Workplace Skills Plan in place to develop and capacitate its 
staff.  In terms of the Plan a total of 73 officials were trained in different learning programmes 
and interventions during the 2017/2018 financial year.  In addition, 30 councilors were also 
trained in different training programmes. The District Municipality has implemented 
programmes for the training and empowerment of unemployed graduates and experiential 
learners.     
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Financial Competency Development: Progress Report* 
Description A. 

Total number of officials 
employed by 
municipality (Regulation 
14(4)(a) and (c)) 

B. 
Total number of 
officials employed by 
municipal entities 
(Regulation 14(4)(a) 
and (c) 

Consolidated: Total 
of A and B 

Consolidated: 
Competency 
assessments 
completed for A and B 
(Regulation 14(4)(b) 
and (d)) 

Consolidated: Total 
number of officials whose 
performance agreements 
comply with Regulation 
16 (Regulation 14(4)(f)) 

Consolidated: Total 
number of officials that 
meet prescribed 
competency levels 
(Regulation 14(4)(e)) 

Financial Officials N/A 

Accounting officer 1 N/A 1 1 1 

Chief financial officer 1 N/A 1 1 1 

Senior managers 6 N/A 6 6 6 
Any other financial 
officials 2 N/A 2 2 2 

Supply Chain 
Management Officials 5 N/A 5 5 5 

Heads of supply chain 
management units 1 N/A 1 1 1 

Supply chain 
management senior 
managers 

N/A 

TOTAL 16 16 16 16 
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4.5 SKILLS DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING 

Skills Matrix 
Management level Gender Employees in 

post as at 30 
June 
Year 2017 

Number of skilled employees required and actual as at 30 June Year 2017 
Learner-ships Skills programmes & other short 

courses 
Other forms of training Total 

No. 

Actual: 
End of 
2017/ 
2018 

Actual: 
End of 
2017/ 
2018 

2017/ 
2018Targ
et 

Actual: 
End of 
2017/ 
2018 

Actual: 
End of 
2017/ 
2018 

2017/ 
2018Target 

Actual: 
End of 
2017/ 
2018 

Actual: End 
of 2017/ 
2018 

2017/ 
2018Target 

Actual: End 
of 2016/ 
2017 

Actual: End 
of 2016/ 
20172017/ 
2018 

2016/ 
2017 
Target 

MM and s57 Female 4 0 0 0 2 2 2 2 2 2 
Male 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 

Councillors, senior 
officials and 
managers 

Female 22 0 0 0 1 1 4 1 1 4 2 2 8 
Male 35 0 0 0 4 4 8 4 4 8 

Technicians and 
associate 
professionals*

Female 9 0 0 0 4 4 6 2 2 2 6 6 6 
Male 16 0 0 0 3 3 4 2 2 2 5 5 6 

Professionals Female 13 0 0 0 4 4 7 4 4 7 
Male 13 0 0 0 1 1 5 1 1 5 

Semi-skilled Female 25 0 0 5 5 10 5 5 10 
and Discretionary Male 30 0 0 3 3 9 3 3 9 
Unskilled and Female 19 0 0 2 2 6 2 2 6 
Defined decision Male 23 0 0 2 2 5 2 2 5 
Sub total Female 92 0 0 0 18 18 34 2 2 2 21 21 39 

Male 121 0 0 0 13 13 31 3 3 6 16 16 34 
Total 213 0 0 0 31 31 65 5 5 8 37 37 73 
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Skills Development Expenditure 

R'000 
Management level Gender Employees as at 

the beginning of 
the financial year 

Original Budget and Actual Expenditure on skills development 2016/17 

Learnerships Skills programmes & other 
short courses 

Other forms of training 

Bursaries 

Total 

No. Original 
Budget 

Actual Original 
Budget 

Actual Original 
Budget 

Actual Original 
Budget 

Actual 

MM and S56 Female 2 0 0 20000 8025.60 0 0 20000 8025.60 
Male 0 0 0 20000 0 0 0 20000 0 

Legislators, senior officials 
and managers 

Female 1 0 0   5000 2918.40   0     0 5000 2918.60 

Male 4 0 0 70000 65551.20     0     0 70000 65551.20 

Professionals Female 4 0 0   70000 13135   0     0   70000  13135 
Male 1 0 0 10 000 0 0 0 10 000 0 

Technicians and associate 
professionals 

Female 6 0 0 100000 115514.60 0 0 100000 115514.60 

Male 5 0 0 90000 122125.60     0   0 90000   122125.60 

Clerks Female 5 0 0 60000     21760.20   0     0 60000      21760.20 
Male 

3 
0 0 

          60000        31010     0            0       60000     31010 
Sub total Female 

   21 
0 0 

        295000        169353.60          0            0     295000   169353.60 

Male 
   16 

0 0 
       290000        26      0            0     290000    269306.80 

Total 60 0 0 585000 438660.40     0   0 585000 438660.40 
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COMMENT ON SKILLS DEVELOPMENT AND RELATED EXPENDITURE AND ON THE 
FINANCIAL COMPETENCY REGULATIONS: 

TRAINING PLANS AND IMPLEMENTATION: Training plans are developed in consultation 
with employees through conducting skills audit and skills need analysis. However, there are 
some deviations during implementation as some training programmes that are not planned 
are at times provided by sector departments and other government agencies wholly funded. 

VARIANCE BETWEEN BUDGETED AND ACTUAL EXPENDITURE: Variances between 
budgeted and actual expenditure are as a result of escalating training costs and 
uncoordinated training wherein employees attend training that is not included in the training 
plan. Also, the financial constraints in which the municipality found itself also contributed to 
the variances. 

ADEQUACY OF FUNDING: Funding for training is not adequate as it does not cover all or 
most of the employees. The municipality does not budget 1% of the annual payroll as 
required by Skills Levies Act No 9 of 1999. MFMA COMPETENCY REGULATIONS: There is 
a 90% compliance with the regulations as all senior managers and most of managers as well 
as financial officials have completed MFMA training and were declared competent. 
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COMPONENT D: MANAGING THE WORKFORCE EXPENDITURE 

INTRODUCTION TO WORKFORCE EXPENDITURE 

The strict control of the workforce budget enables the municipality to implement and achieve 
the pre-determined objectives as set out in the IDP because all vacant and budgeted posts 
will be filled immediately the vacancy arise.  The workforce budget is spent with the 
parameters of the approved budget.  Appointment is done in terms of the requirements of the 
post because the salary package is commensurate to the experience and qualifications of the 
post.  
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COMMENT ON UPGRADED POSTS AND THOSE THAT ARE AT VARIANCE WITH 
NORMAL PRACTICE: 

The automatic promotion is only applicable on the unit of Fire services wherein the post level 
11 to 8 is treated as one position and there is an approved criteria per council resolution 
determining the applicable requirements to be attained by the employee before one can be 
eligible for automatic promotion.  The Human Resources Unit in collaboration with the 
Manager responsible for Fire and Disaster Service conduct the assessment and the Senior 
Managers Corporate Services and Community Services verify the outcome and the Municipal 
Manager will ultimately effect automatic promotion by issuing a letter to the affected 
employee. 

DISCLOSURES OF FINANCIAL INTERESTS 

The disclosures of officials and councillors concerning their financial interests as required by 
PM Regulations 805 of 2006. 
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CHAPTER 5 – FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

INTRODUCTION 
The Municipality adopted the going concern assumption when preparing the annual financial 
statements for the year under review. This basis presumes that funds will be available to 
finance future operations and that the realization of assets and settlements of liabilities, 
contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business. The 
Municipality also adopted the accrual basis, to account for its revenue and expenditure, while 
also adopted the approved Statements of GRAP, to record its financial transactions. 

Chapter 5 contains information regarding financial performance and highlights specific 
accomplishments.  (Refer to Volume II – Audited financial statements) 

The Municipality reported an operating deficit of R353 million at the end of the financial year 
under review, as compared to the restated deficit of R 567 million in the previous financial 
year, prior any fair value adjustments. Total revenue decreased by 4% from the previous 
year. The increase is mostly driven by tariff increases on service charges, property rates and 
on the increase in government grants received. Management implemented cost cutting 
measures to address cash flow challenges. Spending patterns 
were also closely monitored to contain expenditure within the budget. 

The total budget for the 2017-2018 amounted to R809,994m as per the second adjustment 
budget approved by council.   A total of R468,282m of the total budget being allocated to the 
capital projects that were identified by the municipality with the main aim of enhancing service 
delivery.  The total revenue as indicated above was mainly made up of conditional grants 
received from national and provincial governments, therefore the budget was fully funded and 
cash backed.  During the year under review, the municipality received an additional MIG 
allocation of R60m, making the total MIG receipts for the financial year to be R213,445m. 

Even though the municipality is financially viable, it is a concern that there are still no new or 
potential revenue base alternatives as the district remains highly rural.  The Dr Ruth 
Segomotsi Mompati District Municipality was not immune to inflationary pressures which 
arose during the reporting period, these pressures which continued to affect the cash flow 
status of the municipality. 

The use of external experts was employed, to a limit but could not be avoided in some 
instances.  The services of Technical Consultants for the evaluation of Technical Projects, 
TGIS and JBFE Consulting, companies that are used to provide the recording and updating 
of the infrastructure asset register were employed.  A few other consultants were used mainly 
for engineering services related projects. The cashflow of the municipality declining over the 
years as the needs and the demands of the communities grow bigger.  The need for other 
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revenue alternatives becomes very critical for ensuring sustainability and improvement of the 
current cash flow situation.         
COMPONENT A: STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

INTRODUCTION TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
The financial statements presented in this report are presented on the basis that the 
municipality is a going concern. The principles of GRAP have been taken into consideration 
when preparing these annual financial statements.  The annual financial statements have 
been prepared by consultants and will be submitted on time as prescribed in the Municipal 
Finance Management Act to the Auditor General. 

Analyzing the financial position of the municipality as outlined in the statement of financial 
position, in the annual financial statements, the municipality is at risk of rendering basic 
services to the community at large due to the impairment of the R150,000m investment made 
with VBS Mutual Bank. Financial viability is questionable. The municipality has maintained a 
sustainable and sufficient asset base, despite the fact that providing enough for repairs and 
maintenance remains a challenge.   

The total assets of the municipality are adequate to ensure that the liabilities of the 
municipality are cared covered should anything happen to the municipality’s continuity. The 
asset base of the municipality which is above the liabilities of the municipality as well as other 
factors that are presented in the financial position of the municipality, show that the 
municipality is still solvent and therefore still financially healthy.   

The statement of financial performance as included in the draft annual financial statements 
presented a positive net result.  This means that the total revenues of the municipality were 
still more that the total expenditures at the end of the financial year ended 30 June 2018.  
The detailed statement of financial performance is included in the financial statements. The 
highest cost driver for the municipality remains to be personnel costs at R117,608m. 
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5.1 STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

Refer to Volume II – Audited financial statements 
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CHAPTER 6 – AUDITOR GENERAL AUDIT FINDINGS 

INTRODUCTION 
Note: The Constitution S188 (1) (b) states that the functions of the Auditor-General includes 
the auditing and reporting on the accounts, financial statements and financial management of 
all municipalities. MSA section 45 states that the results of performance measurement must 
be audited annually by the Auditor-General. 

COMPONENT A: AUDITOR-GENERAL OPINION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
2017-2018 

In the 2017-2018 financial year a qualified audit opinion was received by the Auditor General. 
The Audit report is attached hereto as Annexure B.   
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COMPONENT B: AUDITOR-GENERAL OPINION YEAR- 2017-2018 (CURRENT 
YEAR) 

6.2 AUDITOR GENERAL REPORT YEAR 2017-2018 

AUDITOR GENERAL REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: YEAR 2017-2018 

AFS are attached as Volume II 

In the 2017-2018 financial year a qualified audit opinion was received by the Auditor General. 
The Audit report is attached hereto as annexure B.  
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ANNEXURE A: RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE AUDIT AND 
PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE 
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DR. RUTH SEGOMOTSI MOMPATI DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY 

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE AUDIT AND PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE FOR THE 
FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 30 June 2018. 

1. Audit and Performance Committee Responsibility
The Audit and Performance Committee (APC) report that it has complied with its 

responsibilities arising from Section 166 of the Municipal Finance Management Act 

and Circular 65 issued by National Treasury. The APC also reports that it has 

adopted appropriate formal terms of reference as its Audit and Performance 

Committee Charter, and it has regulated its affairs in compliance with this charter 

and has discharged all its responsibilities as contained therein, except that we have 

not reviewed changes in accounting policies and practices. 

2. Audit and Performance Committee members and attendance
The APC, consisting of independent outside members, met t h re e  t ime s  a l re ad y  

a nd  mu s t  me e t  at least four times per annum as per its approved terms of 

reference, although additional special meetings may be called as the need arises. 

Initials and Surname Position Meetings Attended 
Ms F. Mudau APC Chairperson 3/3 

Mr L. Berend APC Member 3/3 

Ms M. Nkwane APC Member 2/3 

Ms V. Mothelesi APC Member 3/3 

Mr E. Van Rensburg APC Member 3/3 

Mr NJ. Lesolang APC Member 3/3 

3. The Effectiveness of Internal Control
Our review of the findings of the Internal Audit work, which was based on the risk 

assessments conducted in the municipality revealed certain weaknesses,  which were 

then raised with the municipality. 
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There are several deficiencies in the system of internal control and/or deviations 

there were reported by the internal auditors and the Auditor-General South Africa 

(AGSA). In certain instances, the matters reported previously have not been fully 

and satisfactorily addressed. The APC notes management’s commitment to correct 

the deficiencies. During the year under review there was consistent monitoring of 

action plans and progress. 

4. In-Year Management and Monthly/Quarterly Report
The municipality has monthly and quarterly reporting system to the Council as required 

by the Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA). Monitoring and reviews of 

performance information were periodically in the year under review. 

5. Performance Management
The APC reviewed the functionality of the performance management system and it 

appears to be functional, however which is room for improvement in so far as 

achievement of planned targets is concerned and increasing capacity within the 

performance management unit. 

6. Risk Management
The APC is of the opinion that municipality’s risk management appears to be effective 

for the better of the year and material respect, and the municipality did implement 

a comprehensive risk management strategy and related policies. Management 

has a sound and effective approach that has been followed in developing strategic 

risk management plans and there is a sense of appreciation of the impact of the 

municipality’s risk management framework on the control environment. 

Furthermore, the APC did review the municipality’s fraud prevention plan so as to be 

satisfied that the municipality has appropriate processes and systems in place to 

capture, monitor and effectively investigate fraudulent activities. 

7. Compliance with laws and regulations
A number of non-compliance with the enabling laws and regulations were revealed 

by Internal Audit during the year. Thus there is room for improvement in so far as 

establishing an effective system for monitoring compliance with laws and regulations 

and the results of management’s investigation and follow-up (including disciplinary 

action) of any instances of non-compliance. 
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8. Internal Audit
The APC is satisfied with the effectiveness of Internal Audit, and commend 

Management and Council for capacitating this unit. The above conclusion is based 

on: 

• Reviewal with management and approval of the Internal Audit Charter,
strategic and operational plans, internal audit activities, staffing (including

competence and qualifications), and organisational structure of the Internal
Audit activity;

• Implementation of the approved annual internal audit plan and all major
changes to the plan.

• There were no unjustified restrictions or limitations on work of the internal
audit activity.

• Review with the Chief Audit Executive the internal audit budget, resource
plan, activities, and organisational structure of the internal audit activity;

• Compliance with the International Standards for the Professional Practice of
Internal Auditing by the internal audit activity.

• Implementation of remedial action plan on internal audit findings by
management.

9. External Audit
The APC did review AGSA’s proposed audit scope and approach, including 

coordination of audit effort with internal audit in respect of the 2017/18 financial year; 

and on a regular basis, met separately with AGSA to discuss any matters that the 

committee or auditors believe should be discussed privately. 

Furthermore, the APC evaluated management responses to the reports or findings of 

the AGSA on a quarterly basis. 
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10. Audit Outcome
The APC noted with concern the qualified audit opinion. 

The APC urges Management to develop clean audit strategy with the objective of 

attainment of sustainable clean audit opinion supported by high impact service delivery. 

Furthermore, the said clean audit strategy should focus mainly on root-causes, findings, 

consequence management and recommendations as proposed by the AGSA. 

11. Progress in implementation of AGSA findings from prior year
Not all of the prior year audit findings were addressed by management. There is room for 

improvement in this regard and APC recommend to the municipality to fast-track the 

implementation of recommendations by AGSA. 

12. Progress on implementations of Internal audit recommendations
Not all of the internal audit recommendations were implemented by management. There 

is room for improvement in this regard and thus, APC recommend to the municipality to 

fast-track the implementation of recommendations by Internal Audit. 

13. Implementations of Audit and Performance Committee Recommendations
by management

Not all of the APC recommendations were implemented by management. There is room 

for improvement in this regard and thus, APC recommend to the municipality to fast-track 

the implementation of recommendations by APC. 

14. Progress on implementations of Risk Mitigation Actions
A number of risk mitigation actions were implemented by management satisfactorily. 

There is room for improvement in this regard and thus, APC recommend to the 

municipality to fast-track the implementation of risk mitigations measures. 

15. Progress on implementations of Risk Management Committee (RMC)
recommendation

Not all of the RMC recommendations were implemented by management. There is room 

for improvement in this regard and thus, APC recommend to the municipality to fast-track 

the implementation of recommendations by the Risk Management Committee. 
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16. Review of the Draft Annual Financial statements
The Audit and Performance Committee noted the non-submission of Draft Annual Financial 

Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018 and the outstanding work that still needs to be 

done. Therefore the audit committee could not review the Draft Annual Financial Statements 

before submission to the Auditor General.  

Council must note that the Audit and Performance Committee is aware of the material loss 

of R 150 000.000 due to an investment with VBS Mutual Bank.  

Council has resolved at its special meeting on the 31 of July 2018, to refer the matter on 

investment with VBS to the Disciplinary Board in terms of Regulation 5 (1) of the Local 

Government: Municipal Finance Management Act (56/2003: Municipal Regulations on Financial 

Misconduct Procedures and Criminal Proceedings, to conduct a preliminary investigation and 

make recommendations to council. 

17. Review of Draft Annual Performance Report

That the Audit and Performance Committee notes the non-submission of the Draft Annual 

Report for the year ended 30 June 2018 to the Audit and Performance Committee. Therefore, 

the audit committee could not review the Draft Annual Performance Report before submission 

to the Auditor General. 

18. Consequence Management
The APC urged management to develop a consequence management framework for 

implementation. 

19. Combined Assurance Framework
The APC urged management to develop a combined assurance framework. 

20. Conclusion
The Audit and Performance Committee wishes to acknowledge the commitment from 

Council, management and staff of the municipality. The stability in terms of the 

political and administrative leadership of the municipality has contributed to these 

improvements reported above. We would also like to thank the Executive Mayor for 

her support, Councillors, senior management for their efforts and internal audit for 

their contribution. 
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F. Mudau (Ms) 
Chairperson of the Audit and Performance Committee 
Dr. Ruth Segomotsi Mompati District Municipality 
07 January 2019 

-.. 

189



ANNEXURE B: AUDITOR GENERAL REPORT 2017-2018 
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Report of the auditor-general to the North West provincial legislature
and the council on the Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati District Municipality

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Qualified opinion

1. I have audited the financial statements of the Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati District Municipality 
set out on pages 203 to 283, which comprise of the statement of financial position as at
30 June 2018, the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets, 
cash flow statement and the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts for the 
year then ended, as well as the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies.

2. In my opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters described in the basis for qualified
opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati District Municipality as at 30 June 2018,
and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the
South African Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (SA standards of
GRAP) and the requirements of the Municipal Finance Management Act of South Africa, 2003
(Act No. 56 of 2003) (MFMA) and the Division of Revenue Act of South Africa, 2017
(Act No. 3 of 2017) (DoRA).

Basis for qualified opinion

Property, plant and equipment
3. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for property, plant and equipment

due to differences between the financial statements and the underlying accounting records. I
was unable to confirm these assets by alternative means. In addition, the municipality did not
revalue land and buildings as per the accounting policy in terms of GRAP 17, Property, plant
and equipment that indicates that land and buildings are carried on the revaluation model. I
was unable to quantify the resultant misstatement of the property, plant and equipment as it
was impracticable to do so. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any further
adjustments relating to property, plant and equipment of R2 370 122 044
(2017: R2 098 909 503) as disclosed in note 7 or depreciation and amortisation expense of
R62 320 234 (2017: R38 628 842) as disclosed in the statement of financial performance was
necessary.

Payables from exchange transactions
4. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for trade payables and retentions

included in payables from exchange transactions due to a lack of adequate systems to
maintain records to support financial information. I was unable to confirm these payables by
alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustment relating to
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payables from exchange transactions of R68 325 715 as disclosed in note 10 to the financial
statements was necessary.

Government grants and subsidies
5. The municipality did not correctly recognise revenue where the conditions for government

grants and subsidies were met as required by GRAP 23, Revenue from non-exchange
transactions due to incorrectly including VAT and transactions not recorded in the correct
period. As a result, revenue from government grants and subsidies was overstated by
R13 178 268 and unspent conditional grants and receipts was understated by R13 178 268. In
addition, I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for government grants and
subsidies and unspent conditional grants and receipts due to a lack of adequate systems to
maintain records to support financial information. I was unable to confirm these government
grants and subsidies and unspent conditional grants and receipts by alternative means.
Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any further adjustments relating to revenue
from government grants and subsidies of R675 186 379 as disclosed in note 18 or unspent
conditional grants and receipts of R154 514 339 as disclosed in note 12 to the financial
statements were necessary.

Commitments
6. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for commitments due to a lack of

adequate systems to maintain records to support financial information. I was unable to confirm
these commitments by alternative means. In addition, commitments were overstated by
R218 250 846 due to the municipality not ensuring that the contract amounts have been
correctly recorded in the commitments register. Consequently, I was unable to determine
whether any further adjustment relating to commitments of R929 841 913 as disclosed in note
40 to the financial statements was necessary.

Context for the opinion

7. I conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). My
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor-general’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of my report.

8. I am independent of the municipality in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ Code of ethics for professional accountants (IESBA code) and the
ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit in South Africa. I have fulfilled my other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA code.

9. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for my qualified opinion.

Emphasis of matters

10. I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Unauthorised, irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure
11. As disclosed in note 35 to the financial statements, unauthorised expenditure of R163 661 349

was incurred in the current year and the unauthorised expenditure of R42 600 265 in respect of
prior years have not yet been dealt with in accordance with section 32 of the MFMA.

12. As disclosed in note 36 to the financial statements, irregular expenditure of R381 472 554 was
incurred in the current year and irregular expenditure of R497 360 787 from prior years have
not yet been dealt with in accordance with section 32 of the MFMA.

13. As disclosed in note 37 to the financial statements, fruitless and wasteful expenditure of
R36 959 was incurred in the current year and fruitless and wasteful expenditure of R140 053
from prior years have not yet been dealt with in accordance with section 32 of the MFMA.
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Material losses
14. As disclosed in note 23 to the financial statements, material losses of R150 694 804 was

incurred as a result of an impairment loss accounted for due to an investment made with VBS
Mutual Bank.

Restatement of corresponding figures
15. As disclosed in note 49 to the financial statements, the corresponding figures for 2017 were

restated as a result of an error in the financial statements of the municipality at, and for the
year ended, 30 June 2018.

Other matters

16. I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Unaudited disclosure notes
17. In terms of section 125(2)(e) of the MFMA, the municipality is required to disclose particulars of

non-compliance with the MFMA. This disclosure requirement did not form part of the audit of
the financial statements and accordingly I do not express an opinion thereon.

Unaudited supplementary schedules
18. The supplementary information set out on pages 284 to 287 does not form part of the financial 

statements and is presented as additional information. I have not audited these schedules and, 
accordingly, I do not express an opinion thereon.

Responsibilities of the accounting officer for the financial statements

19. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the SA standards of GRAP and the requirements of the MFMA
and the DoRA and for such internal control as the accounting officer determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

20. In preparing the financial statements, the accounting officer is responsible for assessing the
municipality’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the appropriate
governance structure either intends to liquidate the municipality or to cease operations, or there
is no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

21. My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

22. A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is included in
the annexure to the auditor’s report.
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Report on the audit of the annual performance report

Introduction and scope

23. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA) and
the general notice issued in terms thereof I have a responsibility to report material findings on
the reported performance information against predetermined objectives for selected
development priorities presented in the annual performance report. I performed procedures to
identify findings but not to gather evidence to express assurance.

24. My procedures address the reported performance information, which must be based on the
approved performance planning documents of the municipality. I have not evaluated the
completeness and appropriateness of the performance indicators included in the planning
documents. My procedures also did not extend to any disclosures or assertions relating to
planned performance strategies and information in respect of future periods that may be
included as part of the reported performance information. Accordingly, my findings do not
extend to these matters.

25. I evaluated the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information in accordance
with the criteria developed from the performance management and reporting framework, as
defined in the general notice, for the following selected development priorities presented in the
annual performance report of the municipality for the year ended 30 June 2018:

Development priorities Pages in the annual
performance report

KPA 1 – Basic Service Delivery 148– 162

26. I performed procedures to determine whether the reported performance information was
properly presented and whether performance was consistent with the approved performance
planning documents. I performed further procedures to determine whether the indicators and
related targets were measurable and relevant, and assessed the reliability of the reported
performance information to determine whether it was valid, accurate and complete.

27. The material findings in respect of the usefulness and reliability of the selected development
priorities are as follows:

KPA 1 – Basic Service Delivery

Reported achievement not supported by sufficient appropriate audit evidence
28. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the reported achievement of

90% target. This was due to limitations placed on the scope of my work. I was unable to
confirm the reported achievement by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to
determine whether any adjustments were required to the achievement of 95% as reported in
the annual performance report.

Various indicators not verifiable or reliable
29. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to support the reported

achievement of the following indicators. This was due to the systems and processes that
enable reliable reporting against the indicator and target not being adequately designed. I was
unable to confirm the reported achievements of these indicators by alternative means.
Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustments were required to the
reported achievements as follows:
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Indicator Target Audited
Value

Number of inspections of food premises within the District
conducted quarterly by end of 30 June 2018

1600 1906

Number of bacteriological, chemical and sewerage water
samples collected for analysis quarterly by 30 June 2018

1000 1250

Number of fire prevention inspections at local businesses
conducted quarterly by 30 June 2018

100 98

Number of VIP toilets installed in Kagisano-Molopo and
Greater Taung areas for 2000 households by 30 June 2018

2000 1530

Various indicators measures take to improve performance not included
30. The measures taken to improve performance against the planned targets were not included in

the annual performance report for the following indicators:

Indicator Target Reported
achievement

% of households with access to basic level of water by June
2018

70% 0%

% of households with access to basic level of sanitation by
June 2018

60% 0%

Number of reports received from local municipality on % of
households with access to basic level of electricity by June
2018

1 0

Other matter

31. I draw attention to the matter below.

Achievement of planned targets
32. Refer to the annual performance report on pages xx to xx for information on the achievement of

planned targets for the year. This information should be considered in the context of the
material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information in
paragraphs 28 to 30 of this report.

Report on audit of compliance with legislation

Introduction and scope

33. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof I have a
responsibility to report material findings on the compliance of the municipality with specific
matters in key legislation. I performed procedures to identify findings but not to gather evidence
to express assurance.

34. The material findings on compliance with specific matters in key legislation are as follows:

Financial statements
35. The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in all material respects in

accordance with the requirements of section 122(1) of the MFMA. Material misstatements of
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cash and cash equivalents, payables from exchange transactions, irregular expenditure,
financial instruments, risk management, commitments, investment property, intangible assets,
statement of changes in net assets and prior period error identified by the auditors in the
submitted financial statements were subsequently corrected and the supporting records were
provided subsequently, but the uncorrected material misstatements and supporting records
that could not be provided resulted in the financial statements receiving a qualified audit
opinion.

36. The council failed to adopt an oversight report containing the council's comments on the annual
report within 9 months, as required by section 129(1) of the MFMA.

Expenditure management
37. Money owed by the municipality was not always paid within 30 days as required by section

65(2)(e) of the MFMA.
38. Reasonable steps were not taken to prevent irregular expenditure of R381 472 554 as

disclosed in note 36 to the financial statements, as required by section 62(1)(d) of the MFMA.
The majority of the irregular expenditure was caused by non-compliance with SCM
Regulations. Irregular expenditure of R84 009 035 was incurred on the key project for the Rural
Sanitation Programme.

39. Reasonable steps were not taken to prevent unauthorised expenditure of R163 661 349, as
disclosed in note 35 to the financial statements, in contravention of section 62(1)(d) of the
MFMA. The majority of the unauthorised expenditure was due to the overspending of the
budget that was caused by the impairment of an investment made with VBS Mutual Bank.

Revenue management
40. Interest was not charged on all accounts in arrears, as required by section 64(2)(g) of the

MFMA.

Asset management
41. Funds were invested at with a bank that is not registered in terms of the Banks Act, 1990

(Act No. 94 of 1990), in contravention of regulation 6 of the Municipal Investment Regulations.

Consequence management
42. Unauthorised, irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure incurred by the district

municipality was not investigated to determine if any person is liable for the expenditure, as
required by section 32(2)(a) and (b) of the MFMA.

Strategic planning and performance management
43. The local community was not consulted on the drafting and implementation of the integrated

development plan (IDP), as required by section 29(1)(b)(ii) of the Municipal Systems Act of
South Africa, 2000 (Act No. 32 of 2000) (MSA) and regulation 15(1)(a)(i) of the Municipal
Planning and Performance Management Regulations.

44. A framework for integrated development planning in the district was adopted without
consultation with the local municipalities in the district, as required by section 27(1) of the MSA.

45. The IDP was not drafted in close consultation with and considering the integrated development
processes and proposals submitted by the local municipalities in the district, as required by
section 29(2)(a) and (c) of the MSA.

46. The local community was not afforded the opportunity to comment on the final draft of the IDP
before adoption, as required by section 42 of the MSA and regulation 15(3) of the Municipal
Planning and Performance Management Regulations.
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Conditional grants 
47. The Municipal Infrastructure Grant and the Regional Bulk Infrastructure Grant was not spent for

its intended purposes in accordance with the applicable grant framework, as required by
section 17(1) of the DoRA.

Human resource management 
48. Appropriate systems and procedures to monitor, measure and evaluate performance of staff

were not developed and adopted, as required by section 67(1)(d) of the MSA.

Procurement and contract management 
49. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that all contracts were awarded in

accordance with the legislative requirements as management did not provide the auditor with
the required information. No alternative procedures could be performed to obtain reasonable
assurance that the expenditure incurred on these awards were not irregular.

50. Some of the goods and services with a transaction value of below R200 000 were procured
without obtaining the required price quotations, in contravention of SCM regulation 17(a) and
(c).

51. Some quotations were accepted from bidders who did not submit a declaration on whether they
are employed by the state or connected to any person employed by the state, as required by
SCM regulation 13(c). Similar non-compliance was also reported in the prior year.

52. Some of the goods and services of a transaction value above R200 000 were procured without
inviting competitive bids, as required by SCM regulation 19(a).  This non-compliance was
identified in the procurement processes for the key projects for the Bulk Water and Sanitation
Service for the New Geluksoord Ext.2 Housing Project (Phase 1) and the Upgrading of the
Taung Raw Water Gravity Pipe Line from Taung Dam to Pudimoe.

53. Some of the contracts were awarded to bidders who did not submit a declaration on whether
they are employed by the state or connected to any person employed by the state, as required
by SCM regulation 13(c). Similar non-compliance was also reported in the prior year.  This non-
compliance was identified in the procurement processes for the key project for the Bulk Water
and Sanitation Service for the New Geluksoord Ext.2 Housing Project (Phase 1).

54. Some of the contracts were awarded to providers whose tax matters had not been declared by
the South African Revenue Service to be in order, in contravention of SCM regulation 43. This
non-compliance was identified in the procurement processes for the key project for the
Upgrading of the Taung Raw Water Gravity Pipe Line from Taung Dam to Pudimoe .

55. The preference point system was not applied for some of the procurement of goods and
services above R30 000 as required by section 2(a) of the Preferential Procurement Policy
Framework Act. This non-compliance was identified in the procurement processes for the key
projects for the Bulk Water and Sanitation Service for the New Geluksoord Ext.2 Housing
Project (Phase 1) and the Upgrading of the Taung Raw Water Gravity Pipe Line from Taung
Dam to Pudimoe.

Other information 

56. The accounting officer is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the annual report. The other information does not include the
financial statements, the auditor’s report thereon and those selected development priorities
presented in the annual performance report that have been specifically reported on in the
auditor’s report.
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57. My opinion on the financial statements and findings on the reported performance information
and compliance with legislation do not cover the other information and I do not express an
audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

58. In connection with my audit, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements
and the selected development priorities presented in the annual performance report, or my
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

59. I did not receive the other information prior to the date of this auditor’s report. After I receive
and read this information, and if I conclude that there is a material misstatement, I am required
to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and request that the other
information be corrected. If the other information is not corrected, I may have to retract this
auditor’s report and re-issue an amended report as appropriate. However, if it is corrected this
will not be necessary.

Internal control deficiencies

60. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, reported
performance information and compliance with applicable legislation; however, my objective
was not to express any form of assurance thereon. The matters reported below are limited to
the significant internal control deficiencies that resulted in the basis for qualified opinion, the
findings on the annual performance report and the findings on compliance with legislation
included in this report.

• Adequate oversight responsibility regarding financial and performance reporting and
compliance and related internal controls was not exercised. Leadership did not ensure that
policies and procedures were effective to enable and support understanding and execution
of internal control objectives, processes and responsibilities. Existing internal control
measures, including IT systems did not allow management to ensure adequate monitoring
of financial and performance information resulting in misstatements and non-compliance
with legislation being reported.

• Management’s internal controls and processes over the preparation and presentation of
financial statements were not able to ensure that the financials were free from
misstatements.

• The audit committee did not adequately review to ensure the adequacy, reliability and
accuracy of the financial statements and performance report before signing of the financial
statements and the submission thereof.

Potchefstroom

30 November 2018
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Annexure – Auditor-general’s responsibility for the 
audit 

1. As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, I exercise professional judgement and 
maintain professional scepticism throughout my audit of the financial statements, and the 
procedures performed on reported performance information for selected development priorities 
and on the municipality’s compliance with respect to the selected subject matters. 

Financial statements 

2. In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the financial statements as described in the 
auditor’s report, I also:  

• identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

• obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the municipality’s internal control. 

• evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the accounting officer. 

• conclude on the appropriateness of the accounting officer’s use of the going concern basis 
of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements. I also conclude, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati District 
Municipality’s ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements about the material uncertainty or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify the opinion on the financial statements. My conclusions are based on the 
information available to me at the date of the auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause a municipality to cease to continue as a going concern.  

• evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

Communication with those charged with governance 

3. I communicate with the accounting officer regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that I identify during my audit.  

4. I also confirm to the accounting officer that I have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and communicate all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to have a bearing on my independence and where applicable, related 
safeguards.  
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ANNEXURE C: AUDIT ACTION PLAN TO ADDRESS QUERIES RAISED IN THE 
2017-2018 FY 
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Basis for qualified opinion as per Auditor General’s Report DR RSM corrective action START END RESPONSIBILITY 
Property, Plant and Equipment:  I was unable to obtain sufficient 
appropriate audit evidence for property, plant and equipment due 
to differences between the financial statements and the underlying 
accounting records. I was unable to confirm these assets by 
alternative means. In addition, the municipality did not revalue 
land and buildings as per the accounting policy in terms of GRAP 
17, Property, plant and equipment that indicates that land and 
buildings are carried on the revaluation model. I was unable to 
quantify the resultant misstatement of the property, plant and 
equipment as it was impracticable to do so. Consequently, I  was 
unable to determine whether any further adjustments relating to 
property, plant and equipment of R2 370 122 044 
(2017: R2 098 909 503) as disclosed in note 7 or depreciation 
and amortization expense of R62 320 234 (2017: R38 628 
842) as disclosed in the statement of financial performance 
was necessary. 

The largest portion of the restatement of corresponding figures 
relate to: 
• Subsequent journals relating to GRAP 17 methodology, 
• Restatement of property, plant and equipment  

 
All reasonable steps will be taken to prevent a re-occurrence, 
however, in some instance’s restatement cannot be avoided due 
to new requirements of accounting standards. 
 
-Barcoding of all assets 
-Regular -updating of asset register 
-Appointment of a registered valuer to determine the value for 
land, buildings, moveable and immovable assets 
-Review relevant financial policy in line with GRAP standards 

January 2019 April 2019 CFO/AO 

Payables from exchange transactions:  I was unable to obtain 
sufficient appropriate audit evidence for trade payables and 
retentions included in payables from exchange transactions due to 
a lack of adequate systems to maintain records to support 
financial information. I was unable to confirm these payables by 
alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine 
whether any adjustment relating to payables from exchange 
transactions of R68 325 715 as disclosed in note 10 to the 
financial statements was necessary. 

The municipality is ensuring that retention registers and payables 
are reconciled on a monthly basis with supporting documentation 
as annexures 
Review relevant financial policy in line with GRAP standards. 
Measures to store and collate information will also be put in place 
as to produce evidence when needed. 
Financial systems to be put in place to produce reliable financial 
statements and notes thereof 

January 2019 March 2019 CFO/AO 

Government grants and subsidies: The municipality did not 
correctly recognize revenue where the conditions for government 
grants and subsidies were met as required by GRAP 23, Revenue 
from non-exchange transactions due to incorrectly including VAT 
and transactions not recorded in the correct period. As a result, 
revenue from government grants and subsidies was overstated by 
R13 178 268 and unspent conditional grants and recerpts was 
understated by R13 178 268. In addition, I was unable to obtain 
sufficient appropriate audit evidence for government grants 
and subsidies and unspent conditional grants and receipts due 
to a lack of adequate systems to maintain records to support 
financial information. Iwas unable to confirm these government 
grants and subsidies and unspent conditional grants and 
receipts by alternative means. 
Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any further 
adjustments relating to revenue from government grants and 
subsidies of R675 186 379 as disclosed in note 18 or unspent 
conditional grants and receipts of R154 514 339 as disclosed in 
note 12 to the financial statements were necessary  

The municipality will ensure that conditional grant revenue is 
correctly recognised as revenue when expensed. 
 
Grant revenue is zero-rated, therefore VAT must correctly account 
for.  Previous financial year transactions must be accounted for in 
the correct period.  
Review relevant financial policy in line with GRAP standards 
 
Measures to store and collate information will also be put in place 
as to produce evidence when needed. 
Financial systems to be put in place to produce reliable financial 
statements and notes thereof 
 
 
 

January 2019 June 2019 CFO/AO 
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Matters of Emphasis as per Auditor General’s Report DR RSM corrective action START END RESPONSIBILITY 
Unauthorized, irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure:  As 
disclosed in note 35 to the financial statements, unauthorized expenditure 
of R163 661 349 was incurred in the current year and the unauthorized 
expenditure of R42 600 265 in respect of prior years have not yet been 
dealt with in accordance with section 32 of the MFMA. 

As disclosed in note 36 to the financial statements, irregular 
expenditure of R381 472 554 was incurred in the current year and 
irregular expenditure of R497 360 787 from prior years have not yet 
been dealt with in accordance with section 32 of the MFMA. 

As disclosed in note 37 to the financial statements , fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure of R36 959 was incurred in the current year and fruitless and 
wasteful expenditure of R140 053 from prior years have not yet been dealt 
with in accordance with section 32 of the MFMA. 

 
• Unauthorised expenditure will be monitored more closely 

and the current policies will be enforced more stringently 
and additional measures will be put in place to monitor.  
Intensify monitoring process for submission of budget 
reports 

• Enforce current policies in place and legal framework.  
Enforce revised supply chain policy in place and regular 
monitoring.  

• Additional measures will be put in place and more 
stringently enforced to prevent fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure.   

• The recovery of losses resulting from fruitless and 
wasteful expenditure to be dealt with in accordance with 
Treasury Regulations 12 

• Initiate appropriate steps against all officials responsible 
for incurring fruitless and wasteful expenditure. 

• MPAC to investigate UIFW expenditure 
• Review relevant financial policy in line with GRAP 

standards 
Measures to store and collate information will also be put in 
place as to produce evidence when needed. 
Financial systems to be put in place to produce reliable 
financial statements and notes thereof and track UIFW 
expenditure 

January 2019 June 2019 CFO/AO 

Material losses:  As disclosed in note 23 to the financial statements , 
material losses of R150 694 804 was incurred as a result of an impairment 
loss accounted for due to an investment made with VBS Mutual Bank. 

The banking and investment policy to be reviewed and updated 
to ensure and make clear that only banks registered in terms of 
the Banks Act and banks with appropriate capital adequacy 
levels are used.  As per accounting policies the banks used 
should also have an appropriate credit rating. 
Annexures in the draft policy also include: 
-  a list of approved investees;  
-  a guide in principles of exposure limits to banks; 
-  a list of prohibited investments. 
This strengthening of the policy will ensure that there are no 
mis-interpretations and ambiguities. 
Policy should be approved as part of the budget process to 
review all finance related policies 
 

January 2019 May 2019 CFO/AO 

Restatement of corresponding figures:As disclosed in note 49 to the 
financial statements, the corresponding figures for.2017 were restated as a 
result of an error in the financial statements of the municipality at, and for the 
year ended, 30 June 2018. 

More measures will be put in place to monitor and review.  
Ensure compliance with section 122(1) of MFMA. 
Review relevant financial policy in line with GRAP standards 
and in line with legislative and National government policies. 
Measures to store and collate information will also be put in 
place as to produce evidence when needed. 
Internal controls to be strengthened further 

January 2019 March 2019 CFO/AO 
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DR RUTH S MOMPATI DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018

Audit Committee Report

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 30 June 2018.

Audit Committee Responsibility
The Audit and Performance Committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from section 166(2) of the
MFMA. The Audit and Performance Committee also reports that it has adopted appropriate formal terms of reference as its
audit committee charter, has regulated its affairs in compliance with this charter and has discharged all its responsibilities
as contained therein.

The effectiveness of internal control

The system of internal control was not entirely effective for the year under review. During the year under review, several
deficiencies in the system of internal control and/or deviations were reported by the internal auditors .

The Audit Committee is satisfied with the content and quality of monthly and quarterly reports prepared and issued by the
internal auditors of the municipality during the year under review. 

Evaluation of annual financial statements

The Audit and Performance Committee has:

 reviewed the unaudited annual financial statements to be included in the annual report,
 reviewed the information on predetermined objectives.

Internal audit

The Audit and Performance Committee  is satisfied that the internal audit function is operating effectively and that it has
addressed the risks pertinent to the municipality and its audits.

Conclusion

We therefore recommend that the Accounting Authority submit the unaudited draft annual financial statements and
unaudited draft annual report to the Auditor General of South Africa for audit purposes

Chairperson of the Audit and Performance Committee

Date: 31 August 2018
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DR RUTH S MOMPATI DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018

Accounting Officer's Report

The accounting officer submits his report for the year ended 30 June 2018.

1. Review of activities

Main business and operations

The district municipality is a water services provider and operates principally in the North West.

The operating results and state of affairs of the municipality are fully set out in the attached annual financial statements and
do not in our opinion require any further comment.

2. Going concern

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This
basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of
liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

3. Subsequent events

There were no events after reporting period date.

4. Accounting Officer's interest in contracts

The accounting officer does not have any interest in any contract concerning Dr Ruth S Mompati Municipality.

5. Accounting policies

The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with the South African Statements of Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (GAAP), including any interpretations of such Statements issued by the Accounting Practices Board,
and in accordance with the prescribed Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practices (GRAP) issued by the
Accounting Standards Board as the prescribed framework by National Treasury.

6. Non-current assets

There were no details of major changes in the nature of the non-current assets of the municipality during the year.

7. Bankers

The bankers of Dr Ruth S Mompati District Municipality is First National Bank (FNB).

8. Auditors

The Auditor General South Africa will continue in office for the next financial period.

6
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Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2018
Figures in Rand Notes 2018 2017

Restated*

Assets

Current Assets

Operating Lease Asset 2 68 329 88 970

Receivables from non-exchange transactions 3 217 275 10 913 305

VAT receivable 4 37 586 907 80 498 545

Cash and cash equivalents 5 33 167 660 82 498 973

71 040 171 173 999 793

Non-Current Assets

Investment property 6 5 426 628 5 568 662

Property, plant and equipment 7 2 370 122 044 2 098 909 503

Intangible assets 8 1 269 633 1 525 915

2 376 818 305 2 106 004 080

Total Assets 2 447 858 476 2 280 003 873

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Other financial liabilities 9 10 800 000 10 800 000

Operating Lease Liability 2 - 236 654

Payables from exchange transactions 10 68 325 715 168 673 208

Employee benefit obligation 11 1 821 000 1 118 000

Unspent conditional grants and receipts 12 154 514 339 37 658 156

235 461 054 218 486 018

Non-Current Liabilities

Other financial liabilities 9 44 034 335 54 837 565

Employee benefit obligation 11 36 950 000 36 419 000

80 984 335 91 256 565

Total Liabilities 316 445 389 309 742 583

Net Assets 2 131 413 087 1 970 261 290

Reserves

Revaluation reserve 13 9 825 736 9 825 736

Accumulated surplus 14 2 121 587 351 1 960 435 554

Total Net Assets 2 131 413 087 1 970 261 290

* See Note 49
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Statement of Financial Performance
Figures in Rand Notes 2018 2017

Restated*

Revenue

Revenue from exchange transactions

Investment revenue - Interest earned 15 15 069 912 14 195 977

Other income 16 644 570 343 993

Rental of facilities and equipment 17 942 373 942 373

Total revenue from exchange transactions 16 656 855 15 482 343

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Transfer revenue

Government grants & subsidies 18 675 186 379 688 096 200

Other Income 12 642 1 533 617

Total revenue from non-exchange transactions 675 199 021 689 629 817

Total revenue 19 691 855 876 705 112 160

Expenditure

Employee related costs 20 (119 543 441) (111 348 233)

Remuneration of councillors 21 (7 104 170) (6 400 125)

Depreciation and amortisation 22 (62 284 234) (38 628 843)

Impairment loss 23 (150 694 804) (282 473)

Finance costs 24 (3 733 959) (3 436 125)

Lease rentals on operating lease 25 (2 909 119) (2 903 758)

Debt Impairment 26 (9 143 533) (141 266)

Bulk purchases 27 (106 163 798) (139 835 180)

Contracted services 28 (30 521 141) (22 636 661)

Grants and subsidies paid 29 (19 324 358) (79 055 100)

General Expenses 30 (22 541 487) (26 098 374)

Total expenditure (533 964 044) (430 766 138)

Operating surplus 157 891 832 274 346 022

Loss on disposal of Assets and Liabilities 31 - (6 725 801)

Fair value adjustments 32 (142 034) 1 015 100

Actuarial gains/losses 11 3 402 000 3 491 565

3 259 966 (2 219 136)

Surplus for the year 161 151 798 272 126 886

* See Note 49
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Figures in Rand
Revaluation

reserve
Accumulated

surplus
Total net
assets

Opening balance as previously reported 8 439 403 1 816 924 943 1 825 364 346
Adjustments
Prior year adjustments (Note 49) - 128 616 274 128 616 274

Balance at 01 July 2016 as restated* 8 439 403 1 688 308 668 1 696 748 071
Changes in net assets
Fair value gains: Land and buildings 1 386 333 - 1 386 333

Net income (losses) recognised directly in net assets 1 386 333 - 1 386 333
Surplus for the year previously recognised - 282 221 834 282 221 834

Total recognised income and expenses for the year 1 386 333 282 221 834 283 608 167
Prior year adjustments (Note 49) - (10 094 948) (10 094 948)

Total changes 1 386 333 272 126 886 273 513 219

Balance at 01 July 2017 as restated* 9 825 736 1 960 435 553 1 970 261 289
Changes in net assets
Surplus for the period - 161 151 798 161 151 798

Total changes - 161 151 798 161 151 798

Balance at 30 June 2018 9 825 736 2 121 587 351 2 131 413 087

Notes 13 14

* See Note 49
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Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018

Cash Flow Statement
Figures in Rand Notes 2018 2017

Restated*

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts

Governments grant and subsidies 792 055 206 726 389 607

Interest received 15 069 912 14 195 977

Other receipts 3 139 440 4 231 319

810 264 558 744 816 903

Payments

Employee related costs (118 309 440) (110 785 234)

Remuneration of councillors (7 104 171) (6 400 125)

Suppliers (236 139 245) (217 809 442)

Finance costs (27 645) (11 466)

Other payments (2 909 119) (2 903 758)

(364 489 620) (337 910 025)

Net cash flows from operating activities 33 445 774 938 406 906 878

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 7 (333 371 930) (358 528 205)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 7 - 92 873

Purchase of other intangible assets 8 - (802 766)

Net movement in financial assets (150 694 804) -

Net cash flows from investing activities (484 066 734) (359 238 098)

Cash flows from financing activities

Movement in operating lease payable (236 654) (34 956)

Repayment of other financial liabilities 9 (10 802 863) (10 796 323)

Net cash flows from financing activities (11 039 517) (10 831 279)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (49 331 313) 36 837 501

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 82 498 973 45 661 472

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 5 33 167 660 82 498 973

* See Note 49
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts
Budget on Accrual Basis

Figures in Rand

Approved
budget

Adjustments Final Budget Actual amounts
on comparable

basis

Difference
between final
budget and

actual

Statement of Financial Performance

Revenue

Revenue from exchange
transactions

Rental of facilities and
equipment

1 076 900 - 1 076 900 942 373 (134 527)

Other income - - - 644 570 644 570

Interest received - investment 13 874 000 4 000 000 17 874 000 15 069 912 (2 804 088)

Total revenue from exchange
transactions

14 950 900 4 000 000 18 950 900 16 656 855 (2 294 045)

Revenue from non-exchange
transactions

Transfer revenue

Government grants & subsidies 316 979 000 - 316 979 000 675 186 379 358 207 379

Other Income 225 000 - 225 000 12 642 (212 358)

Total revenue from non-
exchange transactions

317 204 000 - 317 204 000 675 199 021 357 995 021

Total revenue 332 154 900 4 000 000 336 154 900 691 855 876 355 700 976

Expenditure

Employee related costs (131 266 000) 8 597 000 (122 669 000) (119 543 441) 3 125 559

Remuneration of councillors (7 455 171) (705 285) (8 160 456) (7 104 170) 1 056 286

Depreciation and amortisation (47 243 436) 1 511 000 (45 732 436) (62 284 234) (16 551 798)

Impairment loss/ Reversal of
impairments

- - - (150 694 804) (150 694 804)

Finance costs (10 928 400) - (10 928 400) (3 733 959) 7 194 441

Lease rentals on operating lease - - - (2 909 119) (2 909 119)

Impairment of Receivables - - - (9 143 533) (9 143 533)

Bad debts written off (1 000 000) - (1 000 000) - 1 000 000

Bulk purchases (113 658 667) 1 000 (113 657 667) (106 163 798) 7 493 869

Contracted Services (21 818 000) (9 623 000) (31 441 000) (30 521 141) 919 859

Transfers and Subsidies (15 720 000) (5 030 000) (20 750 000) (19 324 358) 1 425 642

General Expenses (32 970 000) (1 981 000) (34 951 000) (22 541 487) 12 409 513

Total expenditure (382 059 674) (7 230 285) (389 289 959) (533 964 044) (144 674 085)

Operating surplus (49 904 774) (3 230 285) (53 135 059) 157 891 832 211 026 891

Fair value adjustments - - - (142 034) (142 034)

Actuarial gains/losses - - - 3 402 000 3 402 000

- - - 3 259 966 3 259 966

Surplus for the year (49 904 774) (3 230 285) (53 135 059) 161 151 798 214 286 857

Actual Amount on Comparable
Basis as Presented in the
Budget and Actual
Comparative Statement

(49 904 774) (3 230 285) (53 135 059) 161 151 798 214 286 857
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts
Budget on Accrual Basis

Figures in Rand

Approved
budget

Adjustments Final Budget Actual amounts
on comparable

basis

Difference
between final
budget and

actual

Statement of Financial Position

Assets

Current Assets

Operating lease asset - - - 68 329 68 329

Receivables from non-exchange
transactions

41 267 968 - 41 267 968 217 275 (41 050 693)

VAT receivable - - - 37 586 907 37 586 907

Cash and cash equivalents 30 509 531 - 30 509 531 33 167 660 2 658 129

71 777 499 - 71 777 499 71 040 171 (737 328)

Non-Current Assets

Investment property 4 093 820 - 4 093 820 5 426 628 1 332 808

Property, plant and equipment 2 777 358 281 - 2 777 358 281 2 370 122 044 (407 236 237)

Intangible assets 1 346 060 - 1 346 060 1 269 633 (76 427)

2 782 798 161 - 2 782 798 161 2 376 818 305 (405 979 856)

Total Assets 2 854 575 660 - 2 854 575 660 2 447 858 476 (406 717 184)

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Other financial liabilities 10 800 000 - 10 800 000 10 800 000 -

Operating lease liability 513 454 - 513 454 - (513 454)

Payables from exchange
transactions

134 097 750 - 134 097 750 68 325 716 (65 772 034)

Employee benefit obligation 5 830 063 - 5 830 063 1 821 000 (4 009 063)

Unspent conditional grants and
receipts

- - - 154 514 339 154 514 339

151 241 267 - 151 241 267 235 461 055 84 219 788

Non-Current Liabilities

Other financial liabilities 69 233 888 - 69 233 888 44 034 335 (25 199 553)

Employee benefit obligation 45 197 730 - 45 197 730 36 950 000 (8 247 730)

114 431 618 - 114 431 618 80 984 335 (33 447 283)

Total Liabilities 265 672 885 - 265 672 885 316 445 390 50 772 505

Net Assets 2 588 902 775 - 2 588 902 775 2 131 413 086 (457 489 689)

Net Assets

Net Assets Attributable to
Owners of Controlling Entity

Reserves

Revaluation reserve 9 412 790 - 9 412 790 9 825 736 412 946

Accumulated surplus 2 579 489 985 - 2 579 489 985 2 121 587 350 (457 902 635)

Total Net Assets 2 588 902 775 - 2 588 902 775 2 131 413 086 (457 489 689)
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts
Budget on Accrual Basis

Figures in Rand

Approved
budget

Adjustments Final Budget Actual amounts
on comparable

basis

Difference
between final
budget and

actual

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts

Grants 717 868 000 - 717 868 000 792 055 206 74 187 206

Interest income 13 874 000 - 13 874 000 15 069 912 1 195 912

Other receipts 1 301 900 - 1 301 900 3 139 440 1 837 540

733 043 900 - 733 043 900 810 264 558 77 220 658

Payments

Employee cost (316 225 000) - (316 225 000) (118 309 440) 197 915 560

Suppliers - - - (236 139 245) (236 139 245)

Finance costs (10 928 400) - (10 928 400) (27 645) 10 900 755

Transfers and grants (20 500 000) - (20 500 000) - 20 500 000

Remuneration of council - - - (7 104 171) (7 104 171)

Other payments - - - (2 909 119) (2 909 119)

(347 653 400) - (347 653 400) (364 489 620) (16 836 220)

Net cash flows from operating
activities

385 390 500 - 385 390 500 445 774 938 60 384 438

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

(396 024 650) 161 000 (395 863 650) (333 371 930) 62 491 720

Net movement in financial
assets

- - - (150 694 804) (150 694 804)

Net cash flows from investing
activities

(396 024 650) 161 000 (395 863 650) (484 066 734) (88 203 084)

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of other financial
liabilities

(10 800 000) - (10 800 000) (10 802 863) (2 863)

Movement in operating lease - - - (236 654) (236 654)

Net cash flows from financing
activities

(10 800 000) - (10 800 000) (11 039 517) (239 517)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents

(21 434 150) 161 000 (21 273 150) (49 331 313) (28 058 163)

Cash and cash equivalents at
the beginning of the year

72 405 807 - 72 405 807 82 498 973 10 093 166

Cash and cash equivalents at
the end of the year

50 971 657 161 000 51 132 657 33 167 660 (17 964 997)
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DR RUTH S MOMPATI DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018

Accounting Policies

1. Presentation of Annual Financial Statements

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised
Accounting Practice (GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with Section 122(3) of the Municipal
Finance Management Act (Act 56 of 2003).

These annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with
historical cost convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified otherwise. They are presented in South African
Rand.

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied in the preparation of these annual
financial statements, are disclosed below.

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.

1.1 Going concern assumption

These annual financial statements have been prepared based on the expectation that the municipality will continue to
operate as a going concern for at least the next 12 months.

1.2 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts represented in the annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the
application of judgments is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these
estimates which may be material to the annual financial statements. Significant judgments include:

Trade receivables / Held to maturity investments and/or loans and receivables

The municipality assesses its trade receivables for impairment at the end of each reporting period. In determining whether
an impairment loss should be recorded in surplus or deficit, the surplus makes judgments as to whether there is observable
data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a financial asset.

The impairment for trade receivables is calculated on a portfolio basis, based on historical loss ratios, adjusted for national
and industry-specific economic conditions and other indicators present at the reporting date that correlate with defaults on
the portfolio. These annual loss ratios are applied to loan balances in the portfolio and scaled to the estimated loss
emergence period.

Impairment testing

The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units and individual assets have been determined based on the higher of
value-in-use calculations and fair values less costs to sell. These calculations require the use of estimates and
assumptions. It is reasonably possible that the assumptions may change which may then impact our estimations and may
then require a material adjustment to the carrying value of tangible assets.

The municipality reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. Assets are grouped at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely
independent of cash flows of other assets and liabilities. If there are indications that impairment may have occurred,
estimates are prepared of expected future cash flows for each group of assets. Expected future cash flows used to
determine the value in use of goodwill and tangible assets are inherently uncertain and could materially change over time.
They are significantly affected by a number of factors together with economic factors.

Provisions

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information available. Additional disclosure
of these estimates of provisions are included in note  - Provisions.
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Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018

Accounting Policies

1.2 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Post - retirement benefits

The present value of the post retirement obligation depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial
basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) include the discount
rate. Any changes in these assumptions will impact on the carrying amount of post retirement obligations.

The municipality determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is the interest rate that should be
used to determine the present value of estimated future cash outflows expected to be required to settle the pension
obligations. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the municipality considers the interest rates of high-quality
corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity
approximating the terms of the related pension liability.

Other key assumptions for pension obligations are based on current market conditions. Additional information is disclosed
in note 11.

Allowance for doubtful debts

On debtors an impairment loss is recognised in surplus and deficit when there is objective evidence that it is impaired. The
impairment is measured as the difference between the debtors carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate, computed at initial recognition.

VAT

The municipality accounts for Value Added Tax (VAT) on a cash basis. The municipality is liable to account for VAT at the
standard rate of 14% till end of March 2018. On 1 April 2018 the standard rate was changed to 15% in terms of section
7(1)(a) of the VAT Act in respect of supply of goods or services, except where the supplies are specifically zero-rated in
terms of section 11, exempted in terms of section 12 of the VAT Act or are scoped out for VAT purposes. The municipality
accounts for VAT on a monthly basis.

1.3 Investment property

Investment property is property (land or a building - or part of a building - or both) held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both, rather than for: 

 use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
 administrative purposes, or 
 sale in the ordinary course of operations.

Investment property is recognised as an asset when, it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential that
are associated with the investment property will flow to the municipality, and the cost or fair value of the investment property
can be measured reliably.

Investment property is initially recognised at cost. Transaction costs are included in the initial measurement.

Where investment property is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at the date of
acquisition.

Costs include costs incurred initially and costs incurred subsequently to add to, or to replace a part of, or service a property.
If a replacement part is recognised in the carrying amount of the investment property, the carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised.

Fair value

Subsequent to initial measurement investment property is measured at fair value.

The fair value of investment property reflects market conditions at the reporting date.

A gain or loss arising from a change in fair value is included in net surplus or deficit for the period in which it arises.
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Accounting Policies

1.4 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assets) that are held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during
more than one period.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
 it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the

municipality; and
 the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade discounts and
rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost.

Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition.

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or a
combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the
acquired item's fair value was not determinable, it's deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.

When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. 

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of
property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located is also
included in the cost of property, plant and equipment, where the entity is obligated to incur such expenditure, and where the
obligation arises as a result of acquiring the asset or using it for purposes other than the production of inventories.

Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is in the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Items such as spare parts, standby equipment and servicing equipment are recognised when they meet the definition of
property, plant and equipment.

Major inspection costs which are a condition of continuing use of an item of property, plant and equipment and which meet the
recognition criteria above are included as a replacement in the cost of the item of property, plant and equipment. Any remaining
inspection costs from the previous inspection are derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses except for Land and
Buildings which are carried at revalued amount being the fair value at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

When an item of property, plant and equipment is revalued, any accumulated depreciation at the date of the revaluation is
eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount restated to the revalued amount of the asset.

Any increase in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is credited directly to a revaluation reserve. The
increase is recognised in surplus or deficit to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously
recognised in surplus or deficit.

Any decrease in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is recognised in surplus or deficit in the current period.
The decrease is debited directly to a revaluation reserve to the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus in
respect of that asset.

The revaluation surplus in equity related to a specific item of property, plant and equipment is transferred directly to retained
earnings when the asset is derecognised.
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1.4 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their estimated
residual value.

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

Item Depreciation method Average useful life

Buildings Straight line 30 years
Infrastructure
 Earthworks Straight line 88 years
 Pipes - Clay Straight line 80 years
 Pipes - Concrete Straight line 80 years
 Pipes - Steel Straight line 80 years
 Pipes - uPVC Straight line 75 years
 Buildings - Brick Straight line 75 years
 Buildings - Steel Straight line 88 years
 Buildings - Corrugated Iron Straight line 15 years
 Buildings - Concrete Straight line 63 years
 Borehole Straight line 63 years
 Meters: Bulk Straight line 23 years
 Meters: Consumer Straight line 23 years
 Valves Straight line 50 years
 Standpipes Straight line 38 years
 Fire Hydrants Straight line 50 years
 Telemetry Straight line 18 years
 Motor: Electrical Straight line 18 years
 Motor: Engine Straight line 23 years
 Pump: Submersible Straight line 15 years
 Pump: Centrifugal Straight line 15 years
 Windmill Straight line 90 years
 Manholes & Chambers (Brick) Straight line 73 years
 Manholes & Chambers (Concrete) Straight line 80 years
 Storage - Steel Straight line 70 years
 Storage - Plastic Straight line 48 years
 Reservoirs - Concrete Straight line 75 years
 Storage - Concrete (Cattle Troughs) Straight line 75 years
 Support Structure - Steel Straight line 70 years
 Support Structure - Stone Straight line 75 years
 Perimeter Protection - Razor Wire Straight line 28 years
 Perimeter Protection - Precast Straight line 43 years
 Perimeter Protection - Wire Mesh Straight line 28 years
 Perimeter Protection - Electrical Straight line 28 years
 Perimeter Protection - Brick Straight line 43 years
 Perimeter Protection - Iron Palisade Straight line 43 years
 Wave Protection Straight line 95 years
 Switchgear Straight line 18 years
 Perimeter Protection - Wire Straight line 28 years
Official vehicles Depreciation is calculated

as the difference between
the opening carrying
amount and the revalued
amount (average of trade
and retail values) at year
end

Annually

Machinery and equipment Straight line 7 years
Office equipment Straight line 5 years
Office furniture Straight line 7 years
Computer equipment Straight line 5 years

The depreciable amount of an asset is allocated on a systematic basis over its useful life.
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Accounting Policies

1.4 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is
depreciated separately.

The depreciation method used reflects the pattern in which the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential are
expected to be consumed by the municipality. The depreciation method applied to an asset is reviewed at least at each
reporting date and, if there has been a significant change in the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic
benefits or service potential embodied in the asset, the method is changed to reflect the changed pattern. Such a change is
accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate.

The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the municipality expectations about the
residual value and the useful life of an asset have changed since the preceding reporting date. If any such indication exists, the
municipality revises the expected useful life and/or residual value accordingly. The change is accounted for as a change in an
accounting estimate.

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying amount of
another asset.

Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic
benefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit when
the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.

Assets which the municipality holds for rentals to others and subsequently routinely sell as part of the ordinary course of
activities, are transferred to inventories when the rentals end and the assets are available-for-sale. Proceeds from sales of
these assets are recognised as revenue. All cash flows on these assets are included in cash flows from operating activities in
the disclosure notes.

The municipality separately discloses expenditure to repair and maintain property, plant and equipment in the notes to the
financial statements (see note ).

The municipality discloses relevant information relating to assets under construction or development, in the notes to the
financial statements (see note ).

1.5 Intangible assets

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance.
.
An asset is identifiable if it either:

 is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or
exchanged, either individually or together with a related contract, identifiable assets or liability, regardless of
whether the entity intends to do so; or

 arises from binding arrangements (including rights from contracts), regardless of whether those rights are
transferable or separable from the municipality or from other rights and obligations.

A binding arrangement describes an arrangement that confers similar rights and obligations on the parties to it as if it were in
the form of a contract.

An intangible asset is recognised when:
 it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are attributable to the asset will

flow to the municipality; and
 the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

The municipality assesses the probability of expected future economic benefits or service potential using reasonable and
supportable assumptions that represent management’s best estimate of the set of economic conditions that will exist over the
useful life of the asset.

Where an intangible asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its initial cost at the date of acquisition is measured
at its fair value as at that date.
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1.5 Intangible assets (continued)

Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognised as an expense when it is incurred.

An intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised when:
 it is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use or sale.
 there is an intention to complete and use or sell it.
 there is an ability to use or sell it.
 it will generate probable future economic benefits or service potential.
 there are available technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the

asset.
 the expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.

An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there is no foreseeable
limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows or service potential. Amortisation is not
provided for these intangible assets, but they are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the
asset may be impaired. For all other intangible assets amortisation is provided on a straight line basis over their useful life.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date.

Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life after it was classified as indefinite is an indicator that
the asset may be impaired. As a result the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining carrying amount is amortised over
its useful life.

Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and items similar in substance are not recognised as
intangible assets.

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values as follows:

Item Useful life
Computer software, internally generated 5 years

1.6 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or a residual
interest of another entity.

The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is
measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective
interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction (directly or
through the use of an allowance account) for impairment or uncollectibility.

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to
discharge an obligation.

Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognised financial asset or financial liability from an entity’s statement of
financial position.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing parties
in an arm’s length transaction.

A financial asset is:
 cash;
 a residual interest of another entity; or
 a contractual right to:

- receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or
- exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially
favourable to the entity.

A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to:
 deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or
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1.6 Financial instruments (continued)
 exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the entity.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates.

Liquidity risk is the risk encountered by an entity in the event of difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.

Loan commitment is a firm commitment to provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions.

Loans payable are financial liabilities, other than short-term payables on normal credit terms.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by
factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded
in the market.

A financial asset is past due when a counterparty has failed to make a payment when contractually due.

Financial instruments at amortised cost are non-derivative financial assets or non-derivative financial liabilities that have
fixed or determinable payments, excluding those instruments that:

 the entity designates at fair value at initial recognition; or
 are held for trading.

Financial instruments at cost are investments in residual interests that do not have a quoted market price in an active
market, and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.

Classification

The entity has the following types of financial assets (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of
financial position or in the notes thereto:

`

Class Category
Receivables Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Bank Balances Financial asset measured at amortised cost

The entity has the following types of financial liabilities (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of
financial position or in the notes thereto:

`

Class Category
Trade Payables Financial liability measured at amortised cost
Other financial liability Financial liability measured at amortised cost

Initial recognition

The entity recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position when the entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The entity recognises financial assets using trade date accounting.

Initial measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

The entity measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability.
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Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

The entity measures all financial assets and financial liabilities after initial recognition using the following categories:
 Financial instruments at amortised cost.

All financial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject to an impairment review.

Reclassification

The entity does not reclassify a financial instrument while it is issued or held unless it is:
 combined instrument that is required to be measured at fair value; or
 an investment in a residual interest that meets the requirements for reclassification.

Gains and losses

For financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost or cost, a gain or loss is recognised in surplus or
deficit when the financial asset or financial liability is derecognised or impaired, or through the amortisation process.

Impairment and uncollectibility of financial assets

The entity assess at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or group
of financial assets is impaired.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost:

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced directly OR through the use of an allowance account.
The amount of the loss is recognised in surplus or deficit.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed directly OR by
adjusting an allowance account. The reversal does not result in a carrying amount of the financial asset that exceeds what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The
amount of the reversal is recognised in surplus or deficit.

Financial assets measured at cost:

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an investment in a residual interest that is not
measured at fair value because its fair value cannot be measured reliably, the amount of the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses are not reversed.
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Derecognition

Financial assets

The entity derecognises financial assets using trade date accounting.

The entity derecognises a financial asset only when:
 the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, are settled or waived;
 the entity transfers to another party substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset;

or
 the entity, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, has

transferred control of the asset to another party and the other party has the practical ability to sell the asset in its
entirety to an unrelated third party, and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without needing to impose
additional restrictions on the transfer. In this case, the entity :
- derecognise the asset; and
- recognise separately any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer.

The carrying amounts of the transferred asset are allocated between the rights or obligations retained and those transferred
on the basis of their relative fair values at the transfer date. Newly created rights and obligations are measured at their fair
values at that date. Any difference between the consideration received and the amounts recognised and derecognised is
recognised in surplus or deficit in the period of the transfer.

If the entity transfers a financial asset in a transfer that qualifies for derecognition in its entirety and retains the right to
service the financial asset for a fee, it recognise either a servicing asset or a servicing liability for that servicing contract. If
the fee to be received is not expected to compensate the entity adequately for performing the servicing, a servicing liability
for the servicing obligation is recognised at its fair value. If the fee to be received is expected to be more than adequate
compensation for the servicing, a servicing asset is recognised for the servicing right at an amount determined on the basis
of an allocation of the carrying amount of the larger financial asset.

If, as a result of a transfer, a financial asset is derecognised in its entirety but the transfer results in the entity obtaining a
new financial asset or assuming a new financial liability, or a servicing liability, the entity recognise the new financial asset,
financial liability or servicing liability at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received is recognised in surplus or deficit.

If the transferred asset is part of a larger financial asset and the part transferred qualifies for derecognition in its entirety, the
previous carrying amount of the larger financial asset is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the
part that is derecognised, based on the relative fair values of those parts, on the date of the transfer. For this purpose, a
retained servicing asset is treated as a part that continues to be recognised. The difference between the carrying amount
allocated to the part derecognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part derecognised is recognised in
surplus or deficit.

If a transfer does not result in derecognition because the entity has retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the transferred asset, the entity continue to recognise the transferred asset in its entirety and recognise a
financial liability for the consideration received. In subsequent periods, the entity recognises any revenue on the transferred
asset and any expense incurred on the financial liability. Neither the asset, and the associated liability nor the revenue, and
the associated expenses are offset.

Financial liabilities

The entity removes a financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) from its statement of financial position when it is
extinguished — i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, expires or waived.

An exchange between an existing borrower and lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted
for as having extinguished the original financial liability and a new financial liability is recognised. Similarly, a substantial
modification of the terms of an existing financial liability or a part of it is accounted for as having extinguished the original
financial liability and having recognised a new financial liability.
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The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability (or part of a financial liability) extinguished or transferred
to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised
in surplus or deficit. Any liabilities that are waived, forgiven or assumed by another entity by way of a non-exchange
transaction are accounted for in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions
(Taxes and Transfers).

Presentation

Interest relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as revenue or expense in
surplus or deficit.

Losses and gains relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as revenue or
expense in surplus or deficit.

Distributions to holders of residual interests are recognised by the entity directly in net assets. Transaction costs incurred on
residual interests are accounted for as a deduction from net assets. Income tax [where applicable] relating to distributions to
holders of residual interests and to transaction costs incurred on residual interests are accounted for in accordance with the
International Accounting Standard on Income Taxes.

A financial asset and a financial liability are only offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position
when the entity currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

In accounting for a transfer of a financial asset that does not qualify for derecognition, the entity does not offset the transferred
asset and the associated liability.

1.7 Leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease
is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.

When a lease includes both land and buildings elements, the entity assesses the classification of each element separately.

Operating leases - lessor

Operating lease revenue is recognised as revenue on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging operating leases are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as the lease revenue.

The aggregate cost of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental revenue over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line
basis.

Income for leases is disclosed under revenue in statement of financial performance.

Operating leases - lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference
between the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset
or liability.

1.8 Impairment of cash-generating assets

Cash-generating assets are assets used with the objective of generating a commercial return. Commercial return means
that positive cash flows are expected to be significantly higher than the cost of the asset.

Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic
recognition of the loss of the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential through depreciation (amortisation).
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1.8 Impairment of cash-generating assets (continued)

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial position after deducting any
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon.

A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets used with the objective of generating a commercial return
that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets.

Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding finance costs and income
tax expense.

Depreciation (Amortisation) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life.

Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between
knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal.

Recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

Useful life is either:
 the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the municipality; or
 the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the municipality.

Judgements made by management in applying the criteria to designate assets as cash-generating assets or non-cash-
generating assets, are as follows:

[Specify judgements made]

Recognition and measurement (individual asset)

If the recoverable amount of a cash-generating asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. This reduction is an impairment loss.

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.

Any impairment loss of a revalued cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.

When the amount estimated for an impairment loss is greater than the carrying amount of the cash-generating asset to
which it relates, the municipality recognises a liability only to the extent that is a requirement in the Standard of GRAP.

After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the cash-generating asset is adjusted
in future periods to allocate the cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a
systematic basis over its remaining useful life.
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Reversal of impairment loss

The municipality assess at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior
periods for a cash-generating asset may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the entity
estimates the recoverable amount of that asset.

An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a cash-generating asset is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The carrying
amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. The increase is a reversal of an impairment loss. The increased
carrying amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of depreciation or amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
periods.

A reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating asset is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.

Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation increase.

After a reversal of an impairment loss is recognised, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the cash-generating asset is
adjusted in future periods to allocate the cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on
a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

A reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating unit is allocated to the cash-generating assets of the unit pro rata
with the carrying amounts of those assets. These increases in carrying amounts are treated as reversals of impairment
losses for individual assets. No part of the amount of such a reversal is allocated to a non-cash-generating asset
contributing service potential to a cash-generating unit.

In allocating a reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating unit, the carrying amount of an asset is not increased
above the lower of:

 its recoverable amount (if determinable); and
 the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment

loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods.

The amount of the reversal of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro
rata to the other assets of the unit.

1.9 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets

Cash-generating assets are assets used with the objective of generating a commercial return. Commercial return means
that positive cash flows are expected to be significantly higher than the cost of the asset.

Non-cash-generating assets are assets other than cash-generating assets.

Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic
recognition of the loss of the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential through depreciation (amortisation).

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial position after deducting any
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon.

A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets managed with the objective of generating a commercial
return that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets.

Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding finance costs and income
tax expense.

Depreciation (Amortisation) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life.

Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between
knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal.

Recoverable service amount is the higher of a non-cash-generating asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.
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Useful life is either:
 the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the municipality; or
 the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the municipality.

Judgements made by management in applying the criteria to designate assets as non-cash-generating assets or cash-
generating assets, are as follows:

[Specify judgements made]

Recognition and measurement

If the recoverable service amount of a non-cash-generating asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset is reduced to its recoverable service amount. This reduction is an impairment loss.

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.

Any impairment loss of a revalued non-cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.

When the amount estimated for an impairment loss is greater than the carrying amount of the non-cash-generating asset to
which it relates, the municipality recognises a liability only to the extent that is a requirement in the Standards of GRAP.

After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the non-cash-generating asset is
adjusted in future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if
any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

Reversal of an impairment loss

The municipality assess at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior
periods for a non-cash-generating asset may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the
municipality estimates the recoverable service amount of that asset.

An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a non-cash-generating asset is reversed if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable service amount since the last impairment loss was recognised.
The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable service amount. The increase is a reversal of an
impairment loss. The increased carrying amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation or amortisation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior periods.

A reversal of an impairment loss for a non-cash-generating asset is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.

Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued non-cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation increase.

After a reversal of an impairment loss is recognised, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the non-cash-generating
asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual
value (if any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

1.10 Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by an entity in exchange for service rendered by employees.

A qualifying insurance policy is an insurance policy issued by an insurer that is not a related party (as defined in the
Standard of GRAP on Related Party Disclosures) of the reporting entity, if the proceeds of the policy can be used only to
pay or fund employee benefits under a defined benefit plan and are not available to the reporting entity’s own creditors
(even in liquidation) and cannot be paid to the reporting entity, unless either:

 the proceeds represent surplus assets that are not needed for the policy to meet all the related employee benefit
obligations; or

 the proceeds are returned to the reporting entity to reimburse it for employee benefits already paid.

Termination benefits are employee benefits payable as a result of either:
 an entity’s decision to terminate an employee’s employment before the normal retirement date; or
 an employee’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits.
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Other long-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than post-employment benefits and termination benefits)
that are not due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related
service.

Vested employee benefits are employee benefits that are not conditional on future employment.

Composite social security programmes are established by legislation and operate as multi-employer plans to provide post-
employment benefits as well as to provide benefits that are not consideration in exchange for service rendered by
employees.

A constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from an entity’s actions where by an established pattern of past
practice, published policies or a sufficiently specific current statement, the entity has indicated to other parties that it will
accept certain responsibilities and as a result, the entity has created a valid expectation on the part of those other parties
that it will discharge those responsibilities.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that are due to be settled within
twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service.

Short-term employee benefits include items such as:
 wages, salaries and social security contributions;
 short-term compensated absences (such as paid annual leave and paid sick leave) where the compensation for

the absences is due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the reporting period in which the
employees render the related employee service;

 bonus, incentive and performance related payments payable within twelve months after the end of the reporting
period in which the employees render the related service; and 

 non-monetary benefits (for example, medical care, and free or subsidised goods or services such as housing,
cars and cellphones) for current employees.

When an employee has rendered service to the entity during a reporting period, the entity recognise the undiscounted
amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service:

 as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any amount already paid. If the amount already paid exceeds the
undiscounted amount of the benefits, the entity recognise that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) to the
extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash refund; and

 as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an asset.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase
their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs. The entity measure the expected
cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount that the entity expects to pay as a result of the
unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The entity recognise the expected cost of bonus, incentive and performance related payments when the entity has a
present legal or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past events and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made. A present obligation exists when the entity has no realistic alternative but to make the payments.

Post-employment benefits

Post-employment benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) which are payable after the completion of
employment.

Post-employment benefit plans are formal or informal arrangements under which an entity provides post-employment
benefits for one or more employees.

Multi-employer plans are defined contribution plans (other than state plans and composite social security programmes) or
defined benefit plans (other than state plans) that pool the assets contributed by various entities that are not under common
control and use those assets to provide benefits to employees of more than one entity, on the basis that contribution and
benefit levels are determined without regard to the identity of the entity that employs the employees concerned.
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Post-employment benefits: Defined contribution plans

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate
entity (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.

When an employee has rendered service to the entity during a reporting period, the entity recognise the contribution
payable to a defined contribution plan in exchange for that service:

 as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid
exceeds the contribution due for service before the reporting date, an entity recognise that excess as an asset
(prepaid expense) to the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a
cash refund; and

 as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the contribution in the cost of an
asset.

Where contributions to a defined contribution plan do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the reporting
period in which the employees render the related service, they are discounted. The rate used to discount reflects the time
value of money. The currency and term of the financial instrument selected to reflect the time value of money is consistent
with the currency and estimated term of the obligation.
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Post-employment benefits: Defined benefit plans

Defined benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans other than defined contribution plans.

Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustments (the effects of differences between the previous actuarial
assumptions and what has actually occurred) and the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions. In measuring its defined
benefit liability the entity recognise actuarial gains and losses in surplus or deficit in the reporting period in which they
occur.

Assets held by a long-term employee benefit fund are assets (other than non-transferable financial instruments issued by
the reporting entity) that are held by an entity (a fund) that is legally separate from the reporting entity and exists solely to
pay or fund employee benefits and are available to be used only to pay or fund employee benefits, are not available to the
reporting entity’s own creditors (even in liquidation), and cannot be returned to the reporting entity, unless either:

 the remaining assets of the fund are sufficient to meet all the related employee benefit obligations of the plan or
the reporting entity; or 

 the assets are returned to the reporting entity to reimburse it for employee benefits already paid.

Current service cost is the increase in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from employee service in
the current period.

Interest cost is the increase during a period in the present value of a defined benefit obligation which arises because the
benefits are one period closer to settlement.

Past service cost is the change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation for employee service in prior periods,
resulting in the current period from the introduction of, or changes to, post-employment benefits or other long-term
employee benefits. Past service cost may be either positive (when benefits are introduced or changed so that the present
value of the defined benefit obligation increases) or negative (when existing benefits are changed so that the present value
of the defined benefit obligation decreases). In measuring its defined benefit liability the entity recognise past service cost
as an expense in the reporting period in which the plan is amended.

Plan assets comprise assets held by a long-term employee benefit fund and qualifying insurance policies.

The present value of a defined benefit obligation is the present value, without deducting any plan assets, of expected future
payments required to settle the obligation resulting from employee service in the current and prior periods.

The return on plan assets is interest, dividends or similar distributions and other revenue derived from the plan assets,
together with realised and unrealised gains or losses on the plan assets, less any costs of administering the plan (other
than those included in the actuarial assumptions used to measure the defined benefit obligation) and less any tax payable
by the plan itself.

The entity account not only for its legal obligation under the formal terms of a defined benefit plan, but also for any
constructive obligation that arises from the entity’s informal practices. Informal practices give rise to a constructive
obligation where the entity has no realistic alternative but to pay employee benefits. An example of a constructive obligation
is where a change in the entity’s informal practices would cause unacceptable damage to its relationship with employees.

The amount recognised as a defined benefit liability is the net total of the following amounts: 
 the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date;
 minus the fair value at the reporting date of plan assets (if any) out of which the obligations are to be settled

directly;
 plus any liability that may arise as a result of a minimum funding requirement

The amount determined as a defined benefit liability may be negative (an asset). The entity measure the resulting asset at
the lower of:

 the amount determined above; and
 the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future

contributions to the plan. The present value of these economic benefits is determined using a discount rate which
reflects the time value of money.

Any adjustments arising from the limit above is recognised in surplus or deficit.
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The entity determine the present value of defined benefit obligations and the fair value of any plan assets with sufficient
regularity such that the amounts recognised in the annual financial statements do not differ materially from the amounts that
would be determined at the reporting date.

The entity recognises the net total of the following amounts in surplus or deficit, except to the extent that another Standard
requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset:

 current service cost;
 interest cost;
 the expected return on any plan assets and on any reimbursement rights;
 actuarial gains and losses;
 past service cost;
 the effect of any curtailments or settlements; and
 the effect of applying the limit on a defined benefit asset (negative defined benefit liability).

The entity uses the Projected Unit Credit Method to determine the present value of its defined benefit obligations and the
related current service cost and, where applicable, past service cost. The Projected Unit Credit Method (sometimes known
as the accrued benefit method pro-rated on service or as the benefit/years of service method) sees each period of service
as giving rise to an additional unit of benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

In determining the present value of its defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and, where
applicable, past service cost, an entity shall attribute benefit to periods of service under the plan’s benefit formula. However,
if an employee’s service in later years will lead to a materially higher level of benefit than in earlier years, an entity shall
attribute benefit on a straight-line basis from:

 the date when service by the employee first leads to benefits under the plan (whether or not the benefits are
conditional on further service); until

 the date when further service by the employee will lead to no material amount of further benefits under the plan,
other than from further salary increases.

Actuarial valuations are conducted on an annual basis by independent actuaries separately for each plan. The results of the
valuation are updated for any material transactions and other material changes in circumstances (including changes in
market prices and interest rates) up to the reporting date.

The entity recognises gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan when the curtailment or
settlement occurs. The gain or loss on a curtailment or settlement comprises:

 any resulting change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation; and
 any resulting change in the fair value of the plan assets.

Before determining the effect of a curtailment or settlement, the entity re-measure the obligation (and the related plan
assets, if any) using current actuarial assumptions (including current market interest rates and other current market prices).

When it is virtually certain that another party will reimburse some or all of the expenditure required to settle a defined benefit
obligation, the right to reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset. The asset is measured at fair value. In all other
respects, the asset is treated in the same way as plan assets. In surplus or deficit, the expense relating to a defined benefit
plan is [OR is not] presented as the net of the amount recognised for a reimbursement.

The entity offsets an asset relating to one plan against a liability relating to another plan when the entity has a legally
enforceable right to use a surplus in one plan to settle obligations under the other plan and intends either to settle the
obligations on a net basis, or to realise the surplus in one plan and settle its obligation under the other plan simultaneously.
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1.10 Employee benefits (continued)

Actuarial assumptions

Actuarial assumptions are unbiased and mutually compatible. 

Financial assumptions are based on market expectations, at the reporting date, for the period over which the obligations are
to be settled. 

The rate used to discount post-employment benefit obligations (both funded and unfunded) reflect the time value of money.
The currency and term of the financial instrument selected to reflect the time value of money is consistent with the currency
and estimated term of the post-employment benefit obligations.

Post-employment benefit obligations are measured on a basis that reflects:
 estimated future salary increases;
 the benefits set out in the terms of the plan (or resulting from any constructive obligation that goes beyond those

terms) at the reporting date; and
 estimated future changes in the level of any state benefits that affect the benefits payable under a defined benefit

plan, if, and only if, either:
 those changes were enacted before the reporting date; or
 past history, or other reliable evidence, indicates that those state benefits will change in some predictable

manner, for example, in line with future changes in general price levels or general salary levels.

Assumptions about medical costs take account of estimated future changes in the cost of medical services, resulting from
both inflation and specific changes in medical costs.

1.11 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when:
 the municipality has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
 it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to

settle the obligation; and
 a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the present obligation at
the reporting date.

Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation.

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the
reimbursement is recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the
municipality settles the obligation. The reimbursement is treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the
reimbursement does not exceed the amount of the provision.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are reversed if it
is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required, to
settle the obligation.

Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each period to reflect the passage of time. This
increase is recognised as an interest expense.

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating surplus (deficit).

If municipality has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract is recognised and
measured as a provision.
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1.11 Provisions (continued)

A constructive obligation to restructure arises only when an entity:
 has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring, identifying at least:

- the activity/operating unit or part of a activity/operating unit concerned;
- the principal locations affected;
- the location, function, and approximate number of employees who will be compensated for services being
terminated;
- the expenditures that will be undertaken; and
- when the plan will be implemented; and

 has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement that
plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it.

A restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are those that are both: 
 necessarily entailed by the restructuring; and
 not associated with the ongoing activities of the municipality

No obligation arises as a consequence of the sale or transfer of an operation until the municipality is committed to the sale
or transfer, that is, there is a binding arrangement.

After their initial recognition contingent liabilities recognised in entity combinations that are recognised separately are
subsequently measured at the higher of:

 the amount that would be recognised as a provision; and
 the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 34.

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for
a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the original or modified
terms of a debt instrument.

Loan commitment is a firm commitment to provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions.

The municipality recognises a provision for financial guarantees and loan commitments when it is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits and service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate of the obligation can be made.

Determining whether an outflow of resources is probable in relation to financial guarantees requires judgement. Indications
that an outflow of resources may be probable are:

 financial difficulty of the debtor;
 defaults or delinquencies in interest and capital repayments by the debtor;
 breaches of the terms of the debt instrument that result in it being payable earlier than the agreed term and the

ability of the debtor to settle its obligation on the amended terms; and
 a decline in prevailing economic circumstances (e.g. high interest rates, inflation and unemployment) that impact

on the ability of entities to repay their obligations.

Where a fee is received by the municipality for issuing a financial guarantee and/or where a fee is charged on loan
commitments, it is considered in determining the best estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at reporting
date. Where a fee is charged and the municipality considers that an outflow of economic resources is probable, an
municipality recognises the obligation at the higher of:

 the amount determined using in the Standard of GRAP on Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets; and

 the amount of the fee initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions.

1.12 Commitments

Items are classified as commitments when an entity has committed itself to future transactions that will normally result in the
outflow of cash.

Disclosures are required in respect of unrecognised contractual commitments.
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1.12 Commitments (continued)

Commitments for which disclosure is necessary to achieve a fair presentation should be disclosed in a note to the financial
statements, if both the following criteria are met:

 Contracts should be non-cancellable or only cancellable at significant cost (for example, contracts for computer
or building maintenance services); and

 Contracts should relate to something other than the routine, steady, state business of the entity – therefore
salary commitments relating to employment contracts or social security benefit commitments are excluded.

1.13 Revenue from exchange transactions

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows result
in an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.

An exchange transaction is one in which the municipality receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and
directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the other party in
exchange.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing
parties in an arm’s length transaction.

1.14 Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and receivable by an municipality,
which represents an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.

Conditions on transferred assets are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential
embodied in the asset is required to be consumed by the recipient as specified or future economic benefits or service
potential must be returned to the transferor.

Control of an asset arise when the municipality can use or otherwise benefit from the asset in pursuit of its objectives and
can exclude or otherwise regulate the access of others to that benefit.

Exchange transactions are transactions in which one entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and
directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of cash, goods, services, or use of assets) to another entity in
exchange.

Expenses paid through the tax system are amounts that are available to beneficiaries regardless of whether or not they pay
taxes.

Fines are economic benefits or service potential received or receivable by entities, as determined by a court or other law
enforcement body, as a consequence of the breach of laws or regulations.

Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non-exchange transaction, an
municipality either receives value from another municipality without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange,
or gives value to another municipality without directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange.

Restrictions on transferred assets are stipulations that limit or direct the purposes for which a transferred asset may be
used, but do not specify that future economic benefits or service potential is required to be returned to the transferor if not
deployed as specified.

Stipulations on transferred assets are terms in laws or regulation, or a binding arrangement, imposed upon the use of a
transferred asset by entities external to the reporting municipality.

Tax expenditures are preferential provisions of the tax law that provide certain taxpayers with concessions that are not
available to others.

The taxable event is the event that the government, legislature or other authority has determined will be subject to taxation.

Taxes are economic benefits or service potential compulsorily paid or payable to entities, in accordance with laws and or
regulations, established to provide revenue to government. Taxes do not include fines or other penalties imposed for
breaches of the law.
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1.14 Revenue from non-exchange transactions (continued)

Transfers are inflows of future economic benefits or service potential from non-exchange transactions, other than taxes.

Recognition

An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is recognised as revenue, except to the extent
that a liability is also recognised in respect of the same inflow.

As the municipality satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from a non-
exchange transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognises an
amount of revenue equal to that reduction.

Measurement

Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets recognised by the
municipality.

When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the municipality recognises an asset, it also recognises revenue equivalent
to the amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, unless it is also required to recognise a
liability. Where a liability is required to be recognised it will be measured as the best estimate of the amount required to settle
the obligation at the reporting date, and the amount of the increase in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. When a
liability is subsequently reduced, because the taxable event occurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount of the reduction in the
liability is recognised as revenue.

Transfers

Apart from Services in kind, which are not recognised, the municipality recognises an asset in respect of transfers when the
transferred resources meet the definition of an asset and satisfy the criteria for recognition as an asset.

The municipality recognises an asset in respect of transfers when the transferred resources meet the definition of an asset and
satisfy the criteria for recognition as an asset.

Transferred assets are measured at their fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Donations

Gifts and donations, including goods in kind, are recognised as assets and revenue when it is probable that the future
economic benefits or service potential will flow to the municipality and the fair value of the assets can be measured reliably.

1.15 Expenditure

Expenditure shall be recognised when it occurs and in the period in which the expense relates and not only when payment
is made.

1.16 Investment income

Investment income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.

1.17 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other expenses incurred by an entity in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

1.18 Unauthorised expenditure

Unauthorised expenditure means:
 overspending of a vote or a main division within a vote; and
 expenditure not in accordance with the purpose of a vote or, in the case of a main division, not in accordance

with the purpose of the main division.
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1.18 Unauthorised expenditure (continued)

All expenditure relating to unauthorised expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance
in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the expense,
and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance.

1.19 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care been
exercised.

All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial
performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of
the expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance.

1.20 Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act No.56 of 2003), the
Municipal Systems Act (Act No.32 of 2000), and the Public Office Bearers Act (Act No. 20 of 1998) or is in contravention of
the economic entity’s supply chain management policy. Irregular expenditure excludes unauthorised expenditure. Irregular
expenditure is accounted for as expenditure in the Statement of Financial Performance and where recovered, it is
subsequently accounted for as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance.

1.21 Related parties

A related party is a person or an entity with the ability to control or jointly control the other party, or exercise significant influence
over the other party, or vice versa, or an entity that is subject to common control, or joint control.

Control is the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Joint control is the agreed sharing of control over an activity by a binding arrangement, and exists only when the strategic
financial and operating decisions relating to the activity require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control (the
venturers).

Related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between the reporting entity and a related party,
regardless of whether a price is charged.

Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of an entity, but is not control over
those policies.

Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the municipality, including
those charged with the governance of the municipality in accordance with legislation, in instances where they are required to
perform such functions.

Close members of the family of a person are considered to be those family members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that management in their dealings with the municipality.

The municipality is exempt from disclosure requirements in relation to related party transactions if that transaction occurs within
normal supplier and/or client/recipient relationships on terms and conditions no more or less favourable than those which it is
reasonable to expect the municipality to have adopted if dealing with that individual entity or person in the same circumstances
and terms and conditions are within the normal operating parameters established by that reporting entity's legal mandate.

Where the municipality is exempt from the disclosures in accordance with the above, the municipality discloses narrative
information about the nature of the transactions and the related outstanding balances, to enable users of the entity’s financial
statements to understand the effect of related party transactions on its annual financial statements.

1.22 Events after reporting date

Events after reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the reporting date and
the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:

 those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date (adjusting events after the reporting
date); and
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1.22 Events after reporting date (continued)
 those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date (non-adjusting events after the reporting

date).

The municipality will adjust the amount recognised in the financial statements to reflect adjusting events after the reporting
date once the event occurred.

The municipality will disclose the nature of the event and an estimate of its financial effect or a statement that such estimate
cannot be made in respect of all material non-adjusting events, where non-disclosure could influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.
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2. Operating lease asset (accrual)

Current assets 68 329 88 970
Current liabilities - (236 654)

68 329 (147 684)

The operating lease asset relates to investment property, ERF 1853, portion of ERF 506 Vryburg, that is being leased to the
Department of Transport and Public Work for a 3 year period with a 10% yearly escalation.

The operating lease liability relates to the rental of 50 Market Street by the district from Markork Investment Limited for a
period of 3 years with an escalation of 8%.

Please refer to note 40 for disclosure of commitments on the leases. 

3. Receivables from non-exchange transactions

Provision for Impairment on Receivables (9 342 669) (199 136)
Bad Debts Written Off - (1 105 703)
Government grants and subsidies - 223 467
Employee debtors 404 606 289 819
Other receivables from non-exchange transactions 9 155 338 11 704 858

217 275 10 913 305

Receivables from non-exchange transactions pledged as security

None of the classes of Receivables from non-exchange transactions has been pledged as security.

Credit quality of receivables from non-exchange transactions

The credit quality of other receivables from non-exchange transactions that are neither past nor due nor impaired can be
assessed by reference to external credit ratings (if available) or to historical information about counterparty default rates.

None of the financial assets that are fully performing have been renegotiated in the last year.

Receivables from non-exchange transactions past due but not impaired

The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired is as follows:

1 month past due - Other receivables 11 805 3 000 000
1 month past due - Employee debtors 28 115 15 932
2 months past due - Other receivables - 650 277
2 months past due - Employee debtors 23 384 15 932
3 months past due - Employee debtors 112 606 11 257
> 3 months past due - Other Receivables - 2 814 483

175 910 6 507 881

Reconciliation of provision for impairment of receivables from non-exchange transactions

Opening balance 199 136 1 163 573
Provision for impairment 9 143 533 141 266
Amounts written off as uncollectible - (1 105 703)

9 342 669 199 136

4. VAT receivable

VAT 37 586 907 80 498 545
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4. VAT receivable (continued)

All VAT returns have been submitted by the due date throughout the year.

5. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Cash on hand 1 426 1 200
Bank balances (Primary Bank Account) 471 756 592 665
Short-term deposits 32 694 478 81 905 108

33 167 660 82 498 973

Credit quality and impairment of cash at bank and short term deposits

The credit quality of cash at bank and short term deposits, excluding cash on hand that are neither past due nor impaired
can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings.

During the financial year the Municipality invested a total amount of R 150 000 000 in a VBS MUTUAL BANK - 6 month
Smart Fixed Deposit. The Minister of Finance, upon recommendation by the Registrar of Banks, decided to place VBS
Mutual Bank under curatorship with effect from Sunday 11 March 2018. The placement of VBS under curatorship was
objective evidence that the investment should be assessed for impaired.

Given the possibility that the full value of investments in VBS Mutual Bank would not be realised, subsequent measurement
of the investment was amended. Council decided to impairment the investment on 29 June 2018.

Impairment  - VBS - 6 months Smart Fixed Deposit 
Investment deposit 19 February 2018 100 000 000 -
Investment deposit 02 March 2018 50 000 000 -
Interest for the period 1 942 475 -
Interest received (1 247 671) -
Impairment of investment (150 694 804) -

Closing balance - -

Cash and cash equivalents pledged as collateral

None of the financial assets were pledged as collateral in the last year.
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5. Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

The municipality had the following bank accounts

`

Account number / description Bank statement balances Cash book balances
30 June 2018 30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2018 30 June 2017 30 June 2016

FNB - Primary Bank Account -
Cheque Account # 62419781374

664 930 592 665 11 703 068 664 930 592 665 11 703 068

FNB - 6 Months Fixed Account #
71230646229

4 500 000 4 500 000 4 500 000 4 664 232 4 500 000 4 500 000

FNB - Call Account #
62453114383

7 456 787 11 893 995 264 781 7 456 787 11 893 995 264 781

FNB - Call Account #
62453115224

9 149 310 20 003 082 417 759 9 149 310 20 003 082 417 759

FNB - Call Account #
62453121065

1 011 786 1 001 507 995 789 1 011 786 1 001 507 995 789

FNB - Call Account #
62453095666

3 3 677 839 3 3 677 839

FNB - Call Account #
62453121552

152 902 16 638 986 1 325 152 902 16 638 986 1 325

FNB - Call Account #
62453063986

436 329 431 897 429 431 436 329 431 897 429 431

FNB - Call Account #
62453006283

2 454 158 2 429 195 2 415 326 2 454 158 2 429 195 2 415 326

FNB - Call Account #
62453097472

29 944 29 640 2 681 544 29 944 29 640 2 681 544

FNB - Call Account #
62453117452

1 835 461 33 184 181 147 1 835 461 33 184 181 147

FNB - Call Account #
62453014103

32 138 2 889 274 2 333 692 32 138 2 889 274 2 333 692

FNB - Call Account #
62453118509

1 379 4 393 1 955 1 377 4 393 1 955

FNB - Call Account #
62464422056

10 907 10 795 309 048 10 907 10 795 309 048

FNB - Call Account #
62483135664

4 873 558 7 259 10 570 178 4 873 558 7 259 10 570 178

FNB - Call Account #
62522175878

314 930 22 031 308 1 638 241 314 930 22 031 308 1 638 241

FNB - Call Account #
62453058987

270 657 590 - 270 657 590 -

FNB - Call Account #
62453121065

- - 307 793 - - 307 793

FNB - Call Account #
62453062722

- - 38 750 - - 38 750

FNB - Call Account #
62453119028

- - 2 696 542 - - 2 696 542

FNB - Call Account #
62453116404

- - 38 687 - - 38 687

FNB - Call Account #
62453058987

- - 3 457 377 - - 3 457 377

VBS MUTUAL BANK - 6 months
Smart Fixed Deposit -
10087600002

150 000 000 - - - - -

Total 183 195 179 82 497 773 45 660 272 33 359 409 82 497 773 45 660 272
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6. Investment property

2018 2017

Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation

and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying value Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation

and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying value

Investment property 5 426 628 - 5 426 628 5 568 662 - 5 568 662

Reconciliation of investment property - Disclosure notes

Opening
balance

Fair value
adjustments

Total

Investment property 5 568 662 (142 034) 5 426 628

Reconciliation of investment property - 2017

Opening
balance

Fair value
adjustments

Total

Investment property 4 553 562 1 015 100 5 568 662

Pledged as security

None of the Investment properties were pledged as security.

Details of valuation

The effective date of the revaluations was Saturday, 30 June 2018. Revaluations were performed by independent valuers,
Corné Theron and Tinus Geyser. Professional Registration with the South African Council for the Property Valuers
Profession: 6831 and 2802. Both Theron and Geyser are not connected to the municipality and have recent experience in
location and category of the investment property being valued.

The valuation was based on the comparable sales method which consists of comparing the properties with other properties
which have recently been sold in the market and then making the necessary adjustments in order to determine the present
market value of the properties.

Amounts recognised in surplus and deficit for the year.

Rental revenue from investment property 942 373 942 373

40

244



DR RUTH S MOMPATI DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2018 2017

7. Property, plant and equipment

2018 2017

Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation

and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying value Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation

and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying value

Land 3 320 208 - 3 320 208 3 320 208 - 3 320 208
Buildings 81 312 083 (50 054 158) 31 257 925 81 312 083 (50 054 158) 31 257 925
Machinery and equipment 3 515 572 (2 549 444) 966 128 3 507 382 (2 135 414) 1 371 968
Office furniture 2 115 956 (1 785 371) 330 585 2 088 052 (1 455 960) 632 092
Official vehicles 21 360 917 (16 838 785) 4 522 132 21 093 760 (14 796 497) 6 297 263
Office equipment 983 289 (725 289) 258 000 939 664 (717 857) 221 807
Computer equipment 5 865 196 (4 044 753) 1 820 443 5 250 706 (2 951 518) 2 299 188
Infrastructure 1 928 548 656 (299 382 091) 1 629 166 565 1 818 797 169 (240 918 043) 1 577 879 126
Work in progress 698 480 058 - 698 480 058 475 629 926 - 475 629 926

Total 2 745 501 935 (375 379 891) 2 370 122 044 2 411 938 950 (313 029 447) 2 098 909 503
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7. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2018

Opening
balance

Additions Transfers Depreciation Total

Land 3 320 208 - - - 3 320 208
Buildings 31 257 925 - - - 31 257 925
Plant and machinery 1 371 968 - - (405 840) 966 128
Office furniture 632 092 - - (301 507) 330 585
Official vehicles 6 297 263 267 158 - (2 042 289) 4 522 132
Office equipment 221 807 121 798 - (85 605) 258 000
IT equipment 2 299 188 307 619 - (786 364) 1 820 443
Infrastructure 1 577 879 126 107 756 234 - (56 468 795) 1 629 166 565
Work in progress 475 629 926 307 905 912 (85 055 780) - 698 480 058

2 098 909 503 416 358 721 (85 055 780) (60 090 400) 2 370 122 044
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7. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2017

Opening
balance

Additions Disposals Transfers Revaluations Transfers to
expenditure

Depreciation Impairment
loss

Total

Land 3 120 468 - - - 199 740 - - - 3 320 208
Buildings 30 572 565 - - - 1 186 593 - (501 233) - 31 257 925
Plant and machinery 1 794 193 - - - - - (421 957) (268) 1 371 968
Office furniture 669 867 175 730 (1 337) - - - (211 666) (502) 632 092
Official vehicles 8 522 960 685 000 (350 228) - - - (2 560 469) - 6 297 263
Office equipment 278 643 54 840 (980) - - - (110 696) - 221 807
Computer equipment 2 263 012 1 175 165 (195 370) - - - (909 587) (34 032) 2 299 188
Infrastructure 1 578 105 924 - (6 270 759) 39 963 311 - - (33 671 678) (247 672) 1 577 879 126
Work in progress 212 364 811 356 437 470 - (39 963 311) - (53 209 044) - - 475 629 926

1 837 692 443 358 528 205 (6 818 674) - 1 386 333 (53 209 044) (38 387 286) (282 474) 2 098 909 503

Pledged as security

None of the Property, plant and equipment items were pledged as security.

Revaluations

Land and buildings are re-valued independently annually

The effective date of the revaluations was Saturday, 30 June 2018. Revaluations were performed by independent valuers,
Corné Theron and Tinus Geyser. Professional Registration with the South African Council for the Property Valuers
Profession: 6831 and 2802. Both Theron and Geyser are not connected to the municipality and have recent experience in
location and category of the investment property being valued.

The market value of the properties was determined according to the income capitalisation method. A comparison of the
market values of rentals of offices and carports in the Municipal area of Naledi, Ganyesa and Taung were done. 

.
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8. Intangible assets

2018 2017

Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
amortisation

and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying value Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
amortisation

and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying value

Patents, trademarks and other
rights

700 000 - 700 000 700 000 - 700 000

Computer software 1 281 409 (711 776) 569 633 1 281 409 (455 494) 825 915

Total 1 981 409 (711 776) 1 269 633 1 981 409 (455 494) 1 525 915

Reconciliation of intangible assets - Disclosure notes

Opening
balance

Amortisation Total

Patents, trademarks and other rights 700 000 - 700 000
Computer software 825 915 (256 282) 569 633

1 525 915 (256 282) 1 269 633

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2017

Opening
balance

Additions Amortisation Total

Patents, trademarks and other rights 700 000 - - 700 000
Computer software 964 705 102 766 (241 556) 825 915

1 664 705 102 766 (241 556) 1 525 915

Pledged as security

None of  the intangible assets were pledged as security.

Other information

Intangible assets with indefinite lives:

Patents, trademarks and other rights 700 000 700 000

Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati District Municipality as a Water Services Authority (WSA) acquired rights to Wentzel Dam
located in the Mamusa LM area where they have sole rights to extract water from the dam in order to satisfy their business
mandate of supplying water to the communities. This right will only cease to exist when the one of the following becomes
enforced; (1) the municipality ceases to exist or merges; (2)the District enters into a contract with one of the locals where
they will delegate their service. For this reason, management had concluded that the right will exist into the unforeseen or
undeterminable future.

9. Other financial liabilities

At amortised cost
DBSA Loan
Loan redemption date is 28 February 2027. Interest is only incurred on arrears
amounts at an interest rate of 12,75% per annum.
This is a loan that was inherited by the district municipality during the 2005
redemarcation process for the 2 local municipalities, namely Mamusa Local
Municipality and Lekwa - Teema Local Municipality, water and sanitation infrastructure
projects.

54 834 335 65 637 565
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9. Other financial liabilities (continued)

Non-current liabilities
At amortised cost 44 034 335 54 837 565

Current liabilities
At amortised cost 10 800 000 10 800 000

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Defaults and breaches

The Municipality did not default on any payment of its Long-term Liabilities. No terms for payment have been renegotiated
by the Municipality.

10. Payables from exchange transactions

Trade payables 22 815 504 141 472 176
Retention 34 775 827 18 219 562
Accrued leave pay 5 087 578 5 139 632
Accrued bonuses 2 731 049 2 796 964
Other Creditors 2 915 757 1 044 874

68 325 715 168 673 208

The Municipality did default on payment of its Creditors. However, no terms for payment have been renegotiated by the
Municipality.

The management of the Municipality is of the opinion that the carrying value of Creditors approximates their fair values.
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11. Employee benefit obligations

Post-employment medical aid liability (PEMA) and Long service awards liability (LSA)

Background

One Pangaea Financial (‘OPF’) performed the actuarial valuation of Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompatis Municipality’s post
employment health care liability at 30 June 2018 for the purpose of reporting under the Statement of Generally Recognised
Accounting Practice 25 (GRAP25) of the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) Directive 5.

This investigation is for financial reporting and is addressed only to the management of Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati
Municipality. it is addressed neither to the members nor the trustees of any medical scheme. This report is confidential to
the party to whom it is addressed.

PEMA - In accordance with the requirements of GRAP25, the Projected Unit Credit method has been applied. The
assumption underlying the funding method is that the employer’s post-employment medical scheme costs in respect of an
employee should be fully recognised by the time that the employee reaches fully accrued age. The valuation has been
made with reference Actuarial Society of South Africa (ASSA) guidelines, in particular, the Advisory Practice Note 207, and
is consistent with the requirements of GRAP25.

LSA -In accordance with the requirements of GRAP25, the Projected Unit Credit method has been applied. Accrued
liabilities are defined as the actuarial present value of all benefits expected to be paid in future based on service accrued to
the valuation date and awards projected to retirement date. In determining these liabilities, due allowance has been made
for future award increases. The valuation has been made with reference Actuarial Society of South Africa (ASSA)
guidelines, in particular, the Advisory Practice Note 207, and is consistent with the requirements of GRAP25.

Primary objective

The primary objective of this investigation is to quantify the present value of post employment healthcare liabilities and long
service awards in terms of GRAP 25 for employees:

a) Current continuation retirees; and
b) Future continuation retirees emanating from the current active and inactive medical scheme members employed by Dr
Ruth Segomotsi Mompati Municipality.

An expense for the 2017/18 financial year will be derived and a projected expense for the following year will be calculated
for budget purposes.

Nature of the liability - PEMA

The employer’s post-employment health care liability consists of a commitment to pay a portion of the pensioners’ post- -
employment medical scheme contributions. This liability is also generated in respect of dependants who are offered
continued membership of the medical scheme on the death of the primary pensioner.

The liability generated by the obligation to subsidise medical contribution in retirement, for qualifying retirees and their
eligible dependants, is classified as a defined benefit liability in terms of GRAP 25

Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati is committed to pay subsidiaries broadly as follows

a) Between 40% and 60% to current employees;
b) 70% to current continuation retirees
c) Widow (er)s and orphans of current employees are entitled to continue at 70%, the subsidy upon death of the pensioner.

The subsidy percentages were provided to us by Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati and are not verifiable.

Nature of the liability - LSA

GRAP25 states that the current service cost should be recognised as a periodic expense in operating profit and should be
matched to the benefit received during the working life of the employee.
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11. Employee benefit obligations (continued)

Dr Ruth offers bonuses for every 5 years of completed service from 5 years to 45 years.

Dr Ruth offers bonuses for every 5 years of completed service from 5 years to 45 years. Below we outline the benefits
awarded to qualifying employees:

Completed service (Years) Long Service Bonus Awards Determination of cash bonus value

10 10 days accumulative leave 10/250* x Annual Salary

15 20 days accumulative leave 20/250* x Annual Salary

20, 25, 30, 35, 40, 45 30 days accumulative leave 30/250* x Annual Salary

*A day of accumulated leave is worth 1/250 of the annual salary.

Long service accumulated leave must be taken within one year of receiving such leave or may be wholly or partially cashed.
Dr Ruth advised that in most cases, employees choose to exercise the option to wholly convert their accumulative leave
bonus days into cash.

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows:

Carrying value
Present value of the defined benefit obligation-wholly unfunded - PEMA (33 194 000) (32 434 000)
Present value of the defined benefit obligation-wholly unfunded - LSA (5 577 000) (5 103 000)

(38 771 000) (37 537 000)

Non-current liabilities (36 950 000) (36 419 000)
Current liabilities (1 821 000) (1 118 000)

(38 771 000) (37 537 000)

Balance sheet accrued liability and funding
Active employees - PEMA (17 050 000) (16 627 000)
Continuation pensioners - PEMA (16 144 000) (15 807 000)
Employer’s accrued liability - LSA (5 577 000) (5 103 000)
Fair value of plan assets - -

(38 771 000) (37 537 000)

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Opening balance 37 537 000 36 974 000
Benefits paid - PEMA (771 000) (773 000)
Benefits paid - LSA (347 000) (346 000)
Net expense recognised in the statement of financial performance 2 352 000 1 682 000

38 771 000 37 537 000

Net expense recognised in the statement of financial performance

Current service cost - PEMA 1 525 000 1 950 000
Current service cost - LSA 532 000 483 000
Interest cost - PEMA 3 256 000 3 015 000
Interest cost - LSA 441 000 406 000
Actuarial (gains) losses - PEMA (3 250 000) (4 020 000)
Actuarial (gains) losses - LSA (152 000) (152 000)

2 352 000 1 682 000
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11. Employee benefit obligations (continued)

Calculation of actuarial gains and losses

Actuarial (gains) losses – Obligation (3 402 000) (4 172 000)

(3 402 000) (4 172 000)

Analysis of the actuarial (gain)/loss - PEMA and LSA

Projected accrued liability as at the beginning of the year 37 537 000 36 974 000
(1) Service Cost 2 057 000 2 433 000
(2) Interest Cost 3 697 000 3 421 000
(3) Expected benefit payments (1 118 000) (1 119 000)
(4) Discount rate changes (412 000) (3 557 000)
(5) Participant changes/ staff changes (2 792 000) (212 000)
(6) Medical contribution increases 306 000 3 148 000
(6) Salary changes 38 000 4 000
(7) Miscellaneous (542 000) (3 555 000)

38 771 000 37 537 000

1.During the financial year Dr Ruth employees accrued an extra year of service and as a result the liability increased by R 2
057 000 (2017: R 2 433 000).

2. Interest cost over the valuation period results in an increase in the liability by R3 697 000 (2017: R 3 421 000).

3. PEMA - Expected benefit payments towards continuation pensioners currently being subsidised for medical contributions
for the year amounted to R 771 000 (2017: R 773 000).

3. LSA - Some employees attained milestones during the valuation period and this resulted in bonus payment of R347 000
(2017:R 346 000) which reduced the accrued LSA liability by the same margin.

4. PEMA - The net discount rate changed from 1.46% to 1.54% (2017: 0.85% to 1.46%) during the valuation period. The
increase in the net discount rate is inversely related to the accrued obligation. As a result the increase in the discount rate
resulted in a decrease to the accrued liability.

4. LSA - The net discount rate changed from 2.07% to 2.32% (2017: 1.27% to 2.07%) during the valuation period. The
accrued liability is inversely related to the net discount. As such the increase in the net discount resulted in a decrease in
the accrued liability.

5. The movements in number of participants/ staff employed resulted in a decrease to the accrued liability.

6. PEMA - Medical contribution increases resulted in an increase to the accrued liability.

6. LSA -The yearly salary increases anticipated resulted in a increase to the accrued liability.

7. The miscellaneous items in the data resulted in a decrease to the liability by R 542 000 (2017: R 3 555 000 ). Factors
that make up the miscellaneous items are changes to data from prior year and variations from demographic assumptions
(i.e. rates of withdrawal).
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11. Employee benefit obligations (continued)

Key assumptions used - PEMA

Assumptions used at the reporting date to determine the Post-employment medical aid liability: 

Consumer price inflation %6.63 %7.07
Discount rate used %9.79 %10.16
Health care cost inflation %8.13 %8.57
Net discount rate %1.54 %1.46
Normal retirement age 65 65
Fully accrued age (to take account for ill-health and early retirement decrements) 63 63
Continuation percentages - % of active employees, or their surviving dependants %90.00 %90.00
Mortality - active employees SA85-90 SA85-90
Mortality - pensioners PA (90)-2 PA (90)-2

Participants eligible for post employment medical aid subsidy:

The active employees active age was 40.67 years (2017: 41.70 years) with an average employer monthly contribution of R
3 126 (2017: R2 769). 

The continuation pensioners active age was 75.17 years (2017: 75.13 years) with an average employer monthly
contribution of R 3 299 (2017: R 3 753). 

The active employees were assumed to have one dependent, on retirement, in the form of a spouse, as per the marriage
assumption table.

The basis on which the net discount rate has been determined is as follow:

GRAP25 defines the determination of the investment return assumption to be used as the rate that can be determined by
reference to market yields (at the balance sheet date) on government bonds. The currency and term of the government
bonds should be consistent with the currency and estimated term of the obligation.

The methodology of setting the financial assumptions has been updated to be more duration specific. At the previous
valuation date, 30 June 2017 the duration of liabilities was 15.77 years. At this duration the discount rate determined by
using the Bond Exchange Zero Coupon Yield Curve as at 29 June 2018 is 9.79% per annum, and the yield on the inflation
linked bonds of a similar term was about 2.96% per annum, implying an underlying expectation of inflation of 6.63%% per
annum ([1 + 9.79%] / [1 + 2.96] - 1).

A healthcare cost inflation rate of 8.13% was assumed. This is 1.50% in excess of the expected inflation over the expected
term of the liability, consistent with the previous actuary.

It is the relative levels of the discount rate and healthcare inflation to one another that are important, rather than the nominal
values. Net discount factor of 1.54% per annum ([1 + 9.79%] / [1 + 8.13%] - 1) was assumed.

Demographic and decrement assumptions, is as follows:

The demographic and decrement assumptions were consistent in the previous and current valuation period.
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11. Employee benefit obligations (continued)

Key assumptions used - LSA

`

Discount rate %9.13 %8.95
CPI %5.66 %5.74
Salary increase rate %6.66 %6.74
Net Discount Rate %2.32 %2.07
Normal retirement age (years) 63 66
Mortality SA85-90 SA85-90

Employees eligible for long service bonus awards:

The Municipality had 203 (2017: 2013) eligible employees with a average annual salary of R 313 708 (2017:R 276 259).

Average age of the eligible employees was 40.5 years (2017: 41.5 years).

Average past service years of the eligible employees was 9.3 years (2017: 8.8 years).

The basis on which the net discount rate has been determined is as follow:

GRAP25 defines the determination of the investment return assumption to be used as the rate that can be determined by
reference to market yields (at the balance sheet date) on government bonds. The currency and term of the government
bonds should be consistent with the currency and estimated term of the obligation.

The methodology of setting the financial assumptions has been updated to be more duration specific. At the previous
valuation report, 30 June 2017 the duration of liabilities was 7.81 years. At this duration the discount rate determined by
using the Bond Exchange Zero Coupon Yield Curve as at 29 June 2018 is 9.13% per annum, and the yield on inflation
linked bonds of a similar term was about 2.81% per annum. This implies an underlying expectation of inflation of 5.66% per
annum ([1 + 9.13% - 0.5%] / [1 + 2.81%] - 1).

Assumption that salary inflation would exceed general inflation by 1.0% per annum, i.e. 6.66% per annum.

It is the relative levels of the discount rate and salary inflation to one another that are important, rather than the nominal
values. We have thus assumed a net discount factor of 2.32% per annum ([1 + 9.13%] / [1 + 6.66%] - 1).

Sensitivity analysis

The effect of a one percent increase and decrease in the medical inflation rate is as follows: 

`

One
percentage
point
decrease

One
percentage
point increase

Employer’s accrued liability - PEMA 28 406 000 39 237 000
Service cost - PEMA 1 251 000 2 050 000
Interest cost - PEMA 2 713 000 3 770 000

The effect of a one percent increase and decrease in the net discount rates is as follows:

`

One
percentage
point decrease

One
percentage
point increase

Employer’s accrued liability - LSA 6 019 000 5 187 000
Employer’s current service cost - LSA 594 000 499 000
Employer’s interest cost - LSA 474 000 506 000
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12. Unspent conditional grants and receipts

Unspent conditional grants and receipts comprises of:

Department of Sport 897 237 897 237
Department of Water Affairs & Forestry Grant (RBIG) 124 238 524 24 816 286
Expanded Public Works Incentive (EPWP) 567 485 36 045
Municipal Infrastructure Grant (MIG) 28 510 439 -
Rural Household Infrastructure Grant (RHIG) 418 418
Rural Roads Asset Management Systems Grant (RRAMS) 299 526 -
Vuna awards - Conditional Grant 710 710
Water Services Infrastructure Grant (WSIG) - 11 907 460

154 514 339 37 658 156

The nature and extent of government grants recognised in the annual financial statements and an indication of other forms
of government assistance from which the municipality has directly benefited; and

Unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies attaching to government assistance that has been recognised.

See note 18 for reconciliation of grants from National/Provincial Government.

These amounts are invested in a ring-fenced investment until utilised.

Investment of R 100 000 000 of funds received from Department of Water affairs and forestry (DWAF) for the Regional Bulk
Infrastructure Grant (RBIG) was invested in VBS mutual bank. These fund have been impaired and the unspent grant at
year end contains a portion of R  100 000 000 that is not cash backed.

Investment of R 29 000 000 of funds received for the MIG grant was invested in VBS mutual bank. These fund have been
impaired and the unspent grant contains a portion of R 29 000 000 that is not cash backed.

13. Revaluation reserve

Opening balance 9 825 736 8 439 403
Fair value gains: Land and buildings - 1 386 333

9 825 736 9 825 736

14. Accumulated surplus

Ring-fenced internal funds and reserves within accumulated surplus - Disclosure notes

Accumulated
surplus

Total

Opening balance 1 960 435 553 1 960 435 553
Surplus for the year 161 151 798 161 151 798

2 121 587 351 2 121 587 351

Ring-fenced internal funds and reserves within accumulated surplus - 2017

Accumulated
surplus

Total

Opening balance 1 688 308 668 1 688 308 668
Surplus for the year previously recognised 282 221 834 282 221 834
Prior period error (10 094 949) (10 094 949)

1 960 435 553 1 960 435 553
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15. Investment revenue

Interest revenue
Bank 709 242 254 173
Interest received - investments 14 360 670 13 941 804

15 069 912 14 195 977

16. Other income

Tender document fees 324 008 225 148
Insurance claims received 320 562 118 845

644 570 343 993

17. Rental of facilities and equipment

Premises
Premises 942 373 942 373

Included in the above rentals are operating lease rentals at straight-lined amounts of R 942 373 (2017: R 942 373) as well
as contingent rentals of R - (2017: R -).

The operating lease revenue relates to investment property, ERF 1853, portion of ERF 506 Vryburg, that is being leased to
the Department of Transport and Public Work for a 3 year period with a 10% yearly escalation.
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18. Government grants and subsidies

Operating grants

Equitable share 308 412 000 282 287 000
Expanded Public Works Incentive (EPWP) 4 310 560 2 236 955
Financial Management Grant (FMG) 1 250 000 1 249 990

313 972 560 285 773 945

Capital grants
Municipal Infrastructure Grant (MIG) 184 934 560 230 717 001
Department of Water Affairs & Forestry Grant (RBIG) 82 577 762 103 522 714
Rural Roads Asset Management Systems Grant (RRAMS) 2 139 474 2 290 000
Water Services Infrastructure Grant (WSIG) 89 893 460 65 792 540
Fire and Emergency Grant 1 668 563 -

361 213 819 402 322 255

675 186 379 688 096 200

Conditional and Unconditional

Included in above are the following grants and subsidies received:

Conditional grants received 366 774 379 405 809 200
Unconditional grants received 308 412 000 282 287 000

675 186 379 688 096 200

Equitable Share

The Municipality's Equitable Share allocation of the Local Government Sphere's share of revenue raised nationally.

No funds were withheld.

Municipal Systems Improvement Grant (MSIG)

To assist municipalities to perform their functions and stabilise institutional and governance systems as required in the
Municipal Systems Act and related local government legislation.

The Municipality did not submit business plans as required for the schedule 6, part B grant (allocations in-kind to
municipalities). The allocated amount of R1 637 000 as per the division of revenue bill was therefore not received by the
municipality for the 2017/2018 financial year. 

Expanded Public Works Incentive (EPWP)

Balance unspent at beginning of year 36 045 -
Current-year receipts 4 842 000 2 273 000
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (4 310 560) (2 236 955)

567 485 36 045

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 12).

To incentivise municipalities to expand work creation efforts through the use of labour intensive delivery methods in the
identified focus areas in compliance with the EPWP Guidelines.

Financial Management Grant (FMG)

Current-year receipts 1 250 000 1 250 000
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (1 250 000) (1 250 000)

- -
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18. Government grants and subsidies (continued)

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 12).

The Financial Management Grant is paid by National Treasury to municipalities to help implement the financial
reforms required by the Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA), 2003. The FMG Grant also pays for the cost of
the Financial Management Internship Programme (e.g. salary costs of the Financial Management Interns).

Municipal Infrastructure Grant (MIG)

Current-year receipts 213 445 000 230 717 000
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (184 934 561) (230 717 000)

28 510 439 -

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 12).

The Municipal Infrastructure Grant (MIG) was allocated for the construction of roads, basic sewerage and water
infrastructure as part of the upgrading of poor households, micro enterprises and social institutions; to provide for new,
rehabilitation and upgrading of municipal infrastructure.

The Municipality signed a memorandum of agreement with Mamusa Local Municipality. The period of the agreement was
from 15 November 2017 to 30 June 2018. The agreement stipulated that the remaining unspent MIG allocation of Mamusa
Local Municipality (R 8 322 000) is transferred by National treasury to Dr. Ruth S Mompati District Municipality. The District
municipality managed the expenditure and payments of existing infrastructure projects based on Mamusa Local
Municipality`s 2017/2018 Integrated Development Plan and MIG implementation plan.

Department of Water Affairs & Forestry (RBIG)

Balance unspent at beginning of year 24 816 286 -
Current-year receipts 182 000 000 128 339 000
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (82 577 762) (103 522 714)

124 238 524 24 816 286

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 12).

The purpose of the grant is to fund bulk connector and internal infrastructure for water services at a basic level of service.

Rural Roads Asset Management Systems Grant (RRAMS)

Current-year receipts 2 439 000 2 290 000
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (2 139 474) (2 290 000)

299 526 -

To assist rural district municipalities to set up rural Roads Asset Management Systems, and collect road, bridges and traffic
data on municipal road networks in line with the Road Infrastructure Strategic Framework for South Africa.

Rural Household Infrastructure Grant (RHIG)

Balance unspent at beginning of year 418 418

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 12).

Water Services Infrastructure Grant (WSIG)

Balance unspent at beginning of year 11 907 460 -
Current-year receipts 77 986 000 77 700 000
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18. Government grants and subsidies (continued)
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (89 893 460) (65 792 540)

- 11 907 460

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 12).

To develop new, refurbish, upgrade and replace ageing water and wastewater infrastructure of regional significance that
connects water resources to infrastructure serving extensive areas across municipal boundaries or large regional bulk
infrastructure serving numerous communities over a large area within a municipality. To pilot regional Water Conservation
and Water Demand Management (WC/WDM) projects or facilitate and contribute to the implementation of local WC/WDM
projects that will directly impact on bulk infrastructure requirements.

Department of Sport

Balance unspent at beginning of year 897 237 897 237

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 12).

Fire and Emergency Grant

Current-year receipts 1 668 563 -
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (1 668 563) -

- -

Vuna Awards - Conditional Grant

Balance unspent at beginning of year 710 710

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 12)

19. Revenue

Rental of facilities and equipment 942 373 942 373
Other income 644 570 343 993
Interest received 15 069 912 14 195 977
Government grants & subsidies 675 186 379 688 096 200
Other Income 12 642 1 533 617

691 855 876 705 112 160

The amount included in revenue arising from exchanges of goods or services
are as follows:
Rental of facilities and equipment 942 373 942 373
Other income 644 570 343 993
Interest received 15 069 912 14 195 977

16 656 855 15 482 343

The amount included in revenue arising from non-exchange transactions is as
follows:

Transfer revenue
Government grants & subsidies 675 186 379 688 096 200
Other Income 12 642 1 533 617

675 199 021 689 629 817
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20. Employee related costs

Basic 72 737 847 66 418 324
Bonus 4 844 426 4 862 873
Housing benefits and allowances 1 860 398 2 271 130
Leave pay provision charge 4 218 597 1 773 011
Long service awards 590 720 483 000
Medical aid contributions 7 377 357 6 835 614
Other allowances and subsidies 3 500 -
Overtime payments 1 663 043 3 138 850
Pension fund contributions 11 079 400 10 735 483
SDL and UIF contributions 1 411 080 1 298 025
Telephone - Officials 683 679 635 076
Travel and motor car allowances 13 073 394 12 896 847

119 543 441 111 348 233

Remuneration of the Municipal Manager

Annual Remuneration 405 839 876 281
Car Allowance 94 043 144 000
Housing allowance 96 855 282 457
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 55 575 172 795
Cellphone Allowance 13 512 20 119
Leave Pay 74 373 73 025

740 197 1 568 677

The decrease in the Remuneration package was due to the requirements of Government gazette No. 41173 issued on 10
October 2017 in order to comply with the upper limits of the total remuneration packages payable to municipal managers
and managers directly accountable to municipal manager.

The contract of the previous municipal manager expired on 31 July 2017. The current municipal manager, Mr. J Mononela
commenced on 1 December 2017. 

The position was vacant from 01 August 2017 to 30 November 2017.

Remuneration of the Chief Finance Officer

Annual Remuneration 711 754 803 032
Car Allowance 60 000 72 000
Housing allowance 197 511 219 457
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 171 073 190 956
Cellphone Allowance 9 490 11 239
Leave Pay 119 678 72 068
Bonus 94 900 65 408

1 364 406 1 434 160

The contract of the previous chief financial officer expired  on 31 April 2018. The position has been vacant since then.

Remuneration of Corporate Services Manager

Annual Remuneration 400 718 753 512
Car Allowance 30 000 120 000
Housing allowance 131 623 183 916
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 80 200 148 720
Cellphone Allowance 5 694 11 239
Leave Pay 96 219 62 794
Bonus 66 786 61 375

811 240 1 341 556
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20. Employee related costs (continued)

The contract of the previous corporate services manager expired  on 31 December 2017. The position has been vacant
since then.

Remuneration of Executive Support Manager

Annual Remuneration 790 837 743 548
Car Allowance 197 709 185 887
Housing allowance 218 130 207 515
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 62 535 55 107
Cellphone Allowance 11 388 11 239
Leave Pay 55 765 47 664
Bonus 98 855 60 563

1 435 219 1 311 523

Remuneration of Chief Audit Executive

Annual Remuneration 790 837 743 547
Car Allowance 73 913 73 913
Housing allowance 294 981 273 392
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 171 626 160 492
Cellphone Allowance 6 948 4 649
Other 50 696 -

1 389 001 1 255 993

Remuneration of Engineering Services Manager

Annual Remuneration 395 419 743 547
Car Allowance 41 159 77 395
Housing allowance 130 333 244 130
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 99 480 187 272
Cellphone Allowance 5 694 11 239
Leave Pay 61 009 66 730

733 094 1 330 313

The contract of the previous engineering services manager expired  on 31 December 2017. The position has been vacant
since then.

Remuneration of Economic Development, Tourism & Agricultural Manager

Annual Remuneration 433 099 814 401
Car Allowance 84 000 168 000
Housing allowance 104 335 181 890
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 108 953 207 195
Cellphone Allowance 5 694 9 310
Leave Pay 112 785 49 848

848 866 1 430 644

The contract of the previous economic development, tourism & agricultural manager expired  on 31 December 2017. The
position has been vacant since then.

Remuneration of Community Services Manager

Annual Remuneration 790 837 743 547
Car Allowance 120 000 84 000
Housing allowance 156 959 176 236
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20. Employee related costs (continued)
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 198 011 186 314
Cellphone Allowance 11 388 11 239
Leave Pay 50 696 47 664
Bonus 65 903 60 563

1 393 794 1 309 563

21. Remuneration of councillors

Councillors - Refer to Related Parties note for details 7 104 170 6 400 125

In-kind benefits

The Mayor and Speaker have the use of Council owned vehicles for official duties.

The Mayor and Speaker both have two full-time VIP bodyguards/drivers.

22. Depreciation and amortisation

Property plant and equipment 62 063 952 38 387 285
Intangible assets 256 282 241 557

62 320 234 38 628 842

23. Impairment of assets

Impairments
Investments
VBS investment impaired due to uncertainty if the investment made and interest
accrued will be recovered. The recoverable amount of the asset was based on its
present value of expected future cashflows. Due to the uncertainty surrounding the
recoverability of the money invested, no future cashflows are expected.

150 694 804 -

Property, plant and equipment
Impairment of property plant and equipment that was damaged, stolen or lost.

- 282 473

150 694 804 282 473

24. Finance costs

Interest paid 36 959 15 125
Interest on Actuarial Valuations 3 697 000 3 421 000

3 733 959 3 436 125

Refer to note 11 for details of interest on actuarial valuations.

25. Lease rentals on operating lease

Premises
Contractual amounts 2 909 119 2 903 758

The rentals above are lease rentals for two properties

The Municipal office, situated at 50 Market Street, and storage space in Market Street leased from Charmakor (Pty) Ltd.

The Municipal office, situated at 50 Market Street is leased from Markork Investment Limited for a period of 3 years with an
escalation of 8% over which the lease expense was straightlined. 

The lease contracted commenced on 1 July 2015 and ended on 30 June 2018. The lessee had the option to extend the lease
on a year to year basis. The municipality exercised the option and will lease the premises from 1 July 2018 on a yearly basis.
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25. Lease rentals on operating lease (continued)

The storage space in Market Street is leased on a yearly basis.

26. Debt impairment

Movement in Impairment Provision 9 143 533 (964 437)
Employee Debtors impaired - 1 105 703

9 143 533 141 266

27. Bulk purchases

Water 106 163 798 139 835 180

28. Contracted services

Outsourced Services
Professional Staff 13 000 351 6 592 761
Security Services 1 116 284 1 578 131

Consultants and Professional Services
Business and Advisory 3 097 610 3 472 560
Infrastructure and Planning 12 870 040 10 993 209

Contractors
Maintenance of Buildings and Facilities 436 856 -

30 521 141 22 636 661

29. Grants and subsidies paid

Other subsidies
Grants paid to local municipalities 18 851 976 77 529 001
Grants paid to LED projects 472 382 1 526 099

19 324 358 79 055 100

59

263



DR RUTH S MOMPATI DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2018 2017

30. General expenses

Advertising 719 407 502 067
Auditors remuneration 3 096 730 4 033 186
Bacterial testing and analysis - 74 193
Bank charges 43 154 52 026
Books and publications - 2 109
Bursaries for Officials 125 439 273 126
Cleaning materials and consumables 123 642 84 854
Community functions 683 094 838 291
Conferences and seminars 263 211 286 863
Donations 130 805 29 605
Electricity 285 718 707 910
Employee assistance program 120 625 46 709
Entertainment allowance: Mayor and Councillors - 1 499
Fuel and oil 898 854 1 109 904
Hire 24 339 178 988
Insurance 548 406 666 814
Kitchen ware and cutlery 986 167
Legal Fees 1 047 265 1 355 846
License fees 61 740 63 731
Mayoral Inauguration - 193 761
Membership fees: Societies (49 143) 128 008
Postage and courier 1 102 4 154
Printing and stationery 1 092 057 862 511
Promotions and sponsorships 506 852 838 605
Property rates 142 735 173 160
Protective clothing 318 795 16 560
Refreshment and meals 468 958 581 612
Rental equipment 931 941 1 011 596
Repairs and maintenance (15 845) 3 141 041
Sanitary and refuse 37 415 109 310
Sitting allowance 210 000 338 000
Small tools and equipment 25 888 5 474
Software expenses 1 117 719 634 869
Special Projects 720 147 514 988
Sundry expenses 298 1 436
Telephone and data costs 1 239 406 1 441 983
Training 685 017 360 667
Travel and subsistance: Officials 6 407 011 5 413 021
Water 527 719 19 730

22 541 487 26 098 374

Refer to note 43 - Repairs and maintenance for more detail.

31. Loss on disposal of assets and liabilities

Gains or losses arising on the disposal of property, plant and equipment - (6 725 801)

32. Fair value adjustments

Investment property (142 034) 1 015 100
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33. Cash generated from operations

Surplus 161 151 798 272 126 886
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 62 284 234 38 628 843
Gain on sale of assets and liabilities - 6 725 801
Transfers from WIP to expenditure - 53 209 044
Fair value adjustments 142 034 (1 015 100)
Impairment deficit 150 694 804 282 473
Debt impairment 9 143 533 141 266
Movements in retirement benefit assets and liabilities 1 234 000 563 000
Changes in working capital:
Other receivables from non-exchange transactions 1 552 498 (7 296 940)
Prepayments - 10 241 893
Operating lease receivable 20 641 (66 905)
Payables from exchange transactions (100 347 491) 19 591 109
VAT 42 911 638 (22 984 284)
Unspent conditional grants and receipts 116 856 183 36 759 791

445 643 872 406 906 877
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34. Contingent Liabilities

The following litigation are in the process against the municipality relating to disputes:

2018

1. LOHAN CIVIL (PTY) LTD & 2 OTHERS // DR RUTH MOMPATI DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY - NORTH WEST DIVISION;
MAFIKENG - CASE NO: UM08/2018KP
The plaintiff instituted legal proceedings against the Municipality on 21/06/2018 for review of the the appointment of
Bigacon on Bid BDM2007-028D- Bloemhof water treatment works to Olievenfontein elevated tank and pump station. The
matter is ongoing before the court and it is being defended. Legal cost to defend the matter to date amounts to R 245 043
and R 500 000 is the further costs estimated for finalisation of the matter at the High Court in Mahikeng.The municipality is
defending the case as they are confident that SCM processes were followed correctly. Applicant seeks an order to set aside
the award of the tender to Bigacon and to be award the same tender.

2017

1. G & HG SILVER BLUE CONSTRUCTION JV

This Joint Venture instituted legal proceedings during the 2011/2012 financial year against the municipality for payment of
an amount of R15 409 362 allegedly being due to them in respect of Bid nr BDM2007-013B and the termination of the Joint
Venture's services in respect thereof. The plaintiff has not taken any initiative in quite a while and the municipal legal
representative is awaiting a notice of set down. The delay in the proceeding is due to the death of the plaintiff's lawyer. The
case has been dormant at the North West High Court , the municipality has requested their attorneys to engage the
applicant with a view to remove the matter from the court's roll.

2. LOHAN CIVIL (PTY) LTD & 2 OTHERS // DR RUTH MOMPATI DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY - NORTH WEST DIVISION;
MAFIKENG - CASE NO: UM08/2018KP

The plaintiff instituted legal proceedings against the Municipality on 21/06/2018 for review of the the appointment of
Bigacon on Bid BDM2007-028D- Bloemhof water treatment works to Olievenfontein elevated tank and pump station. The
matter is ongoing before the court and it is being defended. Legal cost to defend the matter to date amounts to R 245 043
and R 500 000 is the further costs estimated for finalisation of the matter at the High Court in Mahikeng.The municipality is
defending the case as they are confident that SCM processes were followed correctly. Applicant seeks an order to set aside
the award of the tender to Bigacon and to be award the same tender.

3. LOHAN CIVIL (PTY) LTD & ANOTHER // DR RUTH MOMPATI DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY - NORTH WEST DIVISION;
MAFIKENG - CASE NO: UM82/2018

The applicant initiated a civil litigation claim on 21/06/2018 against  the Municipality requesting the Municipality to avail
records on the process followed to appoint Lesedi Civil with the intention to review the appointment on Bid RDM2014-034G
- Taung bulk water supply to Southern Eastern Village: Volume Reservoirs phase 2E. The matter was heard on the 28th
June 2018 in court at Mahikeng. The applicant withdrew the matter with agreement to pay the respondent's costs on party
to party scale. R 50 183 costs already incurred by the Municipality in this matter and to be incurred in due course is R27
036. Applicant is seeking an  order to be provided with documents.

4.LOHAN CIVIL (PTY) LTD / RAUBEX INFRA (PTY) LTD/ BATHO- BOTLHE GENERAL CONSTRUCTION CC JV // DR
RUTH MOMPATI DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY - NORTH WEST DIVISION; MAFIKENG - CASE NO: UM83/2018

The applicant  took the Municipality to court requesting the Municipality to avail records on the process followed to appoint
Bigacon on the Bid BDM2007-028D- Bloemhof water treatment works to Olievenfontein elevated tank and pump station.
The matter was heard on the 20th June 2018 in Mafikeng and the applicant withdrew the application, with an agreement to
pay the Applicant's Legal occasioned by the very application on party to party scale. The attorneys of the municipality is still
waiting for their bill of costs. R 119 901 costs incurred by the Municipality in this matter. Applicant was seeking an order to
be provided with documents.
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35. Unauthorised expenditure

Unauthorised expenditure 85 063 612 43 028 362
Add: Unauthorised Expenditure - current year 163 661 349 42 035 250
Less: Amounts written off (42 463 347) -

206 261 614 85 063 612

No investigation have been conducted during the current or previous years for unauthorised expenditure.

During the 2017/2018 financial year a council resolution was taken to write-off R 42 463 347 as recommended in the MPAC
oversight report tabled. The amounts relates to 2015/2016 irregular expenditure that was audited.

The main reason for current year unauthorised expenditure was due to the impairment of the VBS investment of R150 694
804. The impairment was not budgeted for and included in final adjusted budget. 

36. Irregular expenditure

Opening balance 497 360 787 200 092 166
Add: Irregular Expenditure - current year 381 472 554 302 484 889
Less: Prior period correction of duplicate items included - Refer to Prior period error
note 49

- (5 216 268)

878 833 341 497 360 787

Details of irregular expenditure (Cumulative Balance)
Tax Clearance 2 743 579
Adverts 5 399 344
Roster 213 440 113
Quotations 48 803 311
Central Supplier Database (CSD) 34 697 319
Sec 21(d) - Above R10 Million Non - Compliance 229 108 600
Councillor Remuneration 854 190
Trade Receivables written off 1 105 703
Declaration of interest 498 016
Weakness in competitive bidding/ evaluation 276 740 306
Construction Industry Development Board Act
(CIDB)

65 442 860

878 833 341

No investigation have been conducted during the current or previous years for irregular expenditure.

37. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Opening balance 140 053 103 128
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure current year 36 959 36 925

Balance carried forward 177 012 140 053

No investigation have been conducted during the current or previous years for fruitless and wasteful expenditure.

The fruitless and wasteful expenditure relates to interest incurred on overdue accounts.

38. Going concern

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This
basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of
liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

39. Events after the reporting date

There were no events after reporting period date.
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40. Commitments

Authorised capital expenditure

Already contracted for but not provided for
 Property, plant and equipment 915 045 335 514 529 176

Not yet contracted for and authorised by accounting officer
 Property, plant and equipment 14 796 578 14 796 578

Total capital commitments
Already contracted for but not provided for 915 045 335 514 529 176
Not yet contracted for and authorised by accounting officer 14 796 578 14 796 578

929 841 913 529 325 754

Operating leases - as lessee (expense)

Minimum lease payments due
 - within one year 3 385 728 3 134 933

The operating lease between the District Municipality (lessee) and the Markok Investments (Pty) Ltd (lessor) had a lease
period being from 1 July 2015 to 30 June 2018. As this lease was for 3 years, the expense was straightlined over the period
which resulted in an operating lease liability. At the end of the lease term, the contract was renewed for one financial year,
being 01 July 2018 to 30 June 2019. No contractual obligations beyond the financial year is applicable. No contingent rent
is payable.

Operating leases - as lessor (income)

Minimum lease payments due
 - within one year 775 109 963 014
 - in second to fifth year inclusive - 775 109

775 109 1 738 123

The operating lease between the District Municipality (lessor) and the Department of Transport and Public Works (lessee)
has a lease period being from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2019. As this lease is for 3 years, the income was straightlined over
the period which resulted in an operating lease asset being created. The lease payments are due for 9 months after  the
current financial year end. No contingent rent is receivable.
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41. Risk management

Financial risk management

The municipality’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest
rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The municipality's Finance department provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic and international
financial markets, monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the municipality through internal
risk reports which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include market risk (including currency,
fair value interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk.

The Budget and Treasury Office monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations through internal
policies and procedures. These risks include interest rate risk, credit risks and liquidity risk. Risk management policies and
systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes to market conditions and the municipality's activities, and compliance with
policies and procedures is reviewed by the internal auditors on a continuous basis, and annually by external auditors. The
municipality does not enter into or trade financial instruments for speculative purposes.

Internal audit, responsible for initiating a control framework and monitoring and responding to potential risk, reports
periodically to the municipality's audit committee, an independent body that monitors the effectiveness of the internal audit
function.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity Risk is the risk that the municipality will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its Financial
Liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The municipality's approach to managing liquidity is
to ensure, as far as is possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal
and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the municipality's reputation.

Liquidity risk is managed by ensuring that all assets are reinvested at maturity at competitive interest rates in relation to
cash flow requirements. Liabilities are managed by ensuring that all contractual payments are met on a timeous basis and,
if required, additional new arrangements are established at competitive rates to ensure that cash flow requirements are
met. 

Credit risk

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and trade debtors. The
municipality only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-
party.

Trade receivables comprise a widespread customer base. Management evaluated credit risk relating to customers on an
ongoing basis. If customers are independently rated, these ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is no independent rating,
risk control assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience and other
factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external ratings in accordance with limits set by the board.

Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows:

`

Financial instrument 2018 2017
Primary Bank Account - FNB 471 756 592 665
Investment Call Accounts  - FNB 32 694 478 81 905 108
Cash on hand 1 426 1 200
Receivables from non-exchange transactions 217 275 10 913 305

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit
ratings (if available) or to historical information about counterparty default rates.

Market risk
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41. Risk management (continued)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is defined as the risk that the fair value or future cash flows associated with a financial instrument will
fluctuate in amount as a result of market interest changes. The entity's policy is to minimise interest rate cash flow risk
exposures on long-term financing. Longer term borrowings are therefore usually at fixed rates. The entity's exposures to
interest rates on financial assets and financial liabilities are detailed below.

At year-end, financial instruments exposed to interest rate risk were as follows:
- Call and notice deposits
- Development Bank of Southern Africa loans.
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42. Related parties

`

Relationships
Accounting Officer Mr. Z.E.L. Tshetlho (Accounting Officer) - 01 July

2016 - 31 July 2017
Mrs. E. Moncho (Accounting Officer - Acting
Municipal Manager) - From 01 August 2017 to 30
November 2017
Mr. J Mononela (Accounting Officer) - 01 December
2017 to date

Chief Financial Officer Ms. S.A.S Phatudi (Chief Financial Officer) - 30 April
2017 to 30 April 2018
Ms. D.L. Motshelabola (Acting Chief Financial Officer)
- 1 May 2018 to date

Members of key management Mrs. M. Makhonofane (Senior Manager: Economic
Development & Tourism) - 01 July 2017 - 31
December 2017
Mrs. A.K. Moheta ( Acting Senior Manager: Economic
Development & Tourism) - 01 January 2018 to date
Mrs. E. Mogwera (Acting Senior Manager: Corporate
Services) - 01 January 2018 to date
Mrs. D. Dambuza (Senior Manager: Corporate
Services) - 01 July 2017 - 31 December 2017
Mr. F. Buys (Senior Manager: Internal Auditor)
Mrs. E. Moncho (Senior Manager: Executive Support)
Mrs Koketso Maje (Acting Senior Manager: Executive
Support)
Mr. W. Jood (Senior Manager: Engineering Services)
Mrs. A.K. Moheta ( Acting Senior Manager:
Engineering Services) - 01 January 2018 to date
Mr. V. Tlhabanelo (Senior Manager: Community
Services)
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42. Related parties (continued)

Remuneration of Councillors

Council Members

2018

Basic salary Travel
Allowance

Housing
Allowance

Telephone
Allowance

Pension,Medi
cal Aid & SDL

Sitting
Allowance

Total

Name
Cllr B.L. Mahlangu - Executive Mayor 475 653 118 913 126 841 42 900 76 189 - 840 496
Cllr L.V. Maogwe - Speaker 380 523 95 131 103 295 42 900 60 525 - 682 374
Cllr K.L. Mamapula - MMC: Economic Development, Tourism & Agriculture 206 327 51 582 85 970 - 3 653 - 347 532
Cllr V.L. Molefe - MMC: Budget and Treasury 206 327 51 582 85 970 - 3 479 - 347 358
Cllr M.K.I. Olifant - MMC: Planning & Development 206 327 51 582 85 970 - 3 376 - 347 255
Cllr O.R. Modise - MMC: Community Services 206 327 51 582 85 970 - 3 648 - 347 527
Cllr B. Setlhabetsi - MMC: Corporate Services 356 740 89 185 77 851 42 900 75 198 - 641 874
Cllr G.D. Kgabo - MMC: Engineering and Technical Services 356 740 89 185 148 642 42 900 6 405 - 643 872
Cllr CP Herbst - - - - 115 9 180 9 295
Cllr DJ Molapo 150 413 37 603 62 672 42 900 2 941 - 296 529
Cllr OJ Balebanye - - - - 253 15 242 15 495
Cllr DA Itumeleng - - - - 407 20 168 20 575
Cllr MV Mosinkiemang - - - - 217 15 242 15 459
Cllr SD Mothibedi - - - - 289 13 086 13 375
Cllr TP Sebe - - - - 337 16 088 16 425
Cllr T Tlhaganyane - - - - 101 9 122 9 223
Cllr JA Adonis - - - - 507 30 426 30 933
Cllr AN Bareng - - - - 216 19 206 19 422
Cllr ME Keetile 150 413 37 603 16 602 42 900 46 857 - 294 375
Cllr P Maleke 150 413 37 603 62 672 42 900 3 118 - 296 706
Cllr MM Mkandawira 150 413 37 603 40 110 42 900 24 331 - 295 357
Cllr ETL Mocumi 150 413 37 603 41 999 42 900 22 479 - 295 394
Cllr SDJ Strydom 150 413 37 603 56 375 42 900 9 061 - 296 352
Cllr KD Tshite 150 413 37 603 62 672 42 900 3 081 - 296 669
Cllr BR Bareng 13 842 3 460 5 767 - 345 6 734 30 148
Cllr MM Diphikwe 13 383 3 346 5 576 - 511 962 23 778
Cllr TM Lenkopane 13 842 3 460 5 767 - 295 - 23 364
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42. Related parties (continued)
Cllr LC Loabile 13 842 3 460 5 767 - 417 - 23 486
Cllr E Van Biljon 9 573 2 393 3 980 - 187 - 16 133
Cllr MW Moseswa 9 573 2 393 3 989 - 533 - 16 488
Cllr K.G. Sereko (Appointed 01 October 2017) 112 632 28 157 46 930 31 800 2 173 - 221 692
Cllr O.P. Moirwagale - Chair: Municipal Public Accounts Committee
(Resigned 31 August 2017) 

30 495 7 624 12 706 4 400 537 - 55 762

Cllr C.E. Tladinyane (Appointed 17 October 2017) 105 356 26 339 43 898 28 400 2 805 - 206 798
Cllr MM Mokomele-Mothibi (Deceased 28 September 2017) 35 643 8 911 14 851 6 600 642 - 66 647

3 806 036 951 506 1 292 842 543 100 355 228 155 456 7 104 168

2017

Basic salary Travel
Allowance

Housing
Allowance

Telephone
Allowance

Pension,Medi
cal Aid & SDL

Sitting
Allowance

Total

Name
Cllr B.L. Mahlangu - Executive Mayor (Appointed 10 August 2016) 418 130 94 752 112 438 22 161 51 412 - 698 893
Cllr L.V. Maogwe - Speaker (Appointed 10 August 2016) 332 854 75 801 114 815 22 161 16 940 - 562 571
Cllr K.L. Mamapula - MMC: Economic Development, Tourism & Agriculture
(Appointed 10 August 2016)

148 901 37 225 62 051 - 2 472 - 250 649

Cllr V.L. Molefe - MMC: Budget and Treasury (Appointed 10 August 2016) 148 901 37 225 62 042 - 2 511 - 250 679
Cllr M.K.I. Olifant - MMC: Planning & Development (Appointed 10 August
2016)

148 901 37 225 62 051 - 2 432 - 250 609

Cllr O.R. Modise - MMC: Community Services (Appointed 10 August 2016) 148 901 37 225 62 051 - 2 542 - 250 719
Cllr B. Setlhabetsi - MMC: Corporate Services (Appointed 10 August 2016) 280 668 67 005 71 102 22 161 47 187 - 488 123
Cllr G.D. Kgabo - MMC: Engineering and Technical Services (Appointed
10 August 2016)

280 668 67 005 113 965 22 161 4 704 - 488 503

Cllr O.P. Moirwagale - Chair: Municipal Public Accounts Committee
(Appointed 10 August 2016)

162 866 37 147 63 950 22 161 2 787 - 288 911

Cllr CP Herbst 4 363 1 091 1 163 - 785 13 736 21 138
Cllr DJ Molapo ( Appointed 10 August 2016) 131 301 29 663 49 439 23 900 2 383 962 237 648
Cllr OJ Balebanye (Appointed 10 August 2016) - - - - 24 3 848 3 872
Cllr DA Itumeleng (Appointed 10 August 2016) - - - - 54 4 810 4 864
Cllr MM Mokomele-Mothibi (Appointed 10 August 2016) 131 301 29 663 49 439 23 900 2 294 - 236 597
Cllr MV Mosinkiemang (Appointed 10 August 2016) - - - - 127 12 506 12 633
Cllr SD Mothibedi (Appointed 10 August 2016) - - - - 151 13 736 13 887
Cllr TP Sebe (Appointed 10 August 2016) - - - - 122 13 736 13 858
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42. Related parties (continued)
Cllr T Tlhaganyane (Appointed 10 August 2016) - - - - 142 13 736 13 878
Cllr JA Adonis - - - - 229 24 050 24 279
Cllr AN Bareng (Appointed 10 August 2016) - - - - 53 7 700 7 753
Cllr ME Keetile (Appointed 10 August 2016) 131 301 29 663 44 076 23 900 7 586 - 236 526
Cllr P Maleke (Appointed 10 August 2016) 131 301 29 663 49 439 23 900 2 374 - 236 677
Cllr MM Mkandawira (Appointed 10 August 2016) 131 301 29 663 35 074 23 900 16 954 - 236 892
Cllr ETL Mocumi (Appointed 10 August 2016) 131 301 29 663 35 074 23 900 16 874 - 236 812
Cllr SDJ Strydom (Appointed 10 August 2016) 131 301 29 663 49 439 24 200 2 287 - 236 890
Cllr KD Tshite (Appointed 10 August 2016) 131 301 29 663 49 439 23 900 2 354 - 236 657
Cllr BR Bareng (Appointed 10 August 2016) 11 674 2 919 4 864 - 209 - 19 666
Cllr MM Diphikwe (Appointed 10 August 2016) 11 674 2 919 4 864 - 229 - 19 686
Cllr TM Lenkopane (Appointed 10 August 2016) 11 674 2 919 4 864 - 199 - 19 656
Cllr LC Loabile (Appointed 10 August 2016) 13 085 3 271 5 609 - 288 962 23 215
Cllr E Van Biljon (Appointed 10 August 2016) 7 387 1 847 3 078 12 258 242 - 24 812
Cllr MW Moseswa (Appointed 10 August 2016) 8 074 2 019 3 364 - 201 - 13 658
Cllr C.E. Tladinyane - Executive Mayor (Resigned 09 August 2016) 48 904 12 226 13 041 4 569 8 031 - 86 771
Cllr N.W. Skalk - Speaker (Resigned 09 August 2016) 39 123 9 781 8 575 3 149 9 310 - 69 938
Cllr M.S. Montshiwagae - MMC: Economic Development, Tourism &
Agriculture (Resigned 09 August 2016)

36 678 9 170 6 272 1 413 10 589 - 64 122

Cllr M.K. Mojanaga - MMC: Budget and Treasury (Resigned 09 August
2016)

36 678 9 170 6 272 1 413 10 571 - 64 104

Cllr P. Kgosieng - MMC: Planning & Development (Resigned 09 August
2016)

36 678 9 170 7 923 4 569 8 925 - 67 265

Cllr M.S. Moyakhe - MMC: Community Services (Resigned 09 August
2016)

36 678 9 170 6 272 1 413 10 571 - 64 104

Cllr K. Sereko - MMC: Corporate Services (Resigned 09 August 2016) 36 678 9 170 7 923 9 099 9 030 - 71 900
Cllr S.F. Kgodumo - MMC: Engineering and Technical Services (Resigned
09 August 2016)

36 678 9 170 8 130 1 440 7 751 - 63 169

Cllr O.V. Mongale - Chair: Municipal Public Accounts Committee 6 961 - - 491 195 - 7 647
Cllr LD Motlapele 3 848 - - - 29 - 3 877
Cllr MP Ditshakane (Resigned 09 August 2016) - - - - 128 13 736 13 864
Cllr JL Halenyane (Resigned 09 August 2016) - - - - 19 3 848 3 867
Cllr MS Kanyane (Resigned 09 August 2016) - - - - 79 5 772 5 851
Cllr R Mokoto (Resigned 09 August 2016) - - - - 29 5 772 5 801
Cllr KP Molifi (Resigned 09 August 2016) - - - - 29 5 772 5 801
Cllr JG Brand (Resigned 09 August 2016) 15 330 3 833 6 387 4 400 292 - 30 242
Cllr MJ Nchochoba (Resigned 09 August 2016) - - - - 10 1 924 1 934
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42. Related parties (continued)
Cllr KD Baepi (Resigned 09 August 2016) 1 411 353 384 - 282 - 2 430
Cllr LE Gaobepe-Boemo (Resigned 09 August 2016) 1 411 353 587 - 23 - 2 374
Cllr MP Letebele (Resigned 09 August 2016) 15 330 3 833 3 704 4 400 3 128 - 30 395
Cllr KV Mokhuane (Resigned 09 August 2016) 15 330 3 833 6 387 4 400 371 5 772 36 093
Cllr GK Nthebotsenyane (Resigned 09 August 2016) 1 411 353 333 - 358 2 886 5 341
Cllr MG Tong (Resigned 09 August 2016) 15 330 3 833 3 627 4 400 3 192 - 30 382
Cllr IM Snyman (Resigned 09 August 2016) 976 244 406 - 16 - 1 642

3 574 562 838 561 1 199 913 359 719 272 106 155 264 6 400 125

43. Repairs and Maintenance

Buildings 209 360 240 144
Official Vehicles 864 323 946 110
Computer equipment 22 946 1 831 789
Machinery and equipment 61 616 120 108
Office Equipment 1 479 2 891

1 159 724 3 141 042
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44. Awards made to family members of person in service of state - not disclosed in the annual financial
statements

Employee
Name

Employee
Position

Supplier Name Name of Close
family Member

Relations to
employee

Award date Award amount
R

Mr OT Mothus Snr Finance
Controller:
Expenditure

Remoratile
Omontle
Business
Enterprise (Pty)
Ltd

Portia Lorato
Mothusi

Spouse 15/08/2017 1 980

Mr OT Mothus Snr Finance
Controller:
Expenditure

Remoratile
Omontle
Business
Enterprise (Pty)
Ltd

Portia Lorato
Mothusi

Spouse 30/08/2017 1 980

Mr OT Mothus Snr Finance
Controller:
Expenditure

Remoratile
Omontle
Business
Enterprise (Pty)
Ltd

Portia Lorato
Mothusi

Spouse 18/10/2017 4 000

Rewards made to the spouse of Mr OT Mothusi amounted to R 7 960 (2017: R 3 000).

45. Financial instruments disclosure

Categories of financial instruments

Disclosure notes

Financial assets

At amortised
cost

Total

Other receivables from non-exchange transactions 9 500 132 9 500 132
Cash and cash equivalents 33 168 160 33 168 160

42 668 292 42 668 292

Financial liabilities

At amortised
cost

Total

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions 88 325 715 88 325 715
Unspent conditional grants and receipts 188 172 429 188 172 429
Other financial liabilities - DBSA Loan 54 834 335 54 834 335

331 332 479 331 332 479

2017

Financial assets

At amortised
cost

Total

Other receivables from non-exchange transactions 10 913 305 10 913 305
Cash and cash equivalents 82 498 973 82 498 973

93 412 278 93 412 278

Financial liabilities
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. Financial instruments disclosure (continued)
At amortised

cost
Total

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions 154 733 651 154 733 651
Unspent conditional grants and receipts 37 658 156 37 658 156
Other financial liabilities - DBSA Loan 65 633 888 65 633 888

258 025 695 258 025 695

46. Non - compliance with MFMA

The following instances of non-compliance to MFMA were done by the district municipality. 

Money owed by the municipality was not always paid with 30 days, as required by section 65(2) of the MFMA.

Effective steps were not taken to prevent irregular expenditure amounting to R 381 472 554 as disclosed on note 36 to the
annual financial statements, as required by section 62(1)(d) of the MFMA.

Awards were made to providers who were in the service of other state institution or whose directors/principal shareholders
were in the service of other state institutions, in contravention of MFMA 112(j) and SCM regulation 44. Similar awards were
identified in the previous year and no effective steps were taken to prevent or combat the abuse of the SCM process, as
required by SCM regulation 38(1).

The performance of some of the contractors or providers was not monitored on a monthly basis, as required by section
116(2)(b) of the MFMA.

The contract performance and monitoring measures and methods were insufficient to ensure effective contract
management, in contravention of section 116(2)(c) of the MFMA.

47. Additional disclosure in terms of Municipal Finance Management Act

Contributions to organised local government - SALGA

Current year subscription / fee 38 604 34 883
Amount paid - current year (38 604) (34 883)

- -

Audit fees

Opening balance 19 084 -
Current year subscription / fee 3 096 730 4 033 186
Amount paid - current year (2 974 896) (4 025 380)
Interest accrued 21 818 11 278
Amount paid - previous years (19 084) -

143 652 19 084

PAYE, UIF and SDL

Current year subscription / fee 23 840 603 22 402 968
Amount paid - current year (23 840 603) (22 402 968)

- -

Pension and Medical Aid Deductions

Current year subscription / fee 26 139 855 15 833 134
Amount paid - current year (26 139 855) (15 833 134)

- -
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48. Deviation from supply chain management regulations

In terms of section 36(2) of the Municipal Supply Chain Management Regulations approved by the council, any deviation
from the Supply Chain Management Policy needs to be approved / condoned by the Municipal Manager, noted by Council
and bids where the formal procurement processes could not be followed must be noted in the Annual Financial Statements.

The following deviations from and ratification of minor breaches of procurement processes.

Emergency deviations - Various occasions (8) 510 535 -
Impractical to follow procedures - Various occasions (14) 439 249 789 036
Sole suppliers - Various occasions (95) 1 831 343 -

2 781 127 789 036

49. Prior-year adjustments

Presented below are those items contained in the statement of financial position, statement of financial performance and cash
flow statement that have been affected by prior-year adjustments:

Statement of financial position

2016

Note As previously
reported

Correction of
error

Restated

Payables from exchange transactions 10 (146 605 313) (2 476 220) (149 081 533)
Property, Plant and Equipment 7 1 963 832 497 (126 140 054) 1 837 692 443
Accumulated Surplus 14 (1 816 924 942) 128 616 274 (1 688 308 668)

302 242 - 302 242

2017

Note As previously
reported

Correction of
error

Reclassificati
on

Restated

Operating Lease Asset 2 88 970 - - 88 970
Receivables from non exchange transactions 3 10 913 305 - - 10 913 305
VAT receivable 4 79 130 156 1 368 389 - 80 498 545
Cash and cash equivalents 5 82 498 973 - - 82 498 973
Property, plant and equipment 7 2 098 909 503 - - 2 098 909 503
Intangible assets 8 1 525 915 - - 1 525 915
Investment property 6 5 568 662 - - 5 568 662
Other financial liabilities 9 - - (10 800 000) (10 800 000)
DBSA Loan (10 800 000) - 10 800 000 -
Operating Lease Liability 2 (236 654) - - (236 654)
Payables from exchange transactions 10 (157 209 871) (11 463 337) - (168 673 208)
Employee benefit obligation 11 - - (1 118 000) (1 118 000)
Unspent conditional grants and receipts 12 (37 658 156) - - (37 658 156)
Other financial liabilities 9 - - (54 837 565) (54 837 565)
DBSA Loan (54 837 565) - 54 837 565 -
Provisions (37 537 000) - 37 537 000 -
Employee benefit obligation - Non-current 11 - - (36 419 000) (36 419 000)
Revaluation Reserves 13 (9 825 736) - - (9 825 736)
Accumulated Surplus 14 (1 970 530 502) 10 094 948 - (1 960 435 554)

- - - -
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49. Prior-year adjustments (continued)

Disclosure notes

Note As previously
reported

Correction of
error

Restated

Irregular expenditure - current year 2017 36 302 484 889 (5 216 268) 297 268 621
Contributions to organised local government - Current year subscription /
fee

47 - 34 883 34 883

Contributions to organised local government - Amount paid current year 47 - (34 883) (34 883)
Financial instruments disclosure - Financial assets 45 4 777 368 6 135 937 10 913 305

307 262 257 919 669 308 181 926

Statement of financial performance

2017

Note As previously
reported

Correction of
error

Reclassificati
on

Restated

Rental of facilities and equipment 17 942 373 - - 942 373
Other income 16 343 993 - - 343 993
Interest earned   external 15 14 195 977 - - 14 195 977
Government grants & subsidies 18 688 096 200 - - 688 096 200
Other income 1 533 617 - - 1 533 617
Employee related costs 20 (111 027 488) (320 745) - (111 348 233)
Remuneration of councillors 21 (6 400 125) - - (6 400 125)
Depreciation and amortisation 22 (38 628 843) - - (38 628 843)
Impairment loss 23 (282 473) - - (282 473)
Finance costs 24 (3 436 125) - - (3 436 125)
Lease rentals on operating lease 25 - - (2 903 758) (2 903 758)
Debt Impairment 26 (141 266) - - (141 266)
Repairs and maintenance 30&43 (3 141 041) - 3 141 041 -
Bulk purchases 27 (130 060 977) (9 774 203) - (139 835 180)
Contracted services 28 (22 636 661) - - (22 636 661)
Grants and subsidies paid 29 (79 055 100) - - (79 055 100)
General expenditure 30 (25 861 091) - (237 283) (26 098 374)
Loss on disposal of assets and liabilities 31 (6 725 801) - - (6 725 801)
Fair value adjustments 32 1 015 100 - - 1 015 100
Actuarial gains/losses 11 3 491 565 - - 3 491 565

Surplus for the year 282 221 834 (10 094 948) - 272 126 886
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49. Prior-year adjustments (continued)

Cash flow statement

2017

Note As previously
reported

Reclassificati
on

Restated

Cash flow from operating activities
Cash receipts from ratepayers, government and other 697 228 956 (697 228 956) -
Government grants and subsidies - 726 389 607 726 389 607
Interest received 14 195 977 - 14 195 977
Other receipts - 4 231 319 4 231 319
Cash paid to suppliers and employees (304 514 376) 304 514 376 -
Employee related costs - (110 785 234) (110 785 234)
Remuneration of councillors - (6 400 125) (6 400 125)
Suppliers - (217 809 442) (217 809 442)
Finance costs - (11 466) (11 466)
Other payments - (2 903 758) (2 903 758)

406 910 557 (3 679) 406 906 878

Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (358 528 205) - (358 528 205)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 92 873 - 92 873
Purchase of other intangible assets (802 766) - (802 766)

(359 238 098) - (359 238 098)

Cash flow from financing activities
Operating lease payments (34 958) 2 (34 956)
Repayment of DBSA Loan (10 800 000) 3 677 (10 796 323)

(10 834 958) 3 679 (10 831 279)

Errors

The following prior period errors adjustments occurred:

Accrual for bonuses

Accrual for annual bonuses was not included in the 2017 Annual Financial Statements for the period ending 30 June 2016
and 30 June 2017. Management therefore retrospectively calculated and accrued for the bonuses under Trade and other
payables in accordance with GRAP19 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

The effect  was recognition of a R 2 796 964 Accrued bonuses liability, an increase in Employee related costs (Bonus) of
R 320 745 and a R 2 476 220 decrease in Accumulated surplus opening balance.
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49. Prior-year adjustments (continued)

Property, Plant and Equipment

Management identified Property, plant and equipment which should have been previously included. 

The main contributors to the increase in Infrastructure and WIP are due to the componentization of capital projects and the
increase through supporting documents.

Land and buildings restatement occurred due to errors on the valuation of buildings and land portions not valued.

Calculation errors were identified on Office furniture and equipment. 

The correction of errors has been done in terms of GRAP 3, paragraph 44 and subject to paragraph 45, retrospectively to
the opening balances of the 2016/2017 financial year.

The effect of the restatements per assets class:

Increase in Opening balance Land R 1 030 208
Increase in Opening balance Buildings R 19 066 925
Increase in Opening balance Office furniture R 13 861
Decrease in Opening balance Office equipment (R 37 835)
Increase in Opening balance Infrastructure R 65 724 469
Decrease in Opening balance Work in progress (R 211 937 682)
Decrease in Opening balance Accumulated surplus R 126 140 054.

Payables from exchange transactions - Trade payables

Management identified payments that were made to suppliers after 30 June 2017 that was included in the balance of
Payables from exchange transactions - trade payables on the 2016/2017 annual financial statements. The payments
related to goods delivered before 30 June 2017. The correction was made by  increasing the balance of Payables from
exchange transactions - Trade payabels with R 11 142 593, increasing VAT receivable with R 1 368 389  and increasing
bulk purchases with R 9 774 204.
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49. Prior-year adjustments (continued)

Disclosure notes

Irregular, Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure

Management identified duplicate payments on the irregular expenditure register included in the 2016/2017 AFS.

Section 21 (d) - Above R10 Million items disclosed as R 230 756 438 included duplicates amounting to R 1 647 838.
Restated amount R 229 108 600.

CSD disclosed as R 32 013 983 included duplicates amounting to R 1 047 990. Restated amount R 30 965 993.

Quotations disclosed as R 49 342 657 included duplicates amounting to R 2 444 840. Restated amount R 46 897 817.

Roster disclosed as R 185 180 346 included duplicates amounting to R 75 600. Restated amount R 185 104 746.

Additional disclosure in terms of Municipal Finance Management Act

1.) The note as required in terms of the MFMA for contributions to organised local government - SALGA was omitted from
the 2016/2017 annual financial statements. The Note was included in 2017/2018 annual financial statements with the
corresponding comparative figures for anuual subscription R 34 883 and amount paid for the year (R 34 883). 

2.) Management identified that the balance outstanding for audit fees as disclosed in note 47 - Additional disclosure in
terms of Municipal Finance Management Act, did not include accrued interest of R 11 278 .

The balance of R 7 806 as previously disclosed was incorrect. The correct balance for the comparitive year is R 19 084. 

Financial instruments disclosure note

Correction was made to increase the amount disclosed for Financial assets in note 45 - financial instruments. Financial
assets were increased with R 6 135 937.
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49. Prior-year adjustments (continued)

Reclassifications

The following prior period reclassifications occurred:

Reclassification - Employee benefit obligation

Post-employment medical aid and Long service awards liabilities was incorrectly disclosed as provisions in the 2017 Annual
Financial Statements. Management has reclassified these liabilities to Employee benefit obligations (non-current and
current portions) on the 2018 Annual Financial Statements in accordance with GRAP 25 - Employee Benefits.

Reclassification - Lease rental on operating leases

Lease rentals on operating leases has been reclassified from general expenses and included as a separate line item on the
Statement of Financial Performance.The reclassification was done in accordance with GRAP 1 - Presentation of Financial
Statements. Management reclassified the amount due to the item being material in nature and value.

Reclassification - Repairs and maintenance

Repairs and maintenance has been reclassified to general expenses and excluded as a separate line item on the
Statement of Financial Performance. The reclassification was done in accordance with GRAP 1 - Presentation of Financial
Statements. The line item is not material in nature or amount and was therefore included in General expenses.

Reclassification -  DBSA loan

Amount disclosed for DBSA loan as non-current (R 54 837 565) and current liabilities (R 10 800 000), on the face of the
financial statements for 2016/2017,  was reclassified to Other financial liabilities. GRAP 1 requires that the class of the
liability should be disclosed on the face of the statement of financial position.

Cash flow statement

Amounts included on the Cash flow statement as presented on the 2016/2017 Annual financial statements were reclassified
to adhere to the requirements of GRAP 2 - Cash Flow Statements. The reclassifications was done to improve the
presentation on the financial statements. Disclosure of cash flows from operating activities were ammended to show the
inflows and outflows in more detail and in a manner that can be used to evaluate the relationships among activities and the
Statement of financial peformance.

Interest paid (R 3 679) was reclassified from financing activities to finance cost disclosed under operating activities as the
interest was levied on arrear payments and not financing activities.
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Original Loan Loan Balance at Redeemed/ Balance at

Details Loan Interest Redeemable Written Off

Amount Rate Number 30-Jun-17 during the Period 30-Jun-18

R % R R R

ANNUITY LOANS

DBSA 79 433 888  12.75% 61007370 31/07/2023 65 637 565  10 803 230  54 834 335  

Total Annuity Loans 79 433 888  65 637 565  10 803 230  54 834 335  

TOTAL EXTERNAL LOANS 79 433 888  65 637 565  10 803 230  54 834 335  

0.00 0.00

APPENDIX A

DR RUTH S MOMPATI DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY

SCHEDULE OF LONG-TERM EXTERNAL LOANS AS AT 30 JUNE 2018
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ACTUAL VERSUS BUDGET (REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

2017/2018 2017/2018 2017/2018 2017/2018 Explanation of Significant Variances

Actual Budget Variance Variance greater than 10% versus Budget

R R R %

REVENUE

Rental of facilities and equipment 942 373               1 076 900             (134 527)              -14% Straightlining of lease asset expenditure

Investment revenue 15 069 912          17 874 000           (2 804 088)           -19% The budgeted amount included interest on the VBS investment for the 

full financial year. The actual interest till date of impairment was 

therefore less than expected.

Investment revenue - outstanding debtors -                           -                        -                           0% No explanation needed variance under 10%

Other income 644 569               225 000                419 569               65% Insurance claims received not in the normal course of operations.

Government grants and subsidies received 675 186 380        316 979 000         358 207 380        53% Amendments to DORA lead to a significant increase in Grants receipts. 

Conditions met was not expected to be so high.

Other income - Non- exchange 12 642                 -                        12 642                 100% Expense budgeted for under other income - exchange transactions

Fair value adjustment (142 034)              -                        (142 034)              100% Not budgeted for

Actuarial gians / losses 3 402 000            -                        3 402 000            100% Not budgeted for

Total Revenue 695 115 842        336 154 900        358 960 942        

-                           

EXPENDITURE

Employee related costs 119 543 440        122 669 000        (3 125 560)           -3% No explanation needed variance under 10%

Remuneration of councillors 7 104 171            8 160 456            (1 056 285)           -15%
Payment of Councillors as per government gazette. Budget was 

calculated based on the remuneration paid in 2016/2017.

Depreciation and amortisation 62 284 234          45 732 436          16 551 798          -100%
Errors in WIP transferred in 2016/2017 increased the 2017/2018 

depreciation

Impairment of assets 150 694 804        -                           150 694 804        100% Impairment of VBS investment not budgeted for

Finance cost 3 678 670            10 928 400          (7 249 730)           -197% Sedibeng old outstanding debt was settled

Lease rentals on operating leases 2 909 119            -                           2 909 119            100% Expense budgeted for under general expenses

Debt impairment 9 143 533            1 000 000            8 143 533            89% Debtors provision not budgeted for. Municipality did not anticipate 

debtors to be long outstanding at year end

Bulk purchases 106 163 798        113 657 667        (7 493 869)           -7% No explanation needed variance under 10%

Contracted Services 30 521 141          31 441 000          (919 859)              -3% No explanation needed variance under 10%

Grants and Subsidies paid 19 324 358          20 750 000          (1 425 642)           -7% No explanation needed variance under 10%

General expenses 22 454 740          34 951 000          (12 496 261)         -56% Due to uncertainty regarding the VBS money invested the municipality 

had to be more conservative

Loss on disposal of PPE -                           -                           -                           0% No explanation needed variance under 10%

Total Expenditure 533 822 007        389 289 959        144 532 048        

NET SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR 161 293 835        (53 135 059)         214 428 894        

APPENDIX E(1)

DR RUTH S MOMPATI DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY

Description
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Grants and Subsidies Received

TOTAL Sept Dec March June TOTAL Sept Dec March June June Sept Dec March June Yes / No

MIG Nat Treasury 213 445 000           60 000 000          50 000 000          103 445 000        -      184 934 560           17 119 501            65 456 524            30 573 521          71 785 015            N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Yes N/A

E.P.W.P Nat Treasury 4 842 000               1 211 000            2 178 000            1 453 000            -      4 310 560               73 421                   1 501 319              1 196 120            1 539 701              N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Yes N/A

Equitable Share Nat Treasury 308 412 000           128 520 000        102 780 000        77 112 000          -      308 412 000           128 520 000          102 780 000          77 112 000          -                         N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Yes N/A

WSIG Nat Treasury 77 986 000             -                       62 389 000          15 597 000          -      89 893 460             24 031 599            43 205 493            9 873 024            12 783 344            N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Yes N/A

FMG Nat Treasury 1 250 000               1 250 000            -                       -                       -      1 250 000               568 290                 282 384                 309 657               89 668                   N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Yes N/A

RRAMS Nat Treasury 2 439 000               1 707 000            -                       732 000               -      2 139 474               -                         489 146                 729 475               920 853                 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Yes N/A

RBIG Province 182 000 000           64 600 000          -                       117 400 000        -      82 577 762             4 202 730              18 813 045            8 037 775            51 524 212            N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Yes N/A

Fire and Emergency Province 1 668 563               -                       -                       1 668 563            -      1 668 563               -                         -                         -                       1 668 563              N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Yes N/A

Total Grants and Subsidies Received 792 042 563           257 288 000        217 347 000        317 407 563        -      675 186 380           174 515 541          232 527 911          127 831 572        140 311 356          

Reason for Non- 

compliance

APPENDIX F

DR RUTH S MOMPATI DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY

DISCLOSURE OF GRANTS AND SUBSIDIES IN TERMS OF SECTION 123 OF MFMA, 56 0F 2003

Name of Grant
Name of Organ of State or 

Municipal Entity
Quarterly Receipts Quarterly Expenditure

Grants and Subsidies Delayed / 

Withheld

Reason for Delay / 

Withholding of Funds

Compliance to 

Revenue Act (*)       

See below
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Budgeted Financial Performance (revenue and expenditure by municipal vote) for the year ended 30 June 2018

Original Budget Final Shifting Virement Final Actual Unauthorised Variance Variance Actual Outcome Actual Outcome

Total Adjustments of as % of as % of

Budget Adjustments Budget Funds Budget Outcome Expenditure Final Budget Original Budget

R R R R R R R R R % % %

REVENUE BY VOTE

Vote 1 - OFFICE OF THE EXECUTIVE MAYOR 25 193 639  (719 393)  24 474 246  -   -   24 474 246  24 659 824  -   185 578  1% 100.76  97.88  

Vote 2 - OFFICE OF THE SPEAKER 9 388 045  994 328  10 382 373  -   -   10 382 373  9 386 949  -   (995 424)  -10% 90.41  99.99  

Vote 3 - OFFICE OF THE MUNICIPAL MANAGER 4 845 482  -  4 845 482  -   -   4 845 482  4 844 916  -   (566)  0% 99.99  99.99  

Vote 4 - INTERNAL AUDIT 14 806 122  (412 661)  14 393 461  -   -   14 393 461  14 804 394  -   410 933  3% 102.85  99.99  

Vote 5 - BUDGET NAD TREASURY OFFICE 32 478 189  (559 855)  31 918 334  -   -   31 918 334  34 116 668  -   2 198 334  7% 106.89  105.04  

Vote 6 - CORPORATE SERVICES 34 485 437  1 184 522  35 669 959  -   -   35 669 959  36 634 884  -   964 925  3% 102.71  106.23  

Vote 7 - PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 5 676 451  (272 397)  5 404 054  -   -   5 404 054  5 675 789  -   271 734  5% 105.03  99.99  

Vote 8 - ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH 12 324 641  (1 744 706)  10 579 935  -   -   10 579 935  12 323 202  -   1 743 268  16% 116.48  99.99  

Vote 9 - FIRE AND DISASTER MANAGEMENT 24 696 369  (1 691 162)  23 005 207  -   -   23 005 207  26 362 050  -   3 356 843  15% 114.59  106.74  

Vote 10 - ENGINEERING 546 749 452  6 589 472  553 338 924  -   -   553 338 924   440 430 405   -   (112 908 519)  -20% 79.60  80.55  

Vote 11 - PROJECT MANAGEMENT UNIT 7 045 150  -  7 045 150  -   -   7 045 150  69 563 891  -   62 518 741  887% 987.40  987.40  

Vote 12 - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT,TOURISM AND AGRICULTURE 16 456 823  (125 048)  16 331 775  -   -   16 331 775  16 454 904  -   123 129  1% 100.75  99.99  

Total Revenue by Vote 734 145 799  3 243 100  737 388 899  -   -   737 388 899   695 257 876   -   (42 131 023)  

EXPENDITURE BY VOTE

Vote 1 - OFFICE OF THE EXECUTIVE MAYOR 25 143 639  (769 393)  24 374 245  -   -   24 374 245  20 940 976  -   (3 433 270)  -14% 85.91  83.29  

Vote 2 - OFFICE OF THE SPEAKER 8 538 192  1 644 181  10 182 373  -   -   10 182 373  7 060 984  -   (3 121 389)  -31% 69.35  82.70  

Vote 3 - OFFICE OF THE MUNICIPAL MANAGER 4 795 482  -  4 795 482  -   -   4 795 482  4 860 872  65 391  65 391  1% 101.36  101.36  

Vote 4 - INTERNAL AUDIT 14 706 122  (412 661)  14 293 462  -   -   14 293 462  12 922 899  -   (1 370 563)  -10% 90.41  87.87  

Vote 5 - BUDGET NAD TREASURY OFFICE 31 808 188  2 681 212  34 489 400  -   -   34 489 400  195 877 421   161 388 020   161 388 020   468% 567.94  615.81  

Vote 6 - CORPORATE SERVICES 32 484 819  2 285 139  34 769 959  -   -   34 769 959  34 230 998  -   (538 960)  -2% 98.45  105.38  

Vote 7 - PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 5 626 451  (272 396)  5 354 055  -   -   5 354 055  3 709 518  -   (1 644 537)  -31% 69.28  65.93  

Vote 8 - ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH 12 274 640  (1 994 705)  10 279 935  -   -   10 279 935  9 652 052  -   (627 883)  -6% 93.89  78.63  

Vote 9 - FIRE AND DISASTER MANAGEMENT 24 646 369  (1 841 162)  22 805 207  -   -   22 805 207  25 013 144  2 207 937  2 207 937  10% 109.68  101.49  

Vote 10 - ENGINEERING 198 719 355  6 433 493  205 152 847  -   -   205 152 847   201 646 569   -   (3 506 278)  -2% 98.29  101.47  

Vote 11 - PROJECT MANAGEMENT UNIT 6 965 150  30 000  6 995 150  -   -   6 995 150  5 419 881  -   (1 575 269)  -23% 77.48  77.81  

Vote 12 - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT,TOURISM AND AGRICULTURE 16 356 823  (558 375)  15 798 448  -   -   15 798 448  12 628 728  -   (3 169 720)  -20% 79.94  77.21  

Total Expenditure by Vote 382 065 230  7 225 332  389 290 562  -   -   389 290 562   533 964 041   163 661 349   144 673 479   

Surplus/(Deficit) for the year 352 080 569  (3 982 232)  348 098 337  348 098 337   161 293 835   (163 661 349)  (186 804 502)  

Appendix G(2)
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